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ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Artemis Medicare Services Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Artemis Medicare Services Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31% March, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31+
March, 2022, and its Profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA”s) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) read together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl’s
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters (‘KAM’) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

1. Capitalisation of Property, Plant, and Equipment

The Company has an expansion plan for its healthcare | Principal Audit Procedures
business. As result, additions to Property, Plant, and
Equipment (PPE) were made during the year amounting
to 12,590.36 lacs (including a borrowing cost of ¥

790.95 lacs). Further, the carrying value of Capital work in
progress as of 31% March, 2022, was ¥ 6,211.02 lacs and | " We performed walkthroughs of PPE, CWIP, Intangible assets,

for intangible assets under development as of 31% March and Intangible assets under development process and assessed
2022. was T 194.02 lacs. the design effectiveness and operating effectiveness for key
controls.

Our audit approach consisted testing of the design and operating
effectiveness of the internal controls and substantive testing as
follows:

The significant level of additions to PPE requires | = Understood, evaluated, and tested the design and operating
consideration of nature of cost incurred to ensure that effectiveness of key controls relating to capitalization of various
the capitalization of assets meets the recognition criteria costs incurred in relation to Property, Plant, and Equipment.

in accordance with Ind AS 16 “Property, Plant and,
Equipment”. Further, the application of management’s
decision in assessing the completion of capitalization
at various stages of the project as and when assets are
ready for intended use or the percentage of completion | ® We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures made by the

= Read the Company’s accounting policies for compliance with
Ind AS 16 and on a sample basis tested available documentation
to consider whether the criteria for capitalization were met.

of the project requires significant management judgment Company in this connection in the accompanying financial
and estimation. As a result, this was noted as a Key Audit statements.
matter.
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Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

2. Allowances for credit losses relating to Trade Receivables:

As stated in Note 7, the Company has determined the | Principal Audit Procedures

allowance for credit loss based on historical credit loss | we performed the following principal audit procedures:
experience which is adjusted to reflect current and
estimated future economic conditions. The historical loss
experience model takes into consideration the overall
economic conditions and their impact on the customers’
business operations/ability to pay dues. Based on
such analysis the Company has recorded an allowance
aggregating to ¥701.62 lacs as included in note 7 of the
standalone financial statements. We identified allowance
for credit losses as a key audit matter because the Company
exercises significant judgment in calculating the expected
credit losses.

= We tested the design and implementation and operating
effectiveness of controls over (a) development of methodology
for the allowance for credit losses, including consideration of
the overall economic conditions (b) completeness and accuracy
of information used in the estimation of the probability of
default (c) computation of the expected credit loss allowances.

=  Considered other available information like increase in
credit risk, relating to the Company’s customers to test if the
Management had appropriately considered the adjustments
to credit risk.

= Recomputed the expected credit loss allowance considering
the above determined input data and compared the amounts
so recomputed with the amounts recorded by the Management
to determine if there were any material differences individually
or in the aggregate.

Information Other than the Standalone financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Company’s annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation
and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133
of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
the safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation, and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect

89




ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES LIMITED

a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system with reference to Standalone Financial statement in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the Standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the Standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2021 were audited by the predecessor auditor
whose report dated 10" May, 2021 expressed an unmodified opinion on those standalone financial statements. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

(c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this report are
in agreement with the books of account.
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 315t March, 2022 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31t March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to Standalone
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting

(g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16)
of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31 March, 2022 has been paid / provided by the
Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March, 2022 on its financial position in its
Standalone Financial Statements. Refer Note 39 to the Standalone Financial Statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and
(ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v.  The company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year, therefore reporting under rule 11 (f) is
not applicable.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
For TR Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No -006711N/ N500028)

sd/-
Place of Signature: New Delhi Neena Goel
Dated: 11" May, 2022 (Partner)
UDIN: 22057986AITZJH7132 Membership No. 057986
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Standalone financial statements of the Artemis
Medicare Services Limited for the year ended 31 March, 2022

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to aforesaid Standalone financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)
Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Artemis Medicare Services Limited (“the Company”)
as of 31t March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial controls over
financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the
“Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
financial controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10)
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exits, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of the internal controls based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risk of misstatement of the Standalone
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of Standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial Statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial controls over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For TR Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No -006711N/ N500028)

sd/-
Place of Signature: New Delhi Neena Goel
Dated: 11" May, 2022 (Partner)
UDIN: 22057986AITZJH7132 Membership No. 057986
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date to
the members of Artemis Medicare Services Limited on the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022

i)

ii)

i)

In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a.

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets covered under Ind AS 116, ‘Leases’.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment, and right-of-use assets so as to cover all
the items at least every 1-2 years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, some of the Property, Plant and Equipment, were physically verified during
the year by the Management. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

Based on the examination of the property tax receipts, and conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title
deeds of all the immovable properties of land and buildings (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company) disclosed in the financial statements included in
property, plant and equipment, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. Immovable properties
of land and buildings, title deeds of which have been pledged as security for loans, are held in the name of the Company
based on the confirmations received from the Bank.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible
assets during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are
pending against the Company as at 31 March, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

In respect of the Company’s Inventory:

a.

The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion
and according to the information and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. No discrepancies
of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories
when compared with books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of % 5 crores, in aggregate, from banks, on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and according to
the information and explanations given to us, the quarterly cash flow statements filed by the Company with banks are in
agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective quarters.

The Company has made investments in, and provided guarantee (unsecured), to Subsidary company, during the year, in
respect of which:

a.

The Company has provided guarantee, during the year, details of which are given below:

Particulars | Loans |Advance in nature of Loan | Guarntee | Security
A. Aggregate amount granted / provided during the year:

Subsidary Company |Ni| |Ni| |Ni| |Ni|

B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases::

Subsidary Company* | Nil | Nil |? 1,500 Lacs | Nil

* The amounts reported are at gross amounts.

The Company has not provided any loans, or advance in nature of loan or security to any other entity during the year.

In our opinion, the investments made, guarantees provided, and the terms and conditions of the grant of all the above-
mentioned investment, and guarantees provided, during the year are, in our opinion, prima facie are, not prejudicial to
the Company’s interest.
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iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

viii)

ix)

c. The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans, to any other entity during the year, and
hence reporting under clause (iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

d. The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans, to any other entity during the year, and
hence reporting under clause (iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

e. No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans
granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

f.  According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed, the Company has
not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause (iii)(f) is not applicable.

Compliance of section 185 and 186

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans
granted, investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

Public Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder.
Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Cost Records

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act,
2013. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in respect of Health services, namely
functioning as or running hospitals pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed
by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion
that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

Statutory Dues
In respect of statutory dues:

a. Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax,
Sales Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the
Company have been generally deposited regularly by it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess and other material
statutory dues in arrears as at 31t March, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there are
no statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) above, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute as on
31 March, 2022.

Undisclosed Income

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there were no
transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

Borrowings

a. In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender during the year.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

c. Tothe best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company were, applied by the Company
during the year for the purposes for which the loans were obtained.

95




ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES LIMITED

x)

xi)

xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

Xv)

xvi)

d. On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima
facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

e. Onan overall examination of the financial statements, we report that the Company has not utilised the unutilized funds
as at the beginning of the year from the funds raised through issue of shares or borrowings in the previous year to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. The Company has neither taken any funds from any entity
or person during the year.

f.  The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries or joint ventures or
associate companies.

Issue of securities

a. The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year. Accordingly, clause 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b. During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Fraud

a. To the best of our knowledge, and information and explanations given by the management, we report that, no fraud by
the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

b. To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 (as prescribed) under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,
during the year and up to the date of this report.

c. As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year.

Nidhi company
The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.
Related parties

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, where applicable, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Internal Audit

a. In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its
business.

b. We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year and covering the period upto (31
December, 2021) and the draft of the internal audit reports which where issued after the balance sheet date covering
the period 1% January, 2022 to 31 March, 2022.

Non-cash transactions

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

a. Inouropinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

b. In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.
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xvii) Cash loss

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding
financial year.

xviii)Resignation of statutory auditors

Xix)

XX)

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. Accordingly reporting under clause
(xiii) of the Order is not applicable.

Ability to pay liabilities

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

CSR unspent amount

The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and there are no unspent
CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special account in
compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the
Order is not applicable for the year.

For TR Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No -006711N/ N500028)

sd/-
Place of Signature: New Delhi Neena Goel
Dated: 11" May, 2022 (Partner)
UDIN: 22057986AITZJH7132 Membership No. 057986
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31°" MARCH, 2022

(% in Lacs)
particulars Note As At As At
No. 31t March, 2022 | 31t March, 2021
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2.1 41,748.92 31,033.10
Capital work-in-progress 2.2 6,211.02 8,100.53
Right-of-use assets 2.3 1,461.36 1,718.06
Goodwill 2.4 4,162.07 4,162.07
Other Intangible assets 2.5 232.75 268.70
Other Intangible assets under development 2.6 194.02 -
Financial assets
i. Investments 3.1 559.00 429.00
ii. Loans 3.2 27.57 56.87
iii. Other financial assets 33 311.10 221.75
Non-current tax assets (Net) 4 2,091.48 1,643.43
Other non-current assets 478.28 691.82
Total non-current assets A 57,477.57 48,325.33
Current assets
Inventories 6 1,174.79 926.66
Financial assets
i. Trade receivables 6,963.50 5,297.34
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 1,511.44 1,688.85
iii. Bank balances other than (ii) above 1,199.91 1,195.78
iv. Loans 3.2 78.42 53.45
v.  Other financial assets 33 651.86 529.10
Other current assets 5 682.91 879.05
Total current assets B 12,262.83 10,570.23
Total Assets C=A+B 69,740.40 58,895.56
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 10 1,323.77 1,323.77
Other equity 11 34,837.43 30,838.24
Total equity D 36,161.20 32,162.01
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 12 15,257.31 9,877.04
ii. Lease Liabilities 1,495.57 1,647.24
Provisions 13 820.30 658.06
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 14 2,697.70 2,982.88
Total non-current liabilities E 20,270.88 15,165.22
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(% in Lacs)
particulars Note As At As At
No. 31t March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 15 2,018.09 1,894.03
ii. Lease Liabilities 268.31 284.13
iii. Trade payables
(a) Total OQutstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and 16 1,289.52 1,099.10
Small Enterprises
(b) Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than 16 4,503.12 4,486.71
Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
iv. Other financial liabilities 17 1,812.38 926.88
Other current liabilities 18 2,364.24 1,859.58
Provisions 13 1,052.66 1,017.90
Total current liabilities F 13,308.32 11,568.33
Total liabilities G=E+F 33,579.20 26,733.55
Total equity and liabilities H=D+G 69,740.40 58,895.56
Significant accounting policies 14
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 2to 48
As per our report of even date attached
For TR Chadha & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Artemis Medicare Services Limited
Firm Registration Number 006711N/N500028
Sd/- Sd/-
Onkar Kanwar Devlina Chakravarty
[Chairman] [Managing Director]

Sd/-

(Neena Goel)

Partner

Membership No. 057986
Place : New Delhi

Dated : 11*" May, 2022

[DIN : 00058921]
Place : Gurugram
Dated : 11*" May, 2022

Sd/-

Sanjiv Kumar Kothari
[Chief Financial Officer]
Place : Gurugram
Dated : 11*" May, 2022
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[DIN : 07107875]
Place : Gurugram
Dated : 11*" May, 2022

Sd/-

Shilpa Budhia
[Company Secretary]
Place : Gurugram
Dated : 11*" May, 2022
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2022

(% in Lacs)
. Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars NoteNo. | 31« March, 2022 | 31% March, 2021
Income
Revenue from Operations 19 54,478.40 40,206.37
Other Income 20 388.47 354.56
Total income (1) 54,866.87 40,560.93
Expenses
Operative Expenses 21 33,537.48 25,088.03
Purchases of Stock in Trade - 9.65 29.71
Changes in inventories of Stock in Trade 22 13.38 45.64
Employee benefits expense 23 10,219.95 8,248.65
Finance costs 24 1,116.61 1,226.89
Depreciation and other amortization expense 25 2,108.20 2,065.22
Other expenses 26 3,980.71 3,289.49
Total expenses (m) 50,985.99 39,993.63
Profit before exceptional items and tax m=(1r-1m) 3,880.89 567.30
Exceptional Items (refer note 44) v - 323.29
Profit before tax V=(ll+1V) 3,880.89 890.59
Tax Expense 27
Current Tax 824.52 670.51
Earlier Year Tax (55.13) 94.14
Deferred Tax Charge / (Credit) (146.24) (582.77)
Total Tax Expense (vi) 623.16 181.88
Profit after tax for the year Vil=(V-VI) 3,257.74 708.71
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans (refer note 35) (vur) (117.64) 8.70
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss (IX) 29.61 (3.04)
Deferred Tax adjustment on revaluation that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss (X) 54.22 40.66
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to X = (VI +IX (33.81) 46.32
profit or loss in subsequent periods: +X)
Total comprehensive income for the year Xil = (VI + X1) 3,223.92 755.03
Earning Per Equity Share (Face Value of ¥ 1/- each)
- Basic () 34 2.46 0.54
- Diluted (%) 2.34 0.54
Significant accounting policies 14
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 2t048

As per our report of even date attached

For TR Chadha & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 006711N/N500028
Sd/-
Onkar Kanwar
[Chairman]
[DIN : 00058921]
Place : Gurugram

Dated : 11*" May, 2022

Sd/- Sd/-
(Neena Goel) Sanjiv Kumar Kothari
Partner [Chief Financial Officer]

Membership No. 057986
Place : New Delhi
Dated : 11*" May, 2022

Place : Gurugram
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Sd/-

Devlina Chakravarty
[Managing Director]
[DIN : 07107875]
Place : Gurugram
Dated : 11*" May, 2022

Sd/-

Shilpa Budhia
[Company Secretary]
Place : Gurugram
Dated : 11" May, 2022




ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2022

(% in Lacs)

Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021

Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 3,880.90 890.59

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization expense 2,108.20 2,065.22
Interest Income (146.86) (183.37)
Finance Cost 856.19 1,019.52
Exceptional Items - (323.29)
Employee Cost towards Stock Based Payments 775.26 -
Unclaimed Credit balances / provisions no longer required written (82.87) (85.48)
back

Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (103.69) 307.63
Bad Debts Written Off 113.04 22.42
Unrealised foreign exchange gain (net) 67.79 26.07
Loss / (Gain) on Sale / Scrap of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) 46.57 19.24
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 7,514.53 3,758.55
Adjustments for Changes in Working Capital

- (Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivables (1,743.29) 1,997.25
- (Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories (248.13) 126.67
- (Increase)/ Decrease in Loan (Current) (24.97) 49.85
- (Increase)/ Decrease in Loan (Non -Current) 29.31 12.89
- (Increase)/ Decrease in Other Financial Assets (Current) (122.75) (162.68)
- (Increase)/ Decrease in Other Financial Assets (Non - Current) (76.27) (2.11)
- (Increase)/ Decrease in other Current Assets 196.13 98.40
- (Increase)/ Decrease in Other Non Current Assets 749.89 (486.60)
- Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 289.69 (1,731.91)
- Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions (Current) 34.75 98.09
- Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions (Non - Current) 44.59 39.89
- Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (Current) 504.66 (12.08)
- Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities (Current) 556.12 (844.39)
Cash generated from operations 7,704.27 2,941.82
Income tax refund / (paid) (1,633.08) (237.45)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 6,071.19 2,704.36
Cash flow from investing activity

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment / CWIP (10,653.95) (2,826.23)
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 44.70 303.69
Maturity / (investments) of / in fixed deposits having original maturity (4.13) (791.34)
of more than 3 months

Investment made in subsidiary (130.00) (260.00)
Interest received 133.77 166.35
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) (10,609.63) (3,407.53)
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(% in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31t March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Cash flow from financing activity
Proceeds from non current borrowings 7,799.55 5,012.57
Repayment of non current borrowings (2,295.22) (1,431.42)
Repayment of current borrowings (net) - (1,088.63)
Payment of lease liabilities - Principal amount (164.26) (74.60)
Payment of lease liabilities - Interest amount (170.41) (167.93)
Interest paid (808.63) (977.47)
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 4,361.03 1,272.52
Net increase in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C) (177.41) 569.35
Cash & cash equivalents as the beginning of the year 1,688.85 1,119.50
Cash & cash equivalents as the end of the year Total 1,511.44 1,688.85
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 67.87 135.14
Balances with Banks:
On current accounts 1,443.57 953.71
Fixed Deposit in banks having original maturity of
3 months or less - 600.00
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents ( Refer Note 8 ) Total 1,511.44 1,688.85
As per our report of even date attached
For TR Chadha & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Artemis Medicare Services Limited
Firm Registration Number 006711N/N500028
Sd/- Sd/-
Onkar Kanwar Devlina Chakravarty
[Chairman] [Managing Director]

Sd/-

(Neena Goel)

Partner

Membership No. 057986
Place : New Delhi

Dated : 11*" May, 2022

[DIN : 00058921]
Place : Gurugram
Dated : 11*" May, 2022

Sd/-

Sanjiv Kumar Kothari
[Chief Financial Officer]
Place : Gurugram
Dated : 11*" May, 2022
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(% in Lacs)
(A) Equity Share Capital

Particulars Note No Amount
Balance as at 31t March, 2020 10 1,323.77

Change in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 10 1,323.77

Change in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31%* March, 2022 10 1,323.77
Il Other Equity (% in Lacs)

Reserves and Surplus Equity Items of OCI
Settled
Particulars Note | capital Revaluation | Retained | Share based Premeasurem.ents Total
Reserve Reserve Earnings Payment | of the net defined
Reserve benefit plans
Balance as at 31* March, 2020 11 14,457.89 6,598.31| 9,121.88 - (94.87) | 30,083.21
Profit / (Loss) for the year 11 - - 708.71 - - 708.71
Deferred tax adjustment on revaluation 11 - 40.66 - - - 40.66
Other comprehensive income (OClI) (net of tax) 11 - - - - 5.66 5.66
Balance as at 31* March, 2021 11 14,457.89 6,638.97| 9,830.59 - (89.21)| 30,838.24
Profit / (Loss) for the year 11 - -| 3,257.74 - - 3,257.74
Deferred tax adjustment on revaluation 11 - 54.22 - - - 54.22
Equity Settled Share based Payment Reserve 11 - - - 775.26 - 775.26
Other comprehensive income (OClI) (net of tax) 11 - - - - (88.03) (88.03)
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 11 14,457.89 6,693.18 | 13,088.33 775.26 (177.24) | 34,837.43
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 2to48

As per our report of even date attached

For TR Chadha & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 006711N/N500028

Sd/-

(Neena Goel)

Partner

Membership No. 057986
Place : New Delhi

Dated : 11*" May, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Artemis Medicare Services Limited

Sd/-
Onkar Kanwar
[Chairman]

Sd/-

Devlina Chakravarty
[Managing Director]

[DIN : 00058921]
Place : Gurugram
Dated : 11*" May, 2022

Sd/-

Sanjiv Kumar Kothari
[Chief Financial Officer]
Place : Gurugram
Dated : 11*" May, 2022
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ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022
Note No.
1.1 Corporate information

Artemis Medicare Services Limited (“The Company”) was incorporated on 18™" May, 2004. The Company is engaged in the
business of managing and operating of multi specialty hospitals and commenced its commercial operation by setting up
Artemis Hospital (formerly Artemis Health Institute) at Gurugram on 16 July, 2007.

1.2 Basis of preparation
a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read together with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended.

b) Presentation of Financial Statements

The Statement of Assets and Liabilities and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format
prescribed in the Division Il of Schedule Ill to the Act. The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented
as per the requirements of Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash flows. The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the
Statement of Assets and Liabilities and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule Il to the Act, are
presented by way of notes forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed
under the notified Ind AS and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

Functional Currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Lacs rounded off to two Decimal places as permitted by
Schedule Il to the Act. Per share data are presented in Indian Rupees to two Decimals places.

c) Classification of Current / Non-Current Assets and Liabilities

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the Act.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i) itis expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;
ii) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii) it is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date; or

iv) itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
i) itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

i) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii) itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

iv) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

All other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current. Based on the nature of the products and services, the Company
has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of Current / Non-current classification of assets and
liabilities.
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d) Basis of Accounting

The Company maintains accounts on accrual basis following the historical cost convention, except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair value or amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorised as below based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety:

i. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the company
can access at measurement date;

ii. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

iii. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets/liabilities
1.3 Key estimates and assumptions

The preparation of Financial Information in accordance with Ind AS requires use of estimates and assumptions for some
items, which might have an effect on their recognition and measurement in the (i) Statement of Assets and Liabilities and (ii)
Statement of Profit and Loss. The actual amounts realised may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the Financial Information are continuously evaluated by the
Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future
events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Differences between actual results and
estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known/ materialised.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that date
but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which
are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally
assessed.

Estimates and assumptions are required in particular for:
i. Determination of the estimated useful lives of tangible assets

Useful lives of tangible assets are based on the life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Act. In cases, where the useful lives
are different from that prescribed in Schedule Il to the Act, they are based on technical advice, taking into account the
nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement,
anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and maintenance support.

ii. Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial
assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation, actuarial rates and life expectancy. The discount rate
is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The period to
maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations.

iii. Recognition of deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the
carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax base, and unutilized business loss and depreciation carry-
forwards and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and
unused tax credits could be utilized.

iv. Recognition and measurement of other provisions

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of
resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at the Statement of Assets and Liabilities date. The actual
outflow of resources at a future date may therefore vary from the amount included in other provisions.
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Recoverability of trade receivable

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a
provision against those receivables is required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the counterparty, the
amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any possible actions that can be taken to mitigate the risk of
non-payment.

1.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

a)

b)

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost (or revalued amounts, as the case may be), less accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the property, plant
and equipment to its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of property, plant
and equipment which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent
they relate to the period till such property, plant and equipment are ready to be put to use.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the case price equivalent at the recognition date. If payment
is deferred beyond normal credit terms, the difference between the cash price equivalent and the total payment is
recognised as interest over the period of credit, unless such interest is capitalised as per borrowing cost.

The Company identifies and determines separate useful life of each major component of the property, plant and
equipment, if they have useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset, as per Schedule Il of
Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Depreciation on all of the property, plant and equipment is provided using the straight line method at the rates prescribed
by Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 and / or useful life estimated by management supported by technical
valuer’s independent assessment. The management believes that depreciation rates currently used fairly reflect its
estimates of the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation commences when the PPE are ready for their intended use. Depreciation on all PPE except land are provided
on a straight line based on the estimated useful life of PPE, which is as follows:

usetulliteof | {0 ettt
Assets :n dpequ\il;a 'ronent as per Managemer:lt
as per Schedule Il supported by Techmcal
Valuer’s Estimate
Buildings :
- with RCC 60 Years
- Temporary Structure (Porta Cabin) 30 Years
- Tubewell / Borewell 5 Years
Plant & Machinery :
- Electric Medical Equipments 13 Years
- Other Medical Equipments 15 Years
- Other Plant & Machinery 15 Years
- Loose Tools & Instruments 5 Years
Office Equipments 5 Years
Computers & Data Processing Units
- Desktop & Laptops 3 Years
- Servers & Network 6 Years
Vehicles 8 Years
Furnitures & Fittings 10 Years
Electrical Installations & Equipments 10 Years
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d)

Leasehold Improvements including renovation done on shared facilities have been depreciated as per the useful life
ascertained or over the primary period of lease / contract, whichever is shorter.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of other consideration given to acquire an asset
at the time of its acquisition or construction, or, when applicable, the amount attributed to that asset when initially
recognised in accordance with the specific requirements of other Indian Accounting Standards.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Goodwill is tested for impairment on annual basis and impairment is carried out whenever there is an indication that
the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount based on a number of factors including business plan, operating
results, future cash flows and economic conditions. The recoverable amount is determined based on higher of value in
use and fair value. The company carried out goodwill impairment test and the management does not believe, that it was
more likely than not the fair value of any of the reporting units was less than the carrying amount.

Software
Cost of software is amortized over a period of 8 years, being the estimated useful life as per the management estimates.
Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an property, plant and equipment
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the
cost of the respective property, plant and equipment. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Impairment

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication based on internal/ external factors that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of assets those are cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and
loss.
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f)

g)

h)

Leases

Where the Company is the lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses whether a
contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:(i) the contract involves the
use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through
the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset(“ROU”)and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or
less(short-term leases)and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the
lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU
assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any
lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment
testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on
an individual asset basis.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental
borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. Lease liability and ROU
asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cost.

Where the Company is the lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets subject to operating leases are included in PPE. Rental income on operating lease is recognized in the statement
of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line
with expected general inflation to compensate for the Company’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases
are recognized in the year in which such benefits accrue benefits accrue.

Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased assets and recognised on
a straight line basis over the lease term.

Inventories

Inventories of Pharmacy Drugs & Other Items, Medical Consumables and the Stores and Spares are valued at lower of
cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs includes cost of purchase and other costs
incurred to bring inventories to their present locations and conditions. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Revenue recognition

The Company derives revenue primarily from Healthcare Services through operating of multi-speciality Hospital.
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i)

Revenue is measured at the transaction price. Revenue is reduced for returns, trade allowances for deduction, rebates,
value added taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Sale of Pharmacy Drugs and Medical Supplies including Traded Goods

Revenue is recognized as and when Pharmacy Drugs, Medical Supplies and Traded goods are sold. Revenue from the sale
of Pharmacy Drugs, Medical Supplies and Traded good are recognised when control of the goods has passed to the buyer
i.e. at the point of sale / to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods. Sale is net of sales returns, discounts and goods & services tax.

Income from Operations

Revenueis recorded when the performance obligation are satisfied. For outpatient customers services are simultaneously
received and consumed by the patient. For inpatient customers, revenue is recognized as serviced are performed over
the period. Revenue for the ongoing services at the reporting date is recognised as unbilled revenue. The income is
stated net of discount and price differences, as per terms of contract.

Interest

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable
interest rate.

Income from Nursing Hostel

Revenue is recognized as per contractual arrangement with nursing staff using the hostel facilities.

Income from Lease Rentals & Outsourced Facilities

Revenue is recognized in accordance with the terms of lease agreements entered into with the respective lessees.

Income from Service Export from India Scheme (SEIS)

Income from ‘Service Export from India Scheme’ is recognized on accrual basis as and when eligible services are
performed and convertible foreign exchange is received on a net basis.

Income from Clinical Research

Income from clinical research is recognised as and when the services are rendered in accordance with the terms of the
respective agreements.

Income from Sponsorships

Sponsorship income is recognized when the underlying obligations are completed as per contractual terms.
Foreign currency transactions

In preparing the financial statements, transaction in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

At the end of each reporting period
i)  Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date,

ii)  Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

iii) Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they
arise except exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings.

Employees Benefits

Short term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving services are classified as short-term employee
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k)

benefits. These benefits include salary and wages, bonus and exgratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee
benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognized as an expense as the related service is rendered by
the employees.

Post employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to
separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes specified obligations towards
employee provident fund and employee state insurance (ESI) to Government administered provident fund scheme and
ESI scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company’s contributions are recognized as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of a defined
benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned and returned for
services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The calculation of
Company’s obligation under the plan is performed periodically by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past
service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it in future
service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. The Company records an obligation for
such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement.
The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

Income taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
i) Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the
Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India.

ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of assets to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is measured based on tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities.
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m)

o)

iii)  Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Expenditure on new projects

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction
period is capitalized as part of the indirect construction cost to the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related
to construction or is incidental thereto. Other indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the
construction period which is not related to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the Statement
of profit and loss.

Earnings Per share

Basic earnings per share is being calculated by dividing net profit or loss for the year (including prior period items, if any)
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their
realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of
classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Financial Instrument

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Financial Assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for financial
assets that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

i)  the assets is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows; and

ii) the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial Assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (except for financial assets that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

i)  theassets is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

ii) the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI). For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI financial assets are treated
as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the amortised cost are recognised
in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of ‘Reserve for financial assets through other comprehensive income’.
When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in this reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the “Other income” line item.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases. The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising
on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item. Dividend on financial assets at
FVTPL is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost
of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at
amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables, and other contractual rights to receive
cash or other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original
effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit impaired financial
assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit
losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance
for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses
are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default
occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next
12 months.

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the previous
period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous period, the Company again measures the
loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead

112



ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES LIMITED

of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available
without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that
are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has
used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a
provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied to debt
instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and is not reduced
from the carrying amount in the balance sheet.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise
been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase
part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the
part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to
the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any
cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated
at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at
amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange differences are recognised in statement of profit and loss since there are no
designated hedging instruments in a hedging relationship.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or then
the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company, and commitments
issued by the Company to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific
accounting policies set out below.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration recognised
by the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or is held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.
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A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
i) it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

ii) oninitial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

iii) itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and
is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in
the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects
of changes in credit risk are recognised in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is
always recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised
in other comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company that are designated by
the Company as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured
at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part
of costs of an asset is included in the ‘Finance costs’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a Company entity are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated
as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

i) the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109; and

ii) the amountinitially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance
with the principles of Ind AS 115.

Commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate

Commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

i) the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109; and

ii) the amountinitially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance
with the principles of Ind AS115.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each
reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments
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p)

q)

s)

t)

and are recognised in ‘Other income’.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the
foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted
for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly,
a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial
difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of
a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Provisions & Contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). When some or all of the economic
benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more of uncertain future events beyond the control of Company or a present obligation
that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the an obligation.
A contingent liability also arises in the extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because
it cannot be measured reliably its existence in the standalone financial statements. Company does not recognize the
contingent liability but disclosed its existence in standalone financial statements.

Government Grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and such grants can reasonably have a value placed upon them.

Government grants are recognised in statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement are comprise of cash at bank and cash in hand and
short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings
in current liabilities in the balance sheet and forms part of financing activities in the cash flow statement. Book overdraft
are shown within other financial liabilities in the balance sheet and forms part of operating activities in the cash flow
statement.

Recent pronouncements

On 24™ March, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through a notification, amended schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division |, Il and Ill of Schedule Il and are applicable from 1% April, 2021.
Key amendments relating to Division Il which relate to companies whose financial statements are required to comply
with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 are:
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Balance Sheet:

Lease Liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head “financial liabilities”, duly distinguished as current
or non-current.

Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share capital due to
prior period rectifications and balances at the beginning of the current reporting period.

Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and intangible
assets under development.

If a Company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financial
institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved schemes of
arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable property not held in
name of the Company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and related
parties, details of benami property held etc.

Current maturities of Long term borrowings shall be disclosed separately under the Short Term Borrowing (Current)
which was earlier shown under Other Financial Liabilities.

Classification of Security Deposits has been reclassed from Loans to Other Financial Assets (Current and non-
Current).”

Statement of Profit and Loss:

Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and crypto or virtual
currency specified under the head ‘additional information’ in the notes forming part of the financial statements.

116




ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES LIMITED

"JapunaJtayl spew sajni ayl pue (886T JO S¥7) 886T 1V (uoniqiyold) suonoesuel)
Iweuag ay) Japun Aladoud tweuaq Aue 3uipjoy 4oy way) isuiede Suipuad Jo paleniul usaqg aAey 1eys ‘, 19y ayl, Japun pataisiSal Auedwo) syl 3ulaq ‘IsuleSe sSuipasdosd ou aJe auBYl ¢

"JuswWaaJge sy} ul 93ss3| ay3 sl Auedwo) ay3 asaym ‘Auedwio) ay3 Jo sweu ay3 Ul S| JuswaaJ8e asea| pue| Yy} ‘pue)
ployases| uo sguip|ing pa3oNJisuod-4|as pue pue| pjoy-ases| 40 30adsal u| ‘Auedwo) ay3 Jo saweu ay3 ul pjay aJte Suip|ing pue pue| jo Suisiidwod santadold ajgerow W] 3y} ||e JO SpPIdpP ML '€

"G 910U 0} J9J3J ‘SSOT pUB 1J0Jd JO JUIWIIE)S Sy} Ul ,uolesiowy pue uopedasda(, Japun papnjdul uaaq sey uoneldaldap jo Junowe 33edai88y ¢

‘(oe €Tyt 2

TZ0T ‘Yd2MBN TE) S8'69% 2 4O dIMD 03 13S0 1sataju| pastdpuest Auedwod ayi YesA ayi Suunp Ysyung spafosd 01 Sunuienad (dIMD) ssasdosd-uipiom |eyded ur 3s0d
8uimouiog siyy pasiended Auedwo)d ayl “(IIN 2 © TZOZ ‘YdIBIN »TE) TTOT “‘YdIBIN »TE PIpud Jedh ayi Sulnp sde] G6'06/ » 4O pasiiended 3501 3uimollog sapnjoul suouppy T

6'8YL'TY |TEELT | TST8STI 99°vET 9t°008 €1°08S G8'6€ GG9/TST vvT9T'ET TTOT ‘YDJBINI ,iTE Je SY
OT'€EE0'TE [96°0ST | GELLT'S S6'86 TL°LEE €9°vEE €¥'SS €9'ST9'8 v T9C'ET T2TOT ‘Y. ,iTE 1€ SY
INTVA Y0049 1IN

6V ¥8T'OT | ¥0'8TT | TLCTC'L €/°TTe €TTLEY 90628 09°1CT ET'8ET'T - TTOT ‘YIBIN ,iTE Je SY
(ts'8se) | (8€s€) |(9z'9gT) (9z°91) (85°04) - - (zo0) - Jeah ayy uuinp pap.edsiq / sjesodsig
LTEBL'T |TEPE | 9€°88TT LS50S LEOL LY'TIT 017 9/°L€T - J1eah sy Joy adieyd
7.°659'8 |[OT'6TT |T90LT'9 T'88¢ A3 65°299 LT°18 6€°006 - TTOT ‘UDJBIN ,iTE Je SY
(e6voT) |(6L'%) |(62°28) (9v'zT) (L€S) (zo0) - - - Jeah ayy Suuinp pap.edsiq / sjesodsig
€/°08L'T |€v'8€ |80°097'T 98'85 vLvSs ¥08ST TL°9€ L8'ELT - Jeak sy Joy adieyd
76'€86'9 | 9¥'S8 | 18166V 0 Tve L0°€8E £5°60S 17 75°92L - 020T ‘YdIeN T€ 18 SY
NOILVID3dd3a

OV'€€6'TS | SE'T6C | TTH08'ST 6€°LSY 89°7€C'T 6T°607'T v 19T 89VTE9T v T9T'ET TTOT ‘YDIBINI ,iTE 3 SY
(8L'6v€) | (1€0L) |(¥9'L8T) (€9°81) (Toes) (00°0) - (0z°0) - Jeak ayy Sulinp papJeosiq / sjesodsiq
9€'065°CT |09°'T6 | 68°E€EV9Y 59'88 ¥S'GES £6°90% ¥8'1C 988619 - suonIppy
78'T69'6E [ 90°0LT | 96°LVEVT LE'L8E ST'0LL TTT00T 09°9€T 209156 v T9T'ET TTOT ‘YdJBIN ,iTE 3 SY
(eLrtzy) | (eTee) |(evese) (vevT) (1s5°21) (£T°0) - - - Jeah ayy uuinp papJedsiq / sjesodsig
G9'69€ 6T'S 12°802 1912 SLTE €501 19vT SLvL - suonIppy
06'0SL'6E | 91'88C | LT'TIS'VI 0T LLE 16'GSL 98166 66'TCT LTTHY'6 v T9T'ET 020T ‘Yd2IeN T€ 18 SY
1S0D @3N33a Y90 1S0D

sjuawdinb3 sjudwdinb3 s24Nnixi4 juawanosduwy pueq
|eloL S92IYaA pue jue|d VWO 1@ ainjuing s191ndwo) ployaseal Suip|ing ployaai4 siejnanied

(soequl }) IN3IINHINDI ANV LNV1d ‘AL¥3d0Yd

T°C 'ON 910N

2202 ‘YdJeA sTE Papua Jeah ay} 1o} SjUawWa)els [eloueuld 0} S910N

117




ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES LIMITED

Note No. 2.2
CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS (in Lacs)
Particulars As At As At
31t March, 2022 31t March, 2021
Opening Balance 8,100.53 5,569.03
Additions during the year 10,733.13 2,904.07
Capitalised during the year 12,622.64 372.57
Closing Balance 6,211.02 8100.53
CWIP ageing schedule as at 31t March, 2022 (X in Lacs)
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars |
Less than 1 2-3 More than 3 Tota
1- 2 years
year years years
Projects in progress 5,492.75 585.41 73.02 59.84 6,211.02
Projects temporarily suspended # - - - - -
Total 5,492.75 585.41 73.02 59.84 6,211.02
CWIP aging schedule as at 31 March, 2021 (X in Lacs)
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Less than 1 2-3 More than 3 Total
1- 2 years
year years years
Projects in progress 3,383.32 982.37 138.73 3,596.11 8,100.53
Projects temporarily suspended # - - - - -
Total 3,383.32 982.37 138.73 3,596.11 8,100.53
# No Projects have been temporarily suspended.
Note No. 2.3
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
(% in Lacs)
Particulars As At As At
31t March, 2022 31t March, 2021
Opening Balance 1,718.06 1,438.59
Addition during the year - 484.37
Deletion during the year - -
Depreciation 256.70 204.90
Closing Balance * 1,461.36 1,718.06

* (Refer Note 32 for disclosure)
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Note No. 2.4
GOODWILL (X in Lacs)
Particulars As At As At
31 March, 2022 31t March, 2021

Opening Balance 4,162.07 4,162.07
Addition during the year - -
Impairment during the year - -
Closing Balance 4,162.07 4,162.07

Impairment testing

For the purpose of annual impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the operating segments expected to benefit from the
synergies of the business combinations in which the goodwill arises as set out below, and is compared to its recoverable value:

Goodwill allocated to operating segments (% in Lacs)
Particulars As At As At
31t March, 2022 31t March, 2021
Health Care Services 4,162.07 4,162.07
4,162.07 4,162.07

Goodwill impairments note

Goodwill is tested annually on 315t March for impairment, or sooner whenever there is an indication that goodwill may be impaired.
Impairment is recognized, when the carrying amount of a CGU including the goodwill, exceeds the estimated recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit (‘CGU’). The estimated value-in-use of this CGU is based on the future cash flow forecasts for FY 2021
to FY 2024 and then on perpetuity based on certain assumptions which include revenue growth, earnings before interest and
taxes, taxes, capital outflow and working capital requirement. The assumptions are taken based on past trends and management
estimates and judgement. Future cash flows are discounted with “Weighted Average Cost of Capital”. The key assumptions are as
follows:

Annual growth rate considered for 5 years (average) 16.03%
Terminal growth rate (i) 4.00%
Post-tax discount rate (ii) 13.70%
Budgeted EBIDTA growth rate considered 19.69%

(i) Terminal value has been arrived at by extrapolating the last forecasted year cash flows to perpetuity. This long-term growth
rate takes into consideration external macroeconomic sources of data. Such long-term growth rate considered does not
exceed that of the relevant business and industry sector.

(i) The after tax discount rates used are based on the Company’s weighted average cost of capital. Weighted Average Cost of
Capital % (WACC) = Risk free return + (Market premium x Beta for the company).

The estimate of recoverable amount is particularly sensitive towards post-tax discount rate and terminal growth rate. There will
be no impairment even if the weighted average cost of capital is increased by .5% and the terminal growth rate is decreased by
.5%. Management is not currently aware of any other reasonably possible changes to key assumptions that would cause a unit’s

carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

Note No. 2.5
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (% in Lacs)
Particulars As At As At
31t March, 2022 31t March, 2021

COST OR DEEMED COST Computer Software | Computer Software
Opening Balance 645.47 642.72
Addition during the year 32.27 2.92
Deletion during the year - (0.17)
Closing Balance 677.74 645.47
AMORTIZATION
Opening Balance 376.77 297.24
Addition during the year 68.23 79.59
Deletion during the year - (0.06)
Closing Balance 444.99 376.77
NET BOOK VALUE 232.75 268.70
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Note No. 2.6
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT (% in Lacs)
Particulars As At As At
31 March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
Opening Balance - i
Addition during the year 194.02 -
Capitalised during the year - -
Closing Balance * 194.02 -

Other Intangible assets under development ageing schedule as at 31 March, 2022 (% in Lacs)
Amount for a period of
Particulars Total
Less than 1-2 years | 2-3years More than 3
1year years
Other Intangible assets under development 194.02 - - - 194.02
Total 194.02 - - - 194.02
(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31 March, 2022 | 31t March, 2021
Financial Assets
3.1 | Investments (Non-Current)
Unquoted Investments
Investment in Equity Instruments (at cost)
Investment in Subsidiary Company
i) Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited 559.00 429.00
55,90,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each
(42,90,000 as at 31t March, 2021 Equity Shares of
¥ 10/- each) (all fully paid)
Total 559.00 429.00
Aggregate value of unquoted investment 559.00 429.00
3.2 | Loans
Non Current
(Unsecured, Considered good)
Others
Loans & advances to Employees * 27.57 56.87
Total 27.57 56.87
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Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31t March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
Current
(Unsecured, Considered good)
Others
Loans & advances to Employees * 78.42 53.45
Total 78.42 53.45
* Loans & advances to Employees includes dues 43.00 61.50
from Executive Director, KMP etc. (Refer Note 31)
(As a part of service condition extended to all its eligible employees)
(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31 March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
3.3 | Other Financial Assets
Non Current
Security Deposits 263.10 203.08
Fixed Deposit in banks having original maturity and
remaining maturity of more than 12 months ** 48.00 18.67
(Refer Note 9)
Total 311.10 221.75
Current
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 13.08 17.01
Other receivables# 66.79 66.68
Unbilled Revenue (Accrued operating income) 571.99 445.41
Total 651.86 529.10
** Given as security to secure bank guarantee issued to Government Authorities.
# Receivables from the private limited company, in which director of the company is director.
(Refer Note 31)
(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31 March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
4. [ Non-Current Tax Assets (Net)
Income Tax Recoverable (Net of provision for taxation) 2,091.48 1,643.43
Total 2,091.48 1,643.43

(Aggregate amount of Tax Provisions as on 31% March, 2022 ¥ 1678.82 Lacs (Previous year ¥ 854.30 Lacs)
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(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31t March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
5. Other Assets
Non-Current (Unsecured, Considered good)
Capital Advances # 469.32 685.10
Prepaid Expenses 8.96 6.72
Total 478.28 691.82
Current (Unsecured, Considered good)
Advances recoverable 26.80 55.87
Balances with statutory / government authorities 14.58 28.44
Prepaid Expenses 141.53 141.84
Export Incentive receivable 500.00 652.90
Total 682.91 879.05
# includes advances given to the private limited company, in which director of the company is director.
(Refer Note 31)
(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31 March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
6. Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Stock of Pharmacy Drugs & Medical Consumables 1,076.67 842.64
Stock in Trade (Pharmacy and Other Items) 0.18 13.56
Stores & Spares 97.94 70.46
Total 1,174.79 926.66
(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31t March, 2022 | 31t March, 2021
7. Trade Receivables
Current - at amortised cost
Considered good 7,570.14 5,989.62
Significant increase Credit in Risk 94.98 113.04
Credit Impaired - -
Less: Allowance for credit losses (701.62) (805.32)
Total 6,963.50 5,297.34
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(% in Lacs)
7.1 Trade Receivables ageing schedule
Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule as at 31 March, 2022
Outstanding for following Periods from due date of payments
Not due tl:-::sﬁ mo?\ths Y:-azrs yz-a?:‘s t“:ac:z Total
Month | -1year years

Undisputed Trade Receivables— considered good | 2,491.30(3,153.34| 797.65|511.23| 352.08 264.54| 7,570.14
Undisputed Trade Receivables— which have - - - - - 94.98 94.98
significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade Receivables— credit impaired - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables — which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade Receivables— credit impaired - - - - - - -
Total 2,491.30|3,153.34| 797.65(511.23|352.08 359.52| 7,665.12
Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule as at 31 March, 2021 (% in Lacs)

Outstanding for following Periods from due date of payments

Less 6 1-2 2.3 More
Not due | then 6 | months Years ears than 3 Total
Month | -1year y years
Undisputed Trade Receivables— considered good | 1,946.07 (2,006.08| 432.16|653.51| 264.14 687.66| 5,989.62
Undisputed Trade Receivables— which have - - - - - 113.04 113.04
significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade Receivables— credit impaired - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables — which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade Receivables— credit impaired - - - - - - -
Total 1,946.07(2,006.08| 432.16(653.51| 264.14 800.70( 6,102.66
7.2 Trade Receivables Includes : (% in Lacs)
Particulars As At As At
. 31% March 2022 | 31* March 2021
- Dues from KMP’s and Enterprises owned or significantly influenced. 108.92 85.42

7.3 As per Ind AS 109, the Company is required to apply expected credit loss model for recognizing the allowance for doubtful
debts. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss on portfolio of its trade receivable. The provision
matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for
forward-looking estimates. At regular intervals, the historically observed default rates are updated and changes in forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The Company uses judgements in making certain assumptions and selecting inputs to determine impairment of these trade
receivables, based on the Company’s historical experience towards potential billing adjustments, delays and defaults at the
end of each reporting period.
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The Company has recorded an allowance of ¥ 701.62 Lacs (Previous year I 805.32 Lacs) towards trade receivables. The
Management elieves that there is no further provision required in excess of the allowance for credit loss.

The movement in allowance for expected credit loss in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

(% in Lacs)
. As At As At
Allowance for expected credit loss 31% March, 2022 31% March, 2021
Opening balance 805.32 497.69
Credit loss created /(reversed) -103.69 307.63
Closing balance 701.62 805.32

7.4 The Company’s exposure to currency risks related to trade receivables are disclosed in note ( Refer Note 36).

7.5 Refer Note 12 for information on trade receivable hypothecated as security by the Company.

7.6 No single customer accounted for more than 10% of the revenue as of 31 March, 2022 & 31t March, 2021. There is no

S

ignificant concentration of credit risk.

(X in Lacs)
Note particulars As At As At
No. 31t March, 2022 31 March, 2021
8. Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balance with Banks:
- In Current Accounts 1,443.57 953.71
- Bank deposit with original maturity of three
months or less. - 600.00
Cash on hand 67.87 135.14
Total 1,511.44 1,688.85
(% in Lacs)
Note particulars As At As At
No. 31% March, 2022 31t March, 2021
9. Other Bank Balances
Fixed Deposit in banks having original maturity of more than
3 months and remaining maturity of less than 12 months* 1,199.91 1,195.78
Fixed Deposit in banks having original maturity of more than
12 months and remaining maturity of more than 12 months* 48.00 18.67
Amount disclosed under Other Non-Current Financial Assets (48.00) (18.67)
Total 1,199.91 1,195.78

*Given as security of ¥ 148.37 Lacs (Previous Year ¥ 128.52 Lacs) to secure bank guarantee issued to Government Authorities.

(% in Lacs)
Note particulars As At As At
No. 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
10. | Share Capital:
Authorised Shares (in nos.)
69,55,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 1/- Each # 6,955.00 6,955.00
(6,95,50,000 as at 31 March, 2021 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- Each)
11% Non-Cumulative 50,000 Preference Shares of ¥ 100/- Each 50.00 50.00

(50,000 as at 31 March, 2021 Preference Shares of ¥ 100/- Each)
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Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Shares (in nos.)
13,23,77,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 1/- Each #
(1,32,37,700 as at 31 March, 2021 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid up) 1,323.77 1,323.77
Total Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Capital 1,323.77 1,323.77
a. Reconciliation of the equity shares at the beginning and at the end of the year (% in Lacs)
As At As At
Reconciliation 31t March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Nos. (% in Lacs) Nos. (% in Lacs)
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,32,37,700 1,323.77 | 1,32,37,700 1,323.77
Share Split from face value of ¥ 10/- to ¥ 1/- each equity 11,91,39,300 -
shares (refer # below).
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 13,23,77,000 1,323.77 | 1,32,37,700 1,323.77

b. Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 1 per share (31 March, 2021 % 10 per share). Each
holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share, where voting is held by show of hands. In case of Poll each holder
of equity share is entitled to Number of votes against Number of shares held.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares

held by the equity share holders.

c.  Shares held by holding / ultimate holding company and / or their subsidiaries / associates:

As At 31 March, 2022 As At 31 March, 2021
Name of the Shareholder
No. of Shares # | (ZinLacs) | No. of Shares | (3in Lacs)
Constructive Finance Private Limited - holding company 9,24,25,790 924.26 92,42,579 924.26
d. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Equity Shares in the Company:
As At 31t March, 2022 As At 31 March, 2021
Name of the Shareholder % of % of
No. of Shares # . No. of Shares .
Holding Holding
Constructive Finance Private Limited - holding company 9,24,25,790 69.82% 92,42,579 69.82%
Governor of Kerala 67,49,500 5.10% 6,74,950 5.10%

e. Shares reserved for issue under options

Pursuant to approved employee stock option scheme 2020, the Company has granted 69,67,000 nos of employees stock
options of which none of the options have been exercised. Also refer Note 45.

f. Shares held by promotors :

Name of the Shareholder

As At 31t March, 2022

As At 31 March, 2021

No. of Shares #

% of

No. of Shares

% of

Holding Holding
Onkar Kanwar 5,000 0.00% 500 0.00%
Constructive Finance Private Limited 9,24,25,790 69.82% 92,42,579 69.82%
Total 9,24,30,790 69.82% 92,43,079 69.82%

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declaration received from the
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.
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There has been no change in promoter shareholding at the end of current year as compared to previous year end.

# The Board of Directors of Artemis Medicare Services Limited (‘Company’) in its meeting held on 5" August, 2021, approved
a proposal for sub-division of the face value of the equity shares of the Company from ¥ 10 per equity share to ¥ 1 per
equity share i.e. 1 equity share to be split into 10 equity shares. Subsequent to the approval of the above proposal by the
shareholders of the Company, the record date was fixed as 24 September, 2021 and thereafter the sub-division became
effective.

(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31 March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
11. | Other Equity :
Capital Reserve
Balance as per last financial statements 14,457.89 14,457.89
Closing Balance (A) 14,457.89 14,457.89
Revaluation Reserve
Balance as per last financial statements 6,638.97 6,598.31
Add : Deferred tax adjustment on revaluation 54.22 40.66
Closing Balance (B) 6,693.18 6,638.97
Retained earnings
Balance as per last financial statements 9,804.76 9,096.05
Add : Profit / (Loss) for the year 3,257.74 708.71
Closing Balance (C) 13,062.49 9,804.76
Items of OCI re-measurement
Balance as per last financial statements (63.37) (69.03)
Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans (refer note (117.64) 8.70
35)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 29.61 (3.04)
Balance at end of year (D) (151.40) (63.37)
Share option outstanding account
Balance as per last financial statements - -
Additions during the years 775.26 -
Closing Balance (E) 775.26 -
Total Other Equity (A+B+C+ 34,837.43 30,838.24
D+E)

Capital Reserve

Capital reserve represents excess of assets over liabilities and share issued consequent to scheme of arrangement of
transferor companies in earlier years.

Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation Reserve represents freehold land revalued as on 31 March, 2016 as per independent valuer report.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings represents the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfer of general reserve, dividends
or other distributions to shareholders etc.

Share option outstanding account

The share options outstanding account is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under
the Company’s Employee stock option plan. Refer note 45.
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(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31t March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
12. | Borrowings
Non Current Borrowings
Term Loans
From Banks
—alnadniqaonr::epdeiolsota)ns from Banks (secured 15,257.31 9,877.04
Total 15,257.31 9,877.04
Current Maturity
Term Loans
From Banks
- Indian Rupee loans from Banks (secured) 2,018.09 1,894.03
(at amortised cost)
Transferred to (Borrowing) (Note 15) (2,018.09) (1,894.03)
Total - -

1. Indian Rupee Loans from Banks include :

a)

b)

Term loans* of ¥ 17270.15 Lacs (As at 31 March, 2021 % 11721.73 Lacs) from Scheduled Bank carries interest as
linked with Base Rate of banks.The loans are secured by first pari passu charge over Land & Building located at Sector
51, Gurgaon, Haryana and charge over all movable fixed assets, both present & future and second pari passu charge on

current assets.

(% in Lacs)
* Term Loans As At As At
31t March, 2022 | 31t March, 2021
HDFC Bank Ltd 7,308.63 6,001.72
IDFC Bank Ltd 4,067.33 3,294.39
Axis Bank Ltd. 5,894.19 2,425.62
Total 17,270.15 11,721.73

Vehicle Loans of ¥ 5.24 Lacs (As at 31 March, 2021 ¥ 49.34 Lacs) from Scheduled Bank carries interest as linked with
Banks prime lending rate (PLR). The loan is secured on exclusive charge on the vehicles financed out of the said term

loan.
Repayment Schedule FY 2022-23 | FY2023-24 | FY2024-25 | FY2025-26 after

FY 2025-26
Secured Loan
Term Loan - HDFC Bank Limited 1,580.09 1,130.08 558.60 698.14 3,434.49
Term Loan - Axis Bank Limited 179.80 359.59 539.39 719.19 4,195.27
Term Loan - IDFC First Bank Limited 252.96 500.26 602.58 670.79 2,054.92
Vehicle Loan - HDFC Bank Limited 5.24 - - - -
Processing Cost IND-AS adjustments (34.55) (34.98) (34.42) (31.45) (70.60)
Total 1,983.54 1,954.97 1,666.15 2,056.67 9,614.08
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(% in Lacs)
As At As At
NN°‘e Particulars 31% March, 2022 31% March, 2021
o.
Non-Current Current Non-Current Current
13. [ Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits
Leave Benefits 216.22 109.58 187.43 97.64
Gratuity 604.08 272.31 470.63 200.74
(Refer Note 35)
Other Provisions
Provision for Contingencies - 670.77 - 719.52
(Refer Note 40)
Total 820.30 1,052.66 658.06 1,017.90
(% in Lacs)
. Credit / Credit / (Charge)
14 Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) As at (Charge) to to Other As at
) in relation to: 1% April, 2020 . & Comprehensive | 31 March, 2021
Profit or loss
Income

Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) (Net)
The following is the analysis of deferred
tax assets / liabilities Recognised in profit
and loss account and other comprehensive
income
Property, plant and equipment (5,137.26) 182.03 40.66 (4,914.57)
(including intangible assets)
Other provisions 238.36 13.10 - 251.46
Allowance for I?oubtful Debts 173.92 107.49 i 28141
(Expected credit loss)
Employee Benefits 302.15 35.11 (3.04) 334.22
Lease Liability 535.31 139.59 - 674.90
MAT Credit Entitlement 778.80 (658.10)* - 120.70
Fair Value Adjustments (0.61) 6.70 - 6.09
Others 164.15 98.76 - 262.91
Total (2,945.18) (75.32) 37.62 (2,982.88)
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(% in Lacs)
Credit / Credit / (Charge)
14 Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) i As at (Charge) to to Other As at
’ n relation to: 1% April, 2021 X Comprehensive | 31 March, 2022
Profit or loss
Income

Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) (Net)
The following is the analysis of deferred
tax assets / liabilities Recognised in profit
and loss account and other comprehensive
income
Property, plant and equipment
. T . (4,914.57) 924.46 54.22 (3,935.90)
(including intangible assets)
Other provisions 251.46 (82.62) - 168.84
Allowance for Doubtful Debts
(Expected credit loss) 281.41 (104.83) - 176.58
Employee Benefits 334.22 (61.26) 29.61 302.57
Lease Liability 674.90 (230.97) - 443.93
MAT Credit Entitlement 120.70 (120.70)* - (0.00)
Fair Value Adjustments 6.09 2.71 - 8.80
Others 262.91 (125.43) - 137.48
Total (2,982.88) 201.37 83.82 (2,697.70)

Note : Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset as they are governed by the same taxation laws

* Including MAT credit write off of ¥ 175.83 Lacs as per section 115 JB (5A) (ii) of Income Tax Act 1961. (Previous year ¥ 435.55 Lacs
forming part of MAT Credit Utilisation)

(% in Lacs)
Note particulars As At As At
No. 31t March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
15. | Borrowings
Term Loan (current maturity) (Refer Note 12) 2,018.09 1,894.03
Total 2,018.09 1,894.03
Note 15.1

(The Company has been sanctioned overdraft credit limit of ¥ 40 Cr including ¥ 10 Cr non-fund based limit. It carries interest rate
linked with 3 Months MCLR and are repayable on demand. The Overdraft limit is secured by 1% Pari passu charge on current assets
and 2" pari passu charge on movable & Immovable fixed assets, both present & future).

(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31t March, 2022 | 31t March, 2021
16. | Trade payables
Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 1,289.52 1,099.10
(Refer Note 33)
'é'(r)’ttaelrr(?rlijst:zandlng dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small 4,503.12 4,486.71
Total 5,792.64 5,585.81
Note .16.1: Trade Payables ageing schedule (% in Lacs)
Outstanding for following Periods from
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule as at 31 March, 2022 due date of payments
<1Year | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years | >3 Years Total
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 1,289.52 - - - 1,289.52
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 3,810.90 236.86 163.56 291.80 4,503.12
Disputed Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises - - - - -
Disputed Dues to Others - - - - -
Total 5,100.42 236.86 163.56 291.80 5,792.64
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Trade Payables Ageing Schedule as at 31 March, 2021

(% in Lacs)

Outstanding for following Periods from
due date of payments

<1Year | 1-2Years | 2-3 Years | >3 Years Total
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 1,099.10 - - - 1,099.10
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 3,346.50 641.64 196.30 302.27 4,486.71
Disputed Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises - - - - -
Disputed Dues to Others - - - - -
Total 4,445.60 641.64 196.30 302.27 5,585.81
(% in Lacs)
Note particulars As At As At
No. 31 March, 2022 | 31* March, 2021
17. | Other Financial Liabilities (secured)
Current
Other Payable # 1,764.82 884.83
Interest Accrued but not due on borrowings 47.56 42.05
Total 1,812.38 926.88
# Other payable includes payments due on account of capital items, due to employees.
(% in Lacs)
Note particulars As At As At
No. 31t March, 2022 | 31t March, 2021
18. | Other Liabilities
Current
Advance from Patients / Others * 1,080.48 939.66
Taxes and Other Statutory Dues * * 512.03 413.76
Security Deposits 307.55 315.18
Deferred Government Grant * * * 464.18 190.98
Total 2,364.24 1,859.58

* Advance from Patients/ Others for which the company is obliged to transfer services to the patients/ Others.

* ¥

Taxes and other statutory dues includes Withholding Tax, Goods & Services Tax and contribution of P F, ESI etc.

* * * During the year, the company has obtained EPCG License against import of fixed assets. The company has recognised this
grant as deferred income at fair value, which is being amortised in proportion to fulfillment of Export Obligation (Refer note

39B).
(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31 March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
19. | Revenue from Operations
Sale of Services
Revenue from Healthcare & Other Services 52,888.49 39,160.03
Sale of Goods
Sale of Pharmacy Drugs & Medical Consumables 1,318.07 766.75
Sale of Stock in Trade (Pharmacy) 26.54 84.13
Other Operating Income
Income from Nursing Hostel 26.52 30.73
Income from Education & Training 96.21 71.37
Unclaimed credit balances / provisions no longer
required written back 82.87 85.48
Sale of Scrap 39.69 7.88
Total 54,478.40 40,206.37
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(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
20. Other Income
Interest Income 146.86 183.37
- From Bank deposits 136.52 134.23
- From Financial Assets carried at amortised cost 9.80 6.89
- From Others (including interest on tax refunds) 0.54 42.25
Income from outsource activities (Cafeteria, Parking etc.) 72.72 36.63
Other Non-Operating Income (net of reimbursements) 119.75 105.54
Foreign Exchange Gain (Net) 49.14 29.02
Total 388.47 354.56
(% in Lacs)
Note particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31t March, 2022 31t March, 2021
21. Operative Expenses
Material and Consumables 15,243.98 11,412.72
Outsource Lab Test Charges 339.44 364.44
Fees to Doctors and Consultation 12,208.55 9,023.29
Professional Medical Consultancy 3,025.83 2,248.19
Power, Fuel and Water Expenses 1,289.78 923.45
Housekeeping and Catering 982.82 748.98
Securities Expenses 243.24 209.92
Linen and Uniform 203.84 157.04
Total 33,537.48 25,088.03
(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
22. (Increase) / Decrease in Inventories of
Stock in Trade
Inventories at the beginning of the year 13.56 59.20
Inventories at the end of the year 0.18 13.38 13.56 45.64
Total 13.38 45.64
(% in Lacs)
Note particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31t March, 2022 31t March, 2021
23. Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages and Bonus* 9,337.48 7,506.70
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 478.00 402.00
Gratuity Expenses (Refer note 35) 154.71 132.17
Employee Welfare Expenses 249.77 207.78
Total 10,219.95 8,248.65

*Incudes expenses related to share based payment of ¥ 775.26 lacs (Previous Year : NIL)
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(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31 March, 2022 31t March, 2021
24. Finance Costs
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost
- On term Loans 685.08 850.15
- On lease liability 170.41 167.93
Other Interest Expense 0.70 1.44
Bank Charges (Including Other Borrowing Costs) 260.42 207.37
Total 1,116.61 1,226.89
(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31t March, 2022 31 March, 2021
25. Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,783.27 1,780.73
Amortization of intangible assets 68.23 79.59
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets 256.70 204.90
Total 2,108.20 2,065.22
(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
26. | Other expenses
Consumption of stores & spares 150.07 103.50
Rent - Lease Rent 53.76 29.28
Equipment Hire Charges 197.36 146.95
Repairs and Maintenance - Machinery 1,236.58 958.08
Repairs and Maintenance - Buildings 177.22 19.56
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 201.12 165.85
Rates & Taxes 98.26 73.73
Legal & Professional Consultation Fees 405.28 330.02
AGM & Annual Listing Expenses 26.44 21.28
Printing & Stationery 129.41 110.30
Provision for Contingencies - 37.49
Travelling & Conveyance 249.20 162.29
Advertisement & Business Promotion 195.12 78.49
Patients Amenities 24.83 43.94
Communication Expenses 55.45 58.34
Charity & Donation 27.06 21.49
Insurance 78.09 73.40
Clinical Research Expenses 320.73 331.02
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Current Tax

(a) In respect of the current year
(b) Earlier years tax

Total

Deferred Tax

(a) In respect of the current year

Tax expense recognised through statement of profit and loss
account

Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)

Deferred tax

In respect of the current year

Tax credit recognised through Other Comprehensive Income

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
accounting profit as follows:

Profit before tax

Enacted income tax rate in India

Income tax calculated

Earlier years Tax

Expenses not allowed for tax purposes

Additional allowances for tax purposes

Effect of Other Adjustments

Income tax expense recognised in profit and loss
Effective Tax Rate

Note Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

No. 315t March, 2022 31t March, 2021
Auditors Remuneration
- Audit Fee 7.67 11.51
- Limited Review 8.85 3.89
- Tax Audit Fee 2.36 2.89
- Others Services & Certification 1.93 1.72
Directors Sitting Fees 28.17 33.21
CSR Expenses 53.71 78.19
Balance written off Export Incentive 152.90 -
Newspaper & Periodicals 29.95 19.12
Bad Debts Written Off 113.04 22.42
Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (103.69) 307.63
Loss on Sale / Scrap of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) 46.57 19.24
Miscellaneous Expenses 13.27 24.66
Total 3,980.71 3,289.49

TAX EXPENSE (% in Lacs)
Note Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
27. | Recognised in Statement of Profit and loss account

824.52 670.51
(55.13) 94.14
769.39 764.65
(146.24) (582.77)
623.15 181.88
(83.82) (37.62)
(83.82) (37.62)
3,880.89 890.59
25.17% 34.944%
976.74 311.21
(55.13) 94.14
142.12 375.53
(500.84) (490.22)
60.26 (108.78)
623.16 181.88
16.06% 20.42%
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Note No.
28. Segmental Reporting

Operating segments

Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” (“Ind AS 108”) establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report
information about operating segments and related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major
customers. Based on the “management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108, Operating segments are to be reported in a
manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).The CODM evaluates
the Company’s performance and allocates resources on overall basis. The Company’s sole operating segment is therefore
‘Medical and Healthcare Services’. Accordingly, there are no additional disclosure to be provided under Ind AS 108, other than
those already provided in the financial statements.

Geographical information

Geographical information analyses the Company’s revenue and non current assets by the Company’s country of domicile (i.e.
India) and other countries. In presenting the geographical information, segment revenue has been based on the geographical
location of the customers and segment assets which have been based on the geographical location of the assets.

Secondary Segment - Geographical Location of customers

India Outside India Total
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
(% in Lacs) (% in Lacs) (% in Lacs) (% in Lacs) (% in Lacs) (R in Lacs)
Revenue by geographical 44,952.20 34,051.67 9,526.20 6,154.70 54,478.40 40,206.37
markets
Non current assets 56,579.91 47,617.70 - - 56,579.91 47,617.70
29. Capital and Other Commitments (% in Lacs)

a) Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed

As at 31 March, 2022

As at 31 March, 2021

on capital account not provided for (Net of Advances) >,208.84 8,206.98
b) Other Commitments
i) i) For commitments relating to lease arrangement,
please refer Note 32.
ii)  ii) The Company does not have any long term commitments or material non-cancellable contractual commitments/

contracts, including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

30. Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

i) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year ended 315 March, 2022 ¥ 53.35 lacs
(during the year ended 315 March, 2021 ¥ 71.65 lacs)

ii)  Amount approved by board of directors ¥ 53.35 lacs (Previous year 71.65 lacs)

iii)  Amount spent during the year ended 31t March, 2022 :

(% in Lacs)

Particulars Paid (A) | Yet to be paid (B) | Total (A+B)
(i) Construction / acquisition of any property, plant and equipment - - -
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 53.71 - 53.71
78.19* - 78.19*

*For the year ended 31 March, 2021
iv)  Details of related party transactions :

a) Contribution during the year ended 31 March, 2022

b) Payable as at 315t March, 2022
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(v) Details of ongoing CSR projects under section 135(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (% in Lacs)
For the year ended
31 March, 2022
Balance as at 1t April, 2021
With the Company -
In separate CSR Unspent account -
Amount required to be spent during the period 47.16
47.16
Amount spent during the period
From the Companies bank account 47.16
From separate CSR Unspent account -
47.16
Balance as at 31 March, 2022
With the Company -
In separate CSR Unspent account -
(vi) Details of CSR expenditure under section 135(5) of the Act in respect of other than ongoing projects (% in Lacs)
For the year ended
31t March, 2022
Balance as at 1* April, 2021 -
Amount required to be spent during the period 6.55
Amount deposited in a specified fund of Schedule VII of the Act with in 6 months - -
Amount spent during the period/year (6.55)
Balance as at 315t March, 2022 -
(vii) Details of excess CSR expenditure under section 135(5) of the Act (% in Lacs)
For the year ended
31t March, 2022
Balance excess spent as at 1% April, 2021 -
Amount required to be spent during the period 53.35
Amount spent during the year (53.71)
Balance excess spent as at 31% March, 2022 (0.36)

31. Related party disclosure
a) Name of related parties

(i) Holding Company Constructive Finance Private Limited
(ii) Parties where control exists irrespective of whether transactions have occurred or not
Subsidiary Company Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited

(iii) Other Related Parties:

Directors and Key Management

Mr. Onkar Kanwar (Chairman)
Personnel
Dr. Devlina Chakravarty (Managing Director)

Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Kothari (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Rakesh Kaushik (Chief Legal Officer & Company Secretary) (up to 21 Oct,
2020)
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Relatives of Key Managerial
Personnel#

Non-Executive Directors

Enterprises owned or Jointly
Controlled Entities of Promoter -
Promoter Group##

Ms. Shilpa Budhia (Company Secretary) (from 5% Nov, 2020)
Mr. Neeraj Kanwar (Non-Executive Director)

Mrs. Shalini Kanwar Chand (Non-Executive Director)
Mrs. Taru Kanwar

Mrs. Devarchana Rana

Dr. Nirmal Kumar Ganguly (Non-Executive Director)

Dr. S. Narayan (Independent Director)

Dr. Sanjaya Baru (Independent Director)

Mr. Akshay Kumar Chudasama (Independent Director) (upto 4™ Aug, 2020)
Ms. Deepa Gopalan Wadhwa (from 22" May, 2020)

Mr. Sunil Tandon (Independent Director) (upto 9% Oct, 2020)
Mr. Sanjib Sen (Independent Director) (from 3™ Aug, 2020)

Mr. Ugar Sain Anand (Independent Director) (upto 9t Oct, 2020)
Dr. Gautam Chaudhuri (from 3™ Aug, 2020 till 8" Mar, 2021)
Apollo Tyres Limited

Apollo International Limited

Artemis Health Sciences Foundation
Artemis Education & Research Foundation
Swaranganga Consultants Private Limited
Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Apollo Tyres Centre of Excellence Limited

## where transactions have taken place during the year or previous year / balances outstanding.

Notes: Related parties and their relationships are as identified by the management and relied upon by
the auditors. All transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s length.
b) Transactions during the year (% in Lacs)
Particulars Holding Subsidiary Key Management | Enterprises owned
Company Company Personnel and or significantly
their relatives influenced by
key management
personnel or their
relatives
31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31
March, | March, | March, | March, | March, | March, | March, March,
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Reimbursement of Expenses Received
Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited - - 61.81 1.17 - - - -
Corporate Guarantee Fee
Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited - - 0.78 0.63 - - - -
Inter-corporate Loan Given
Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited - - - 60.00 - - - -
Inter-corporate Loan Repaid
Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited - - - 60.00 - - - -
Interest on Inter-corporate Loan
Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited - - - 0.78 - - - -
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Particulars Holding Subsidiary Key Management | Enterprises owned
Company Company Personnel and or significantly
their relatives influenced by
key management
personnel or their
relatives
31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31
March, | March, | March, | March, | March, | March, | March, March,
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Investment in Subsidiary
Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited - -1 130.00| 260.00 - - - -
Sale of Goods / Fixed Assets
Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited
- Pharmacy drugs & consumables - - - 6.12 - - - -
- Property, plant & equipment - - -1 316.79 - - - -
CSR Expenses
Artemis Health Sciences Foundation - - - - - - 6.55 2.54
Recovery of Loans & Advances
Dr. Devlina Chakravarty - - - - 12.00 12.00 - -
Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Kothari - - - - 6.00 6.00 - -
Lease Expenses *
Apollo Tyres Centre of Excellence - - - - - - 0.53 -
Limited
Swaranganga Consultants Private - - - - - - 1.94 2.64
Limited
Charges for support services
Artemis Education Research - - - - - - 18.86 17.43
Foundation
Sale of Services / License
Total Transactions - - - - 16.13 43.00 957.49 233.79
Transactions in excess of 10%
---- Apollo Tyres Limited - - - - - - 949.55 225.42
Purchase of services / goods *
Apollo Tyres Limited - - - - - - 7.08 7.08
Mrs. Devarchana Rana - - - - 7.35 5.41 - -
Dr. Nirmal Kumar Ganguly - - - - 19.80 20.17 - -
Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private - - - - - -| 4,170.72 | 4,212.96
Limited
Donation Paid
Artemis Education & Research - - - - - - 20.00 18.00
Foundation
Artemis Health Sciences Foundation - - - - - - 7.06 3.49
Directors’ Sitting Fees paid
Mr. Onkar Kanwar - - - - 2.20 2.80 - -
Mr. Neeraj Singh Kanwar - - - - 2.80 2.80 - -
Mrs.Shalini Kanwar Chand - - - - 2.80 3.80 - -
Dr. S. Narayan - - - - 2.20 4.60 - -
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Particulars Holding Subsidiary Key Management | Enterprises owned
Company Company Personnel and or significantly
their relatives influenced by
key management
personnel or their
relatives
31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31
March, | March, | March, | March, | March, | March, | March, March,
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Dr. Sanjaya Baru - - - - 2.30 3.00 - -
Dr. Nirmal Kumar Ganguly - - - - 3.20 2.80 - -
Mr. Sunil Tandon - - - - 2.60 1.00 - -
Mr. Ugar Sain Anand - - - - - 1.40 - -
Mr. Akshay Kumar Chudasama - - - - - 1.80 - -
Ms. Deepa Gopalan Wadhwa - - - - 3.40 2.60 - -
Mr. Sanjib Sen - - - - 2.40 1.70 - -
Key management personnel-
Compensation
Dr. Devlina Chakravarty - - - -| 475.29 | 493.99 - -
Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Kothari - - - - 75.96 69.27 - -
Mr. Rakesh Kaushik - - - - - 48.55 - -
Ms. Shilpa Budhia - - - - 24.41 11.27 - -
Defined benefit obligation as at year
end
Post-employment benefits - - - - 87.99 78.18 - -
Short-term benefits - - - - 26.66 25.55 - -
Total - - - -1 114.65| 103.73 - -
Dr. Devlina Chakravarty - - - - 93.26 89.16 - -
Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Kothari - - - - 20.10 14.22 - -
Ms. Shilpa Budhia - - - - 1.29 0.35 -
Total - - - -| 114.65| 103.73 - -
* Transactions are reported including taxes.
(% in Lacs)
Balance Payable Name of Entity 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Key Management Personnel and | Relatives of Director & KMP - -
their relatives
Dr. Nirmal Kumar Ganguly - 0.76
Enterprises owned or significantly | Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private 256.27 404.39
influenced by key management | Limited
personnel or their relatives
(% in Lacs)
Balance Recoverable Name of Entity 31t March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Key Management Personnel Relatives of Director & KMP 7.39 7.97
and their relatives .
Dr. Devlina Chakravarty 27.01 32.56
Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Kothari 12.87 18.87
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Balance Recoverable Name of Entity 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Enterprises owned or Apollo Tyres Limited 59.63 16.85
significantly influenced by key . o

Apollo International Limited 2.02 9.17
management personnel or
their relatives Artemis Education & Research Foundation 11.11 11.11
Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited 66.79 66.68
Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited 1,500.00 1,500.00
(Corporate Guarantee Outstanding)
32. Leases
a. Movement of Lease Liabilities during the year (% in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31t March, 2022 | 31t March, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,931.37 1,531.90
Addition during the year (3.24) 474.07
Finance cost accrued during the year 170.41 167.93
Payment of Lease Liability (164.26) (242.53)
Balance at the end of the year 1,934.28 1,931.37
Impact on the statement of profit or loss ( increase / (decrease) ) (% in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31t March, 2022 31t March, 2021
Depreciation expense 256.70 204.90
Rent expense (included in Other expenses) (164.26) (242.53)
Finance Cost 170.41 167.93
Loss (profit) for the year 262.85 130.31
b. The following is the cash outflow on lease during year (% in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2022 31t March, 2021
Payment of lease liabilities 334.66 242.53
Short term lease expense 53.76 29.28
Total Cash outflow on leases 388.43 271.80
c. The table below provides detail regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on undiscounted cases
(% in Lacs)
particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31t March, 2022 31t March, 2021
Less than 1 year 397.68 388.42
1to5years 932.79 1,091.78
Over 5 years 1,929.32 2,116.68
Total Cash outflow on leases 3,259.79 3,596.88
d. The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regards to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient
to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when fall due.
e. Lease payments during the period have been disclosed under financing activities in the Standalone Statement of Cash

flows.
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33. The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been identified by the Group from the available information, which has been
relied upon by the auditors. According to such identification, the disclosures as per Section 22 of “The Micro, Small and

Medium Enterprise Development (MSMED) Act, 2006” are as follows:

Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006 Year Ended Year Ended
31t March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier
at the end of each accounting year.
- Principal Amount 1,289.52 1,099.10
- Interest thereon - -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro Small - -
and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting
year.
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment - -
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but
without adding the interest specified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006.
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting - -
year.
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding - -
years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.
34. Earning Per Share (EPS)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2022 31t March, 2021
Net profit after Tax
Profit / (Loss) attributable to the Equity Shareholders (% in Lacs) 3,257.74 708.71
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating (Number) 13,23,77,000 13,23,77,000
basic earning per share
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating (Number) 1,390,17,982 13,23,77,000
diluted earning per share
Earning Per Share (in Rupees)
- Basic (In%) 2.46 0.54
- Diluted (In%) 2.34 0.54
Nominal value of Equity Shares (In%) 1.00 1.00

* The shares pending for allotment for the previous year have been considered for the purpose of calculation of EPS
appropriately. The Board of Directors of Artemis Medicare Services Limited (‘Company’) in its meeting held on 5" August,
2021, approved a proposal for sub-division of the face value of the equity shares of the Company from ¥ 10 per equity share to
% 1 per equity share i.e. 1 equity share to be split into 10 equity shares. Subsequent to the approval of the above proposal by
the shareholders of the Company, the record date was fixed as 24" September, 2021 and thereafter the sub-division became
effective. Accordingly, the basic and diluted earnings per equity share (EPS) have been computed for all the periods presented
in the Financial Results of the Company on the basis of new number of equity shares in accordance with Ind AS 33 - Earnings
per shares.
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35. Employee Benefits

A) Defined Contribution Plan

i) The Company has recognized, in statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2022 an amount of
< 427.78.00 Lacs (Previous year ¥ 354.06 Lacs) under defined contribution plans.

Expense under defined contribution plans include: Year Ended Year Ended
31t March, 2022 31 March, 2021
(% in Lacs) (% in Lacs)
a)  Employer's contribution to provident fund 427.78 354.06

The expense is disclosed in the line item - contribution to provident fund and other funds in Note 23.

B) Defined Benefit Plan

i) The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of the
service gets a gratuity on retirement / termination at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year
of service. The Company has also provided for long-term compensated absences.

(% in Lacs)

Gratuity (unfunded) Leaves (unfunded)

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31t March, 31t March, 31 March, 31t March,
2022 2021 2022 2021

(i) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of obligations:

a) Obligation at the beginning 671.37 581.41 285.08 283.25
b) Current Service Cost 118.45 99.61 66.69 54.96
c) Interest Cost 36.25 32.56 15.39 15.86

d) Past Service Cost - - - -

e) Actuarial (Gain) / Loss 117.64 (8.70) 12.80 (22.98)
f)  Benefits paid (67.33) (33.51) (54.15) (46.01)
g) Obligation at the year end 876.38 671.37 325.80 285.08

(ii)  Change in Plan Assets (Reconciliation of opening and closing balances):
a) Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning - - - -
b)  Prior Period Adjustment - - - -
c) Expected return on Plan Asset - - - -
d) Contributions - - - -
e) Benefits paid - - - -
f)  Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Plan Assets - - - -
g) Fair Value of Plan Assets at year end - - - -
(iii)  Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations:
a) Present value of obligation at year end 876.38 671.37 325.80 285.08

b)  Fair Value of Plan Assets at year end - - - -

c) Asset / Liability recognized in the Balance 876.38 671.37 325.80 285.08
Sheet
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(iv) Amount recognized in the income statement
a) Current Service Cost 118.45 99.61 66.69 54.96
b) Past Service Cost - - - -
c) Interest Cost 36.25 32.56 15.39 15.86
d) Curtailment Cost (Credit) - - - -
e) Expected return on Plan Assets - - - -

f)  Actuarial (Gain) / Loss - - 12.80 (22.98)

g) Expenses recognized during the year 154.71 132.17 94.87 47.84

(v)  Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)

a) Unrealised actuarial Gain / (Loss) (117.64) 8.70 - -
(vi)  Assumptions: Year Ended 31 March, 2022 Year Ended 31 March, 2021
a) Discounting Rate (per annum) 6.10% 5.40%
b) Future Salary Increase 5.00% 5.50%

Withdrawal / Employee Turnover Rate

c) Age upto 30 years 36.00% 36.00%

d) Age from 31 to 44 years 32.00% 32.00%

e) Age above 44 years 15.00% 15.00%
Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives

Mortality table used Mortality (2012-14 ult) Mortality (2012-14 ult)

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market

Significant actuarial assumption for the determination of the defined obligation are discounted rate, expected salary
escalation rate and withdrawal rate. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably
possible changes of the respective assumption occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other
assumptions constant.

The above information is certified by the actuarial valuer.

Enterprise best estimate of contribution during next year is ¥ 146.85 Lacs for Gratuity & ¥ 71.02 Lacs for Leave
Encashment.

The discount rate is based on prevailing market yield of Government Bonds as at the date of valuation.

(vii) Sensitivity Analysis (% in Lacs)
Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31* March, 2022 31* March, 2021
Increase  Decrease Increase  Decrease
Change in discount rate by 1.00% 37.37 40.57 27.80 29.86
Change in Salary escalation rate by 1.00% 40.61 38.09 29.54 28.03

Sensitivity due to mortality and withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change not calculated.

Sensitivity as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement
and life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.
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36. Financial Instruments

i)

i)

Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as going concerns while maximising
the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in Notes 12 & 15 offset by cash and
bank balances) and total equity of the Company.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements other than for covenants under various loan
arrangements of the Company.

The Company’s Board reviews the capital structure of the Company on need basis. As part of this review, the Board
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The gearing ratio at 31t March, 2022 of
53.66% (previous year 39.67% ) (See below).

Gearing Ratio :

The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows : (% in Lacs)
Particulars As at 31 March, 2022 | As at 31 March, 2021
Debt * 17,322.97 11,813.12
Less : Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 8) 1,511.44 1,688.85
Net Debt 15,811.53 10,124.27
Total Equity (Net of Revaluation Reserve) 29,468.02 25,523.04
Gearing Ratio 53.66% 39.67%

* Debt is defined as long-term and short-term borrowings.

Categories of Financial Instruments (% in Lacs)

The criteria for recognition of financial instruments is explained in accounting policies for Company.

Financial Assets Fair value hierarchy | As at 31 March, 2022 | As at 31 March, 2021

(Level 1, 2 or 3)

Measured at amortised cost

Loans- Non Current 3 27.57 56.87
Other Financial assets - Non Current 3 311.10 221.75
Trade receivables - Current 3 6,963.50 5,297.34
Cash and cash equivalents 3 1,511.44 1,688.85
Other Bank balances - Current 3 1,199.91 1,195.78
Loans - Current 3 78.42 53.45
Other financial assets - Current 3 651.86 529.10
Total 10,743.79 9,043.14

At the end of the reporting period, there are no significant concentrations of financial assets designated at FVTPL. The
carrying amount reflected above represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for such financial assets.

(% in Lacs)
Financial Liabilities Fair value hierarchy As at 31t March, 2022 | As at 31t March, 2021
(Level 1, 2 or 3)

Measured at amortised cost

Borrowings - Non Current 3 15,257.31 9,877.04
Borrowings - Current 3 2,018.09 1,894.03
Lease Liabilities - Non Current 3 1,495.57 1,612.99
Lease Liabilities - Current 3 268.31 318.38
Trade payables - Current 3 5,792.64 5,585.81
Other financial liabilities - Current 3 1,812.38 926.88
Total 26,644.30 20,215.14

The management considers that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at amortised
cost in the balance sheet approximates their fair value.
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i)

Fair Value Hierarchy

The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of Company’s asset and liabilities, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3 as
described below :-

i. Level 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the company can
access at measurement date;

ii. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

iii. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets/liabilities

Financial Risk Management Objectives

The Company’s Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and
international financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks including market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Board of Directors manages the financial risk of the Company through internal risk reports which analyse exposure
by magnitude of risk. The Company has limited exposure from the international market as the Company’s operations are
in India. The Company has limited exposure towards foreign currency risk it earns approx. & 11% of its revenue from in
foreign currency from international patients. Also capital expenditure includes capital goods purchased in foreign currency
through the overseas vendors. The Company has not taken any derivative contracts to hedge the exposure. However the
exposure towards foreign currency fluctuation is partly hedged naturally on account of receivable from customers and
payable to vendors in foreign currency.

Market Risk

The Company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange
rates.

a) Foreign Currency risk management

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

(% in Lacs)
) As at 31t March, 2022 As at 31t March, 2021
l. Assets cF;:eelf:y ECin lacs Equivalent ECin lacs Equivalent
3 In Lacs 3 In Lacs
Receivables (trade & others) (A) usD 1.66 124.56 6.80 493.08
Hedges by derivative contracts (B) usD - - - -
Unhedged Receivables (C = A - B) usD 1.66 124.56 6.80 493.08
(% in Lacs)
) As at 31t March, 2022 As at 31t March, 2021
Il. Liabilities ciﬁ-:»if:y ECin lacs Equivalent ECin lacs Equivalent
3 In Lacs 3 In Lacs
Payables (trade & others) USD i i i i
(including Deferred payment liability) (D)
Hedges by derivative contracts (E) usD - - - -
Unhedged Payables (F=D-E) usD - - - -
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(% in Lacs)
As at 31t March, 2022 As at 31t March, 2021
lll. Contingent Liabilities and Foreign - -
Commitments Currency | ECin lacs Equivalent FCin lacs Equivalent
3 In Lacs 3 In Lacs
usD - - - -
Contingent Liabilities (G)
EURO - - - -
usD 11.59 886.21 3.33 246.35
Commitments (H)
EURO - - 1.00 87.03
usb - - - -
Hedges by derivative contracts (I)
EURO - - - -
usD 11.59 886.21 3.33 246.35
Unhedged Payables (J=G+H-1)
EURO - - 1.00 87.03
usD (9.93) (761.66) 3.47 246.73
Total unhedged FC Exposures K=C-F-J
EURO - - (1.00) (87.03)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Company is mainly exposed to the USD & EURO currency

The following table details the Company’s sensitivity to a 1% increase and decrease in the Rupees against the USD.
1% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the period end for a 1% change in foreign currency rates. In case of net foreign currency outflow, a positive number
below indicates an increase in profit or equity where the ¥ strengthens 1% against the relevant currency. For a 1%
weakening of the Rupees against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact on the profit or equity,
and the balances below would be negative. In case of net foreign currency inflow, a positive number below indicates
an increase in profit or equity where the ¥ weakens 1% against the relevant currency. For a 1% strengthening of the
Rupees against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact on the profit or equity, and the balances
below would be negative.

(% in Lacs)
If decrease by 1% Currency Impact (net USD Inflow)
Particulars As at 31t March, 2022 | As at 31 March, 2021
Increase / (decrease) in profit or loss for the year 1.25 4.93
Increa§e / (dgcrease) in total equity as at the end of the 195 4.93
reporting period

(% in Lacs)
If increase by 1% Currency Impact (net USD Inflow)
Particulars As at 31t March, 2022 | As at 31 March, 2021
Increase / (decrease) in profit or loss for the year (1.25) (4.93)
Increa.se / (dgcrease) in total equity as at the end of the (1.25) (4.93)
reporting period
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b)

<)

(% in Lacs)
If increase by 1% Currency Impact (net EURO outflow)
Particulars As at 31t March, 2022 | As at 31% March, 2021
Increase / (decrease) in profit or loss for the year - (0.87)
Increa.se / (dgcrease) in total equity as at the end of the i (0.87)
reporting period

(% in Lacs)
If decrease by 1% Currency Impact (net EURO outflow)
Particulars As at 31t March, 2022 | As at 31% March, 2021
Increase / (decrease) in profit or loss for the year - 0.87
Increase / (decrease) in total equity as at the end of the i 0.87
reporting period

Interest Rate risk management

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because Company borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest
rates. The risk is managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate
borrowings.

The Company’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note.

Interest Rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the
reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding
at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis point increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

(% in Lacs)
If increase by 1% in interest rates Interest Impact
Particulars As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021
Increase / (decrease) in profit or loss for the year (172.75) (117.712)
Increa.se / (de.crease) in total equity as at the end of the (172.75) (117.71)
reporting period

(% in Lacs)
If decrease by 1% in interest rates Interest Impact
Particulars As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021
Increase / (decrease) in profit or loss for the year 172.75 117.71
Increa§e / (de.crease) in total equity as at the end of the 172.75 117.71
reporting period

Credit Risk Management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and loans
given. Credit risk arises from cash held with banks, as well as credit exposure to trade receivables and other financial
assets. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of
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d)

managing counter party credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The Company assesses the credit quality of
the counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

Trade and other Receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. Trade
receivables and unbilled revenue are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers.
The Company has a process in place to monitor outstanding receivables on a monthly basis. In monitoring customer
credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit characteristics, including government entities, insurance
companies, corporates, individual and others. The default in collection as a percentage to total receivable is low.
Management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than one year are still collectible in
full, based on historical payment behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk.”

Cash and bank balances, loans and other financial assets

Cash and bank balances comprises of deposits with bank, interest accrued on deposits, and security deposits,. These
deposits are held with credit worthy banks. The credit worthiness of such banks are evaluated by the Management on
an ongoing basis and is considered to be good with low credit risk. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk
as at 31 March, 2022, and 31t March, 2021 is the carrying value of each class of financial assets.

The security deposit pertains to rent deposit given to lessors. The Company does not expect any losses from non-
performance by these counter-parties.

The Company is exposed to credit risk in relation to financial guarantee given by the company on behalf of the
subsidiary company. The company’s maximum exposure in this regard is the maximum amount company could have
to pay if the guarantee is called on at 315 March, 2022 is ¥ 1081.14 Lacs (31 March, 20213 966.87 Lacs).This financial
guarantee has been issued to banks. Based on the expectations at the end of reporting period, the company considers
likelihood of any claim under guarantee is remote.

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short-term, medium-
term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. Note given
below sets out details of additional undrawn facilities that the Company has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity
risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due,

under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s
reputation.

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities :

(% in Lacs)
T Carrying Amount
Particulars Within 1 1-2years More than 2 Total (net of transaction
year years
cost)

As at 31 March, 2022
Term Loan 1,983.54 1,954.97 13,336.90 | 17,275.41 17,275.41
Trade Payables 5,792.64 - - 5,792.64 5,792.64
Interest. accrued but not due on 47.56 i i 47.56 4756
borrowings
Lease Liability 268.31 155.44 1,340.13 1,763.88 1,763.88
Other Financial Liability 1,764.82 - - 1,764.82 1,764.82
Total 9,856.86 2110.41 14,677.03 | 26,644.30 26,644.30
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(% in Lacs)
Particulars Within 1 1-2years More than 2 Total (ﬁ::rz;r;fal:lr;;::r;tri
year years cost)
As at 31t March, 2021
Term Loan 1,862.89 2,120.55 7,787.64 | 11,771.07 11,771.07
Trade Payables 5,585.81 - - 5,585.81 5,585.81
Ln;rer:;a\;tir?;:scrued but not due on 42.05 i i 42.05 42.05
Lease Liability 284.13 268.31 1,378.93 1,931.37 1,931.37
Other Financial Liability 884.83 - - 884.83 884.83
Total 8,659.70 2388.86 9,166.57 | 20,215.14 20,215.14
37. Disclosure u/s 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 (% in Lacs)
Particulars Purpose Amount Amount

Outstanding
As at 31t March,

Outstanding
As at 31t March,

2022 2021
Corporate Guarantee given to bank on behalf of subsidiary | Business Purpose 1,500.00 1,500.00
Investment in subsidiary company Investment 559.00 429.00
(Refer Note 3.1)
38. Disclosure under Ind AS - 115 (Revenue from contracts with customers)
(% in Lacs)
Year Ended Year Ended

a.

Disaggregated revenue information

31t March, 2022

31t March, 2021

Type of Services or goods
Revenue from Healthcare & Other Services
Revenue from Sale of Pharmacy Drugs & Medical Consumables

Total

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Revenue from Customers based in India
Revenue from Customers based outside India

Total

Timing of Revenue Recognition
Services transferred over time (Healthcare Services & Others)
Goods (Pharmacy & Scrap) transferred at a point in time

Total
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53,133.79 39,355.49
1,344.61 850.88
54,478.40 40,206.37
44,952.20 34,051.67
9,526.20 6,154.70
54,478.40 40,206.37
53,094.10 39,347.61
1,384.30 858.76
54,478.40 40,206.37
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(% in Lacs)
b. Trade receivables and Contract Customers 31 M::c:t, 2022 31 M:rsc:t, 2021
Trade Receivables 6,963.50 5,297.34
Unbilled revenue 571.99 445.41
Contract Liabilities (advance from patients) 1,080.48 939.66
c. The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as unbilled revenue.

A receivables is right to consideration that is unconditional upon passage of time. Revenue for ongoing services at the
reporting date yet to be invoiced is recorded as unbilled revenue. Trade receivables and unbilled revenue are presented
net of impairment in the Balance sheet.

d. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0- 90 days. ¥ -103.69 Lacs (% 307.63 Lacs as at
315t March, 2021) was recognised during the year as provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables.
e. Performance obligation and remaining performance obligation
The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be
recognized as at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these
amounts in revenue. As on 31 March, 2022, there were no remaining performance obligation as the same is satisfied
upon delivery of goods/services.
39. Contingent Liabilities (% in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
31t March, 2022 31 March, 2021
A Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts
(i) In respect of compensation demanded by the patient / their relatives, for 1,654.12 1,562.90
negligence in treatment and are pending with various consumers disputes
redressal forums. The Company has been advised by its legal counsel that it
is possible, the action may succeed after considering that insurance cover has
also been taken by the Company and the doctors, the Company is of the view
that is adequately insured to mitigate the possibility of any loss to that extent.
(i) Basis on the Apex court judgement dated 28 February, 2019 in the matter 392.16 392.16
of “M/s Surya Roshini Limited Vs RPFC”, the RPFC (Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner — 1) Gurugram, has passed an impugned order (dated 12t
January, 2021) against the company to deposit a sum of ¥ 392.16 Lacs plus
interest & penalty for the period November 2015 till January 2019.
“The Company has filed an appeal to stay the impugned order before “The
Central Govt. Industrial Tribunal -1”. The matter is under adjudication.
(iii) Outstanding Bank Guarantee’s issued out of non fund based overdraft limit 509.00 453.40
B The status of completion of obligation as at the end on licensing years for the EPCG licenses obtained by the Group is as

under:

(% in Lacs)
Obligation value . . Export Obligation to be Export Ob.Ilgatlo.n
. Licensing Year . completed in foreign
( in lacs) completed till

currency
470.75 2018-2019 2024-2025 470.75%*
205.02 2019-2020 2025-2026 205.02*
434.82 2020-2021 2026-2027 NIL
1674.49 2021-2022 2027-2028 NIL

* In respect of Licensing of FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20, Export Obligations are completed but yet not approved by
regulatory authorities.
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40.

41.

42,

43.

44.

45.

C Corporate guarantee given to Bank in respect of financial assistance availed by the subsidiary company i.e. Artemis Cardiac
Care Pvt. Ltd. Outstanding as on 31 March, 2022 for ¥ 1080.92 Lacs (Previous Year ¥ 966.87 Lacs).

D Forthe Income Tax assessment proceedings for AY 2017-18, Assessing officer has made addition of ¥ 937.84 Lacs. Addition
made by the Assessing Officer has not resulted any demand, as the additions has been setoff against unabsorbed losses of
the Company. However, the Company has filed an appeal before CIT (Appeals) against the order passed by the Assessing
Officer and matter is sub-judice.

The Company carries a general provision for contingencies towards various claims against the Company including claims raised

by patients / vendors / government authorities, not acknowledged as debts as mentioned in note no. 39A.

(% in Lacs)

Opening Balance as | Additional provision made Incurred / (reversed) against Closing Balance as at
at 01.04.2021 during the year provision during the year 31.03.2022

719.52 0.00 -48.75 670.77

India’s Code on Social Security, 2020, which aims to consolidate, codify and revise certain existing social security laws, received
Presidential assent in September 2020 and has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the related final rules have
not yet been issued and the date on which this Code will come into effect has not been announced. The Code may impact the
contributions by the company towards provident fund, gratuity and ESIC. The Company will assess the impact of this Code and
the rules thereunder when they come into effect and will record any related impact, if any, in the period the Code becomes
effective.

Capitalisation of Expenditure :

During the year, the Company has capitalised the following expenses to the cost of property, plant and equipment / capital
work in progress (CWIP). Consequently, expenses disclosed under the respective notes are net of amount capitalised by the
Company.

(% in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31t March, 2022 315t March, 2021
Borrowing Cost 469.85 142.37
Professional consultancy Fees 22.48 33.57
Other expenses directly attributable 82.21 22.62
Total 574.54 198.56

The Company continues to closely monitor the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on all aspects of its business, including how
it has impacted and will impact its customers, employees, vendors and business partners. The management has exercised
due care, in concluding on significant accounting judgements and estimates, inter-alia, carrying amounts & recoverability
of receivables and other current assets, assessment of liquidity and going concern assumption, based on the information
available to date, both internal and external, while preparing the Company’s financial results for the quarter and year ended
31t March, 2022.

Exceptional item, in previous year, consist of reversal of old disputed liability of ¥ 323.29 lacs carried forward from Artemis
Global Life Sciences Limited (AGLSL) (the erstwhile ultimate parent company of Artemis Medicare Services Limited) prior to
the merger which was under Arbitration. The Management has been advised by an independent legal expert that since the
Arbitration proceedings are not being carried out for last many years, this amount is now no longer payable. Accordingly, the
same has been written back by the Company.

Note 45: Share-based payments
(a) The share-based payment plan is an employee option plan. The options are equity settled options.

The Board and shareholders have approved the Artemis Medicare Management Stock Option Plan — 2021 (the Plan). In
accordance with the Plan, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, had, on 1t April, 2021, granted 6,96,700 Stock
Options to the Managing Director. These stock options are to be vested after a minimum of one year from the grant date
and it may extend up to a maximum of four years from the grant date. The exercise period is one year from the date of
respective vesting.

Further, according to the sub-division of the Equity Shares of the Company from the face value of ¥10/- each per share into
3 1/- each per share, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee revised the no. of Stock Options to bring the same in
line with the Sub-divided Equity Shares of the Company. Accordingly, the revised no. of Stock Options stands at 69,67,000
Stock Options with the face value of ¥ 1/- each.
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(b) Set out below is the summary of options

As at 31t March, 2022 As at 31t March, 2021

. Average Average

Particulars exercise No. of exercise No. of

price/ share  options price/ share  options
in¥ in¥

Opening Balance - - - -

Granted during the period/ year 21.37 6967000 - -

Exercised during the period/ year - - - -

Expired during the period/ year - - - -

Closing Balance 6967000 -

Vested and exercisable 6967000 -

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of period as at 31 March, 2022 is 2.5 years
(Previous year: Nil).

(c) Share options outstanding at the end of the period/ year have the following exercise period and exercise prices:

Grant Grant Date Exercise Period Ex:':;: :::I;e/ S:i:'teMO;t(':z'nzaosz;n Sgi;e“,(l);:g?za()s,zc;n
Grant - | 01.04.2021 | 2 years from the date of grant 21.37 1741750 -
Grant - I 01.04.2021 | 3 years from the date of grant 21.37 1741750 -
Grant- Il | 01.04.2021 | 4 years from the date of grant 21.37 1741750 -
Grant- 1V | 01.04.2021 | 5 years from the date of grant 21.37 1741750 -

(d) Fair value of options granted

The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes Model which takes into account the exercise price, term
of option, the share price at grant date, and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield
and the risk free interest rate for the term of option. The Fair Value of the Stock option as of grant date was ¥ 21.37. During
the year ended 31%t March, 2022, the Company issued Nil equity shares (31t March, 2021: Nil).

(e) Expense arising from share-based payment transactions

The company has recorded an expense of I 775.26 Lacs for the year ended 31 March, 2022 (315 March, 2021: Nil), as a
part of the employee benefits expense.

(f) The existing Employee Stock Option Scheme, no options have been exercised till date.

Note 46: Ratio Analysis and its Elements

Note 46.1: Ratio (% in Lacs)
% change from
Particulars Units 31t March, 2022 | 31t March, 2021 31t March, 2021

to 31t March, 2022
Current Ratio Times 0.92 0.91 0.84
Debt-Equity Ratio Times 0.59 0.46 27.11
Debt Service Coverage ratio Times 1.90 1.51 26.25
Inventory Turnover ratio Times 14.53 11.60 25.21
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio Times 3.72 2.64 41.29
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio Times 6.60 4.38 50.62
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% change from
Particulars Units 31t March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021 315t March, 2021

to 31 March, 2022
Net Capital Turnover Ratio Times (53.32) (16.06) 232.06
Net Profit ratio Percentage 5.98% 1.76% 239.25
Return on Equity ratio Percentage 11.85% 2.82% 320.72
Return on Capital Employed Percentage 10.11% 5.26% 92.27
Return on Investment Percentage 7.17% 3.60% 99.31

Note 46.2: Elements of Ratio (% in Lacs)
31 March, 2022 315t March, 2021
Ratios
Numerator Denominator Numerator Denominator

Current ratio 12,262.83 13,308.32 10,570.23 11,568.33
Debt- Equity Ratio 17,275.40 29,468.02 11,771.07 25,523.04
Debt Service Coverage ratio 6,482.54 3,411.83 4,000.82 2,658.31
Inventory Turnover ratio 15,267.00 1,050.72 11,488.07 989.99
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio 22,832.00 6,130.42 17,066.00 6,474.02
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio 37,541.22 5,689.23 28,452.87 6,494.51
Net Capital Turnover Ratio 54,478.40 (1,021.79) 40,206.37 (2,504.05)
Net Profit Ratio 3,257.74 54,478.40 708.71 40,206.37
Return on Equity ratio 3,257.74 27,495.53 708.71 25,165.86
Return on Capital Employed 4,997.50 49,441.12 2,117.48 40,277.00
Return on Investment 4,997.50 69,740.40 2,117.48 58,895.56

Note 46.3: Consideration of Element of Ratio

i. Current Ratio:

ii. Debt-Equity Ratio:

iii. Debt Service Coverage ratio:

iv. Inventory Turnover ratio:

v. Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio:

vi. Trade Payable Turnover Ratio:

vii. Net Capital Turnover Ratio:

viii. Net Profit ratio:

Numerator= Current Assets
Denominator= Current Liabilities

Numerator= Total Debt
Denominator= Total Equity - Revaluation Reserve

Numerator= Profit After Tax + Interest Cost + Depreciation
Denominator= Principal Repayment + Interest Cost

Numerator= Cost of Goods Sold
Denominator= Average Inventory

Numerator= Total Credit Sales
Denominator=Average Trade Receivables

Numerator= Total Credit Purchases
Denominator= Average Trade Payables

Numerator= Revenue from operations
Denominator= Average Working Capital (i.e. Current Assets -
Current Liabilities)

Numerator= Net Profit after tax
Denominator= Revenue from operations
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ix. Return on Equity ratio:

X. Return on Capital Employed:

Xi. Return on Investment:

Numerator= Profit after tax
Denominator= Average Total Equity - Revaluation Reserve

Numerator= Profit Before Tax + Finance cost
Denominator= Equity - Revaluation Reserve + Debt + Deferred
Tax Liability

Numerator= Profit Before Tax+ Finance cost
Denominator= Total Assets

Note . 46.4: Reasons for more than 25% increase/ (decrease) in above ratios

Particulars

% change from 31t March, 2021 to 31t March, 2022

Current Ratio

Not Significant

Debt-Equity Ratio

The change in ratio is on account of increase in Debt towards new expansion plan during
the year.

Debt Service Coverage ratio

The change in ratio has been positive due to increase in earnings as compare to previous
year.

Inventory Turnover ratio

The change in ratio is positive as average inventory holding is less as compared to
increase in earnings.

Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio

The change in ratio is positive due to more increase in credit sales and better realisation
during the year.

Trade Payable Turnover Ratio

The change in ratio is positive due to more credit purchases and decrease in average
creditors during the year.

Net Capital Turnover Ratio

The change in ratio has been due to increase in business operations during the year.

Net Profit ratio

The change in ratio is positive because of increase in earnings and proportionate
decrease in direct cost as compared to previous year.

Return on Equity ratio

The change in ratio is positive because of increase in overall profitability.

Return on Capital Employed

The change in ratio is positive because of increase in overall profitability.

Return on Investment

The change in ratio is positive because of more earnings as compared to increase in
total assets.

47. Other Statutory Information

(i) The Company has no transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560
of the Companies Act, 1956.

(ii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the
statutory period.

(iii) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the period/year.

(iv) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly orindirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(v) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.”
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(vi) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or
any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

48. Other Notes

(i) Inthe opinion of the Board of Directors, Trade Receivables, other current financial assets, and other current assets have a
value on realization in the ordinary course of the company’s business, which is at least equal to the amount at which they

are stated in the balance sheet.

(i) The balances of some of the accounts classified as Trade Payables, Trade Receivables, etc. are in the process of
reconciliations/ confirmation. In the opinion of Board of directors, the result of such exercise will not have any material

impact on the carrying value.

(iii) The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 11" May, 2022 has approved the Financial Statement for the year ended

31t March, 2022.

(iv) The figures for the corresponding previous year have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary, to make them

comparable.

As per our report of even date attached

For TR Chadha & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 006711N/N500028

Sd/-

(Neena Goel)

Partner

Membership No. 057986
Place : New Delhi

Dated : 11*" May, 2022

Signature to Note 1 to 48

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Artemis Medicare Services Limited

Sd/-

Onkar Kanwar
[Chairman]

[DIN : 00058921]
Place : Gurugram
Dated : 11*" May, 2022

Sd/-

Sanjiv Kumar Kothari
[Chief Financial Officer]
Place : Gurugram
Dated : 11*" May, 2022
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[Managing Director]
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Sd/-

Shilpa Budhia
[Company Secretary]
Place : Gurugram
Dated : 11" May, 2022
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ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Artemis Medicare Services Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Artemis Medicare Services Limited (hereinafter referred
to as “the Holding Company”), and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”),
which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2022, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of
reports of other auditors on separate Financial Statements and on the other financial information of the subsidiaries as referred
to in ‘Other Matters’ paragraph below, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group
as at 31 March, 2022, and the consolidated profit and consolidated total Other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in
equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) read together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl’s
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms
of their reports referred to in the Other Matter section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters (‘KAM’) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
Consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter |Auditor’s Response

1. Capitalisation of Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group has an expansion plan of its healthcare business. | Principal Audit Procedures

As result, additions to Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) | Our audit approach consisted testing of the design and operating
were made during the year amounting to ¥12,819.50 lacs | effectiveness of the internal controls and substantive testing as
(including borrowing cost of ¥ 790.95 lacs). Further, the|follows:

carrying value of Capital work in progress as on 31 March,[® We performed walkthroughs of PPE, CWIP, Intangible asset
2022 was ¥ 6,223.24 lacs and for intangible assets under and Intangible asset under development process and assessed
development as on March 31, 2022 was ¥ 194.02 lacs. the design effectiveness and operating effectiveness for key
The significant level of additions to PPE requires controls.

consideration of nature of cost incurred to ensure that the | * ~ Understood, evaluated and tested the design and operating
capitalisation of assets meets the recognition criteria in effectiveness of key controls relating to capitalization of various
accordance with Ind AS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. costs incurred in relation to Property, Plant and Equipment.
Further, the application of management’s decision in|™® Read the Company’s accounting policies for compliance with
assessing completion of capitalisation at various stages of Ind AS 16 and on a sample basis tested available documentation
the project as and when assets are ready for intended use to consider whether the criteria for capitalisation were met.
or the percentage of completion of the project requires|® We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures made by The
significant management judgement and estimation. As a Group in this connection in the accompanying financial
result, this was noted as a Key Audit matter. statements.
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Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

2. Allowances for credit losses relating to Trade Receivables:

As stated in Note 7, The Group has determined the|Principal Audit Procedures

allowance for credit loss based on historical loss experience | We performed the following principal audit procedures:

which is adjusted to reflect current and estimated future|®= We tested the design and implementation and operating

economic conditions. The historical loss experience model effectiveness of controls over (a) development of methodology
takes into consideration the overall economic conditions for the allowance for credit losses, including consideration of
and its impact on the customers’ business operations/ability the overall economic conditions (b) completeness and accuracy
to pay dues. Based on such analysis The Group has recorded of information used in estimation of the probability of default
an allowance aggregating to ¥706.84 lacs as included Note (c) computation of the expected credit loss allowances.

7 of the Consolidated financial statements. We identified| = Considered other available information like increase in
allowance for credit losses as a key audit matter because credit risk, relating to the Company’s customers to test if the
The Group exercises significant judgment in calculating the Management had appropriately considered the adjustments
expected credit losses. to credit risk.

= Recomputed the expected credit loss allowance considering
the above determined input data and compared the amounts
so recomputed with the amounts recorded by the Management
to determine if there were any material differences individually
or in the aggregate.

Information Other than the Consolidated financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under section 133 of the Act.

The respective Board of Directors of the entities included in the Group are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of each entity and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by
the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process of each entity.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole are free from
157




ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES LIMITED

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Holding company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the management of the Holding Company.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s of the Holding Company use of the going concern basis of accounting in
preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements
of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated Financial Statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Other Matter

The Consolidated financial statements of The Group for the year ended 31 March, 2021 were audited by the predecessor auditor
whose report dated 10" May, 2021 expressed an unmodified opinion on those Consolidated financial statements. Our opinion
on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our report, we report that:

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial
Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other
auditors.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31 March, 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary
companies which are incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group’s companies incorporated in India is
disqualified as on 315t March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A” which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Holding
company, and subsidiary companies incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial reporting of those companies.

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16)
of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the remuneration paid during the current
year by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are incorporated in India to its directors is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
which are incorporated in India, is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of
Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented
upon by us.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its consolidated financial position
of the Group- Refer Note 38 to the Consolidated Financial Statements;

ii. The Group has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries.

iv. (a) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India,
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
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(b)

(c)

(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India,
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Company or any of such subsidiaries from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or any of such
subsidiaries shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries” or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances
performed by us on the Company and its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

V. The Group has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year, therefore reporting under rule 11 (f) is not
applicable.

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”/
“CARQ”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report,
according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by the auditors of the
subsidiary, included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable,
provided to us by the Management of the Company and based on the identification of matters of qualifications or adverse
remarks in their CARO reports by the respective component auditors and provided to us, we report that the auditors of such
companies have not reported any qualifications or adverse remarks in their CARO report except for the following:

Sl. | Name of the Company CIN Nature of Clause Number of CARO report with
No. Relationship qualification or adverse remark
1. | Artemis Cardiac Care | U85110DL2019PTC344351 Subsidiary CARO clause number 3 (xvii)
Private Limited Company

For TR Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No -006711N/ N500028)
sd/-
Place of Signature: New Delhi Neena Goel
Dated: 11t May, 2022 (Partner)
UDIN: 22057986AITZNW5452 Membership No. 057986
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated financial statements of the Artemis Medicare Services
Limited for the year ended 31 March, 2022

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to aforesaid Consolidated financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)
Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of Artemis Medicare Services Limited (“the Holding
Company”) as of 31 March, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India under the Companies Act,
2013 which are its subsidiary companies, as of that date.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the
reports of other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, the Holding company, and its subsidiary companies,
which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2021,
based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the respective companies considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the criteria established by the respective company,
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on
Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exits, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of the internal controls based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risk of misstatement of the Consolidated
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their
reports referred to is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in
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accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143 (3) (i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements insofar as it related to one subsidiary
company, which is incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding report of auditors of such company.

For TR Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No -006711N/ N500028)

sd/-
Place of Signature: New Delhi Neena Goel
Dated: 11" May, 2022 (Partner)
UDIN: 22057986AITZNW5452 Membership No. 057986
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31°" MARCH, 2022

(% in Lacs)
Particulars Note As At As At
No. 31t March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
Assets
A Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2.1 42,997.45 32,160.51
Capital work-in-progress 2.2 6,223.24 8,105.79
Right-of-use assets 2.3 1,461.36 1,718.06
Goodwill 24 4,162.07 4,162.07
Other Intangible assets 2.5 232.74 268.70
Other Intangible assets under development 2.6 194.02 -
Financial assets
i. Loans 3.1 27.57 56.87
ii. Other financial assets 3.2 311.10 221.75
Non-current tax assets (Net) 4 2,160.85 1,675.42
Other non-current assets 5 491.29 692.77
Total non-current assets A 58,261.69 49,061.94
B  Current assets
Inventories 6 1,239.67 962.42
Financial assets
i. Trade receivables 7 7,341.45 5,471.70
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 8 1,569.88 1,916.20
iii. Bank balances other than (ii) above 9 1,199.91 1,195.78
iv. Loans 3.1 78.90 54.20
v. Other financial assets 3.2 587.73 463.22
Other current assets 5 687.24 883.47
Total current assets B 12,704.78 10,946.99
C Total Assets C=A+B 70,966.47 60,008.93
Equity and liabilities
D Equity
Equity share capital 10 1,323.77 1,323.77
Other equity 11 34,618.71 30,695.62
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company 35,942.48 32,019.39
Non-controlling Interests 183.82 154.99
Total equity D 36,126.30 32,174.38
Liabilties
E  Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 12 16,129.07 10,773.34
ii. Lease Liabilities 1,495.57 1,647.24
Provisions 13 828.25 664.96
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 14 2,571.61 2,901.46
Total non-current liabilities E 21,024.49 15,987.00
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(% in Lacs)
Particulars Note As At As At
No. 31 March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
F  Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 15 2,227.25 1,964.60
ii. Lease Liabilties 268.31 284.13
iii. Trade payables
(A) Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and 16 1,293.18 1,099.10
Small Enterprises
(B) Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than 16 4,703.90 4,627.84
Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
iv. Other financial liabilities 17 1,887.59 982.07
Other current liabilities 18 2,381.25 1,870.53
Provisions 13 1,054.20 1,019.28
Total current liabilities F 13,815.68 11,847.55
G Total liabilities G=E+F 34,840.17 27,834.55
H Total equity and liabilities H=D+G 70,966.47 60,008.93
Significant accounting policies 1.5
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 2to0 48

As per our report of even date attached

For TR Chadha & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants of Artemis Medicare Services Limited

Firm Registration Number 006711N/N500028
Sd/- Sd/-
Onkar Kanwar Devlina Chakravarty
[Chairman] [Managing Director]

[DIN : 00058921]
Place : Gurugram
Dated : 11*" May, 2022

[DIN : 07107875]
Place : Gurugram
Dated : 11* May, 2022

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

(Neena Goel) Sanjiv Kumar Kothari Shilpa Budhia

Partner [Chief Financial Officer] [Company Secretary]
Membership No. 057986 Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram
Place : New Delhi Dated : 11*" May, 2022 Dated : 11*" May, 2022

Dated : 11*" May, 2022
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2022

(% in Lacs)
Particulars Note Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31 March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
Income
Revenue from Operations 19 55,480.12 40,840.34
Other Income 20 389.94 353.83
Total income (1) 55,870.06 41,194.17
Expenses
Operative Expenses 21 34,154.40 25,482.08
Purchases of Stock in Trade - 9.65 29.71
Changes in inventories of Stock in Trade 22 13.38 45.64
Employee benefits expense 23 10,430.00 8,399.01
Finance costs 24 1,197.51 1,292.53
Depreciation and other amortization expense 25 2,219.28 2,151.38
Other expenses 26 4,127.36 3,364.09
Total expenses (m) 52,151.58 40,764.44
Profit before exceptional items & Tax =(1-1) 3,718.48 429.73
Exceptional Items (refer note 44) \} - 323.29
Profit before Tax V=(lll+1V) 3,718.48 753.02
Tax Expense 27
Current Tax 824.52 670.51
Earlier year tax (55.13) 94.14
Deferred Tax Charge / (Credit) (191.06) (627.63)
Total Tax Expense (vi) 578.33 137.02
Profit after tax for the year Vil=(V-Vl) 3,140.15 616.00
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans (refer note 35) (vin) (117.16) 9.62
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss (1X) 29.47 (3.30)
Deferred Tax adjustment on revaluation that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss (X) 54.22 40.66
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or XI= (VI +IX (33.47) 46.98
loss in subsequent periods: +X)
Total comprehensive income for the year Xl = (VI + X1) 3,106.68 662.98
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Particulars Note Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31 March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021

Profit / (Loss) for the year attributable to :

Shareholders of the Company 3,181.44 648.58

Non-controlling interests (41.29) (32.58)
3,140.15 616.00

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year attributable to :

Shareholders of the Company 3,147.84 695.33

Non-controlling interests (41.16) (32.35)
3,106.68 662.98

Earning Per Equity Share (Face Value of ¥ 1/- each)

- Basic ) 34 2.40 0.49

- Diluted (%) 2.29 2.29

Significant accounting policies 1.5

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 2to48

As per our report of even date attached

For TR Chadha & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 006711N/N500028
Sd/-

Sd/-

(Neena Goel)

Partner

Membership No. 057986
Place : New Delhi

Dated : 11*" May, 2022

Onkar Kanwar
[Chairman]

[DIN : 00058921]
Place : Gurugram
Dated : 11*" May, 2022

Sd/-

Sanjiv Kumar Kothari
[Chief Financial Officer]
Place : Gurugram
Dated : 11*" May, 2022
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ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2022

(% in Lacs)
particulars Year Ended Year Ended

31 March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 3,718.48 753.02
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expense 2,219.28 2,151.38
Interest Income (148.89) (182.37)
Finance Cost 935.84 1,084.55
Exceptional Items - (323.29)
Employee Cost towards Stock Based Payments 775.26 -
Unclaimed Credit balances / provisions no longer required written (82.87) (85.48)
back
Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (98.47) 307.63
Bad Debts Written Off 113.04 22.42
Unrealised foreign exchange gain (net) 67.79 26.07
Loss / (Gain) on Sale / Scrap of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) 52.11 23.81
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 7,551.57 3,777.74
Adjustments for Changes in Working Capital
- (Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivables (1,952.12) 1,831.93
- (Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories (277.25) 112.92
- (Increase)/ Decrease in Loan (Current) (24.70) 49.66
- (Increase)/ Decrease in Loan (Non -Current) 29.31 12.89
- (Increase)/ Decrease in Other Financial Assets (Current) (124.51) (95.50)
- (Increase)/ Decrease in Other Financial Assets (Non - Current) (76.27) (19.12)
- (Increase)/ Decrease in other Current Assets 196.23 95.74
- (Increase)/ Decrease in Other Non Current Assets 663.07 (535.02)
- Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payable 353.01 (1,648.85)
- Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions (Current) 34.92 99.16
- Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions (Non - Current) 46.13 43.17
- Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (Current) 510.72 (8.81)
- Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities (Current) 623.65 (776.17)
Cash generated from operations 7,553.76 2,939.74
Income tax refund / (paid) (1,595.70) (213.68)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 5,958.06 2,726.06
Cash flow from investing activity
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment / CWIP (10,890.03) (3,450.12)
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 36.09 316.77
Maturity / (investments) of / in fixed deposits having original maturity (4.13) (791.34)
of more than 3 months
Interest received 135.81 182.37
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) (10,722.26) (3,742.32)
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Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31t March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
Cash flow from financing activity
Proceeds from non current borrowings 7,913.60 5,478.77
Repayment of non current borrowings (2,295.22) (1,431.42)
Repayment of current borrowings (net) - (1,088.63)
Proceeds from issuance of shares to non controlling interests 70.00 140.00
Payment of lease liabilities - Principal amount (164.26) (74.60)
Payment of lease liabilities - Interest amount (170.41) (167.93)
Interest paid (935.84) (1,084.55)
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 4,417.87 1,771.64
Net increase in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C) (346.33) 755.38
Cash & cash equivalents as the beginning of the year 1,916.20 1,160.82
Cash & cash equivalents as the end of the year Total 1,569.87 1,916.20
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 85.30 135.60
Balances with Banks:
On current accounts 1,484.57 1,180.60
Fixed Deposit in banks having original maturity of
3 months or less - 600.00
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents ( Refer Note 8 ) Total 1,569.87 1,916.20

As per our report of even date attached

For TR Chadha & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 006711N/N500028
Sd/-

Onkar Kanwar
[Chairman]

[DIN : 00058921]
Place : Gurugram

11t May, 2022

Sanjiv Kumar Kothari

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Artemis Medicare Services Limited

Sd/-

Devlina Chakravarty
[Managing Director]
[DIN : 07107875]
Place : Gurugram
Dated : 11" May, 2022

Sd/-

Shilpa Budhia

Dated :
Sd/- Sd/-
(Neena Goel)
Partner

Membership No. 057986
Place : New Delhi
Dated : 11*" May, 2022

[Chief Financial Officer]
Place : Gurugram
Dated : 11*" May, 2022
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

| (% in Lacs)
(A) Equity Share Capital
Particulars Note No Amount
Balance as at 31° March, 2020 10 1,323.77
Change in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31%* March, 2021 10 1,323.77
Change in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31%* March, 2022 10 1,323.77
Il Other Equity (% in Lacs)
Equit Other Equity
Reserves and Surplus Items of OCI Sgttle‘:i attributable Non -
. to controlling
Particulars Note Share based Total
Capital | Revaluation | Retained Remeasurem(::nts Pavment shareholders| Interests
- of the net defined A\ of the (NaI)
Reserve Reserve Earnings X Reserve
benefit plans Company
Balance as at 31°** March, 2020 11 14,457.89 6,598.31| 9,038.96 (94.87) - 30,000.29 47.34| 30,047.63
Profit / (Loss) for the year 11 - - 648.58 - - 648.58 (32.58) 616.00
Deferred tax adjustment on 11 - 40.66 - - - 40.66 - 40.66
revlauation
Other comprehensive income 11 - - - 6.09 - 6.09 0.23 6.32
(OCl) (net of tax)
Further Issue of Equity Shares| 11 - - - - - - 140.00 140.00
of Subsidiary to Non Controlling
Interest
Balance as at 31* March, 2021 11 14,457.89 6,638.97| 9,687.54 (88.78) - 30,695.61 154.99| 30,850.61
Profit / (Loss) for the year 11 - -1 3,181.44 - - 3,181.44 (41.28) 3,140.16
Deferred tax adjustment on 11 - 54.22 - - - 54.22 - 54.22
revlauation
Equity Settled Share based 11 - - - - 775.26 775.26 - 775.26
Payment Reserve
Other comprehensive income 11 - - - (87.81) - (87.81) 0.12 (87.69)
(OCl) (net of tax)
Further Issue of Equity Shares| 11 - - - - - 70.00 70.00
of Subsidiary to Non Controlling
Interest
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 11 14,457.89 6,693.18| 12,868.98 (176.59) 775.26 34,618.72 183.82| 34,802.55
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 2to48

As per our report of even date attached
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ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022

Note No.

1.1 Corporate information

1.2

Artemis Medicare Services Limited (“The Group”) was incorporated on 18" May, 2004. The Group is engaged in the business
of managing and operating of multi specialty hospitals and commenced its commercial operation by setting up Artemis
Hospital (formerly Artemis Health Institute) at Gurugram on 16 July, 2007.

Basis of preparation

a)

b)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read together with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended.

Presentation of Financial Statements

“The Statement of Assets and Liabilities and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format
prescribed in the Division Il of Schedule Il to the Act. The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented
as per the requirements of Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash flows. The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the
Statement of Assets and Liabilities and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule 1l to the Act, are
presented by way of notes forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed
under the notified Ind AS and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

Functional Currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Lacs rounded off to two Decimal places as permitted by
Schedule Ill to the Act. Per share data are presented in Indian Rupees to two Decimals places.”

Classification of Current / Non-Current Assets and Liabilities

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the Act.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i) itis expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;
ii) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii) it is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date; or

iv) itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
i) itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

ii) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii) itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

iv) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

All other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current. Based on the nature of the products and services, the Group has
ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of Current / Non-current classification of assets and
liabilities.
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d) Basis of Accounting

The Group maintains accounts on accrual basis following the historical cost convention, except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair value or amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorised as below based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety:

i. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the group can
access at measurement date;

ii. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

iii. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets/liabilities
1.3 Key estimates and assumptions

The preparation of Financial Information in accordance with Ind AS requires use of estimates and assumptions for some
items, which might have an effect on their recognition and measurement in the (i) Statement of Assets and Liabilities and (ii)
Statement of Profit and Loss. The actual amounts realised may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the Financial Information are continuously evaluated by the
Group and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future
events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Differences between actual results and
estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known/ materialised.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that date
but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which
are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally
assessed.

Estimates and assumptions are required in particular for:
i. Determination of the estimated useful lives of tangible assets

Useful lives of tangible assets are based on the life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Act. In cases, where the useful lives
are different from that prescribed in Schedule Il to the Act, they are based on technical advice, taking into account the
nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement,
anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and maintenance support.

ii. Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial
assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation, actuarial rates and life expectancy. The discount rate
is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The period to
maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations.

iii. Recognition of deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the
carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax base, and unutilized business loss and depreciation carry-
forwards and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and
unused tax credits could be utilized.

iv. Recognition and measurement of other provisions

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of
resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at the Statement of Assets and Liabilities date. The actual
outflow of resources at a future date may therefore vary from the amount included in other provisions.

171




ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES LIMITED

v. Recoverability of trade receivable

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a
provision against those receivables is required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the counterparty, the
amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any possible actions that can be taken to mitigate the risk of
non-payment.

1.4 Basis for Consolidation

1.5

The consolidated financial statement includes the financial statement of Parent Company and its subsidiary. The parent
company has control over the subsidiary when :

a) It has power over the investee;
b) itis exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
c) has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the parent obtains controls over the subsidiary and ceases when parent loses
control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities , income and expenses of subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements from the date parent gains control to the date it ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit and loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the shareholders of the Parent Company
to the non controlling interest. Total comprehensive income of subsidiary is attributed to owners of parent company and the
non controlling interests even if this results in non controlling interest having a deficit balance.

Wherever necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statement of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line
with the groups accounting policies.

Financial statement of the Group Companies are consolidated on line by line basis. All intra group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses, cash flows relating to transactions between the members of the group are eliminated in full on
consolidation. Non-controlling interest represents the part of net profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries that are not
directly or indirectly owned or controlled by the parent company.

The following subsidiary was consolidated:

% of Holding % of Holding
Name of the subsidiary Country of Incorporation 315 March, 2022 315t March, 2021
Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited India 65 65

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised within equity.

Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, Plantand Equipment are stated at cost (or revalued amounts, as the case may be), less accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the property, plant
and equipment to its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of property, plant
and equipment which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent
they relate to the period till such property, plant and equipment are ready to be put to use.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the case price equivalent at the recognition date. If payment
is deferred beyond normal credit terms, the difference between the cash price equivalent and the total payment is
recognised as interest over the period of credit, unless such interest is capitalised as per borrowing cost.

The Group identifies and determines separate useful life of each major component of the property, plant and equipment,
if they have useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset, as per Schedule Il of Companies Act,
2013.
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b)

<)

d)

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Depreciation on all of the property, plant and equipment is provided using the straight line method at the rates prescribed
by Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 and / or useful life estimated by management supported by technical valuer’s
independent assessment. The management believes that depreciation rates currently used fairly reflect its estimates of
the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation commences when the PPE are ready for their intended use. Depreciation on all PPE except land are provided
on a straight line based on the estimated useful life of PPE, which is as follows:

Useful Life of Useful Life of p.roperty,
property, plant plant and equipment
Assets and equipment as per Managemer_lt
as per Schedule Il supported by 1:echn|cal
Valuer’s Estimate
Buildings :
- with RCC 60 Years
- Temporary Structure (Porta Cabin) 30 Years
- Tubewell / Borewell 5 Years
Plant & Machinery :
- Electric Medical Equipments 13 Years
- Other Medical Equipments 15 Years
- Other Plant & Machinery 15 Years
- Loose Tools & Instruments 5 Years
Office Equipments 5 Years
Computers & Data Processing Units
- Desktop & Laptops 3 Years
- Servers & Network 6 Years
Vehicles 8 Years
Furnitures & Fittings 10 Years
Electrical Installations & Equipments 10 Years

Leasehold Improvements including renovation done on shared facilities have been depreciated as per the useful life
ascertained or over the primary period of lease / contract, whichever is shorter.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of other consideration given to acquire an asset
at the time of its acquisition or construction, or, when applicable, the amount attributed to that asset when initially
recognised in accordance with the specific requirements of other Indian Accounting Standards.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Software

Cost of software is amortized over a period of 8 years, being the estimated useful life as per the management estimates.
Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an property, plant and equipment
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the
cost of the respective property, plant and equipment. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds
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e)

f)

Impairment

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication based on internal/ external factors that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of assets those are cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and
loss.

Leases

Where the Group is the lessee

The Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Group assesses whether a contract
contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether:(i) the contract involves the use of an
identified asset (ii) the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of
the lease and (iii) the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset(“ROU”)and a corresponding lease
liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less(short-
term leases)and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments
as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU
assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any
lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment
testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on
an individual asset basis.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental
borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if
the Group changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. Lease liability and
ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing
cost.
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g)

h)

Where the Group is the lessor

Leases for which the Group is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets subject to operating leases are included in PPE. Rental income on operating lease is recognized in the statement
of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line
with expected general inflation to compensate for the Group’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are
recognized in the year in which such benefits accrue benefits accrue.

Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased assets and recognised on
a straight line basis over the lease term.

Inventories

Inventories of Pharmacy Drugs & Other Items, Medical Consumables and the Stores and Spares are valued at lower of
cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on weighted average basis

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs includes cost of purchase and other costs
incurred to bring inventories to their present locations and conditions. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Revenue recognition
The Group derives revenue primarily from Healthcare Services through operating of multi-speciality Hospital.

Revenue is measured at the transaction price. Revenue is reduced for returns, trade allowances for deduction, rebates,
value added taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third parties

Sale of Pharmacy Drugs and Medical Supplies including Traded Goods

Revenue is recognized as and when Pharmacy Drugs, Medical Supplies and Traded goods are sold. Revenue from the sale
of Pharmacy Drugs, Medical Supplies and Traded good are recognised when control of the goods has passed to the buyer
i.e. at the point of sale / to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods. Sale is net of sales returns, discounts and goods & services tax.

Income from Operations

Revenue is recorded when the performance obligation are satisfied. For outpatient customers services are simultaneously
received and consumed by the patient. For inpatient customers, revenue is recognized as serviced are performed over
the period. Revenue for the ongoing services at the reporting date is recognised as unbilled revenue. The income is
stated net of discount and price differences, as per terms of contract.

Interest

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable
interest rate.

Income from Nursing Hostel

Revenue is recognized as per contractual arrangement with nursing staff using the hostel facilities.

Income from Lease Rentals & Outsourced Facilities

Revenue is recognized in accordance with the terms of lease agreements entered into with the respective lessees.

Income from Service Export from India Scheme (SEIS)

Income from ‘Service Export from India Scheme’ is recognized on accrual basis as and when eligible services are
performed and convertible foreign exchange is received on a net basis.
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i)

Income from Clinical Research

Income from clinical research is recognised as and when the services are rendered in accordance with the terms of the
respective agreements.

Income from Sponsorships

Sponsorship income is recognized when the underlying obligations are completed as per contractual terms.
Foreign currency transactions

In preparing the financial statements, transaction in currencies other than the Group’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

At the end of each reporting period
i) Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date,

ii)  Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

iii) Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they
arise except exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings.

Employees Benefits

Short term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving services are classified as short-term employee
benefits. These benefits include salary and wages, bonus and exgratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee
benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognized as an expense as the related service is rendered by
the employees.

Post employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to
separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Group makes specified obligations towards
employee provident fund and employee state insurance (ESI) to Government administered provident fund scheme
and ESI scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Group’s contributions are recognized as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans

The Group’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of a defined benefit
plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned and returned for services in
the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The calculation of Group’s
obligation under the plan is performed periodically by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past
service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it in future
service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. The Group records an obligation for such
compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The
obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.
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k)

m)

n)

o)

Income taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
i) Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the
Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where the Group
operates.

ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of assets to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is measured based on tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities.

iii) Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Expenditure on new projects

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction
period is capitalized as part of the indirect construction cost to the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related
to construction or is incidental thereto. Other indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the
construction period which is not related to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the Statement
of profit and loss.

Earnings Per share

Basic earnings per share is being calculated by dividing net profit or loss for the year (including prior period items, if any)
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Group and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their
realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Group has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of
classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Financial Instrument

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Financial Assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for financial
assets that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

i)  the assets is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows; and

ii) the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial Assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (except for financial assets that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

i)  theassetsis held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

ii) the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI). For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI financial assets are treated
as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the amortised cost are recognised
in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of ‘Reserve for financial assets through other comprehensive income’.
When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in this reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the “Other income” line item

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases. The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising
on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item. Dividend on financial assets
at FVTPL is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic
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benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost
of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at
amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables, and other contractual rights to receive
cash or other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original
effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit impaired financial
assets). The Group estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Group measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit
losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance
for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses
are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default
occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next
12 months.

If the Group measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the previous
period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous period, the Group again measures the loss
allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead
of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available
without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions
that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Group always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Group has used a
practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision
matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied to debt
instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and is not reduced
from the carrying amount in the balance sheet.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise
been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.
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On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to repurchase
part of a transferred asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it
continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that
is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such
gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated
at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at
amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange differences are recognised in statement of profit and loss since there are no
designated hedging instruments in a hedging relationship.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or then the
continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group, and commitments issued
by the Group to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting
policies set out below.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration recognised by
the Group as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or is held for trading or it is designated
as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
i) it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

ii) oninitial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

iii) itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and
is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in
the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects
of changes in credit risk are recognised in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is
always recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised
in other comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Group that are designated by the
Group as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured
at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part
of costs of an asset is included in the ‘Finance costs’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
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p)

interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a Group entity are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as
at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

i) the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109; and

ii) the amountinitially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance
with the principles of Ind AS 115.

Commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate

Commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

i) the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109; and

ii) the amountinitially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance
with the principles of Ind AS115.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each
reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments
and are recognised in ‘Other income’.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the
foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for
as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the
debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Provisions & Contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). When some or all of the economic
benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably.
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q)

r

s)

t)

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more of uncertain future events beyond the control of Group or a present obligation that
is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the an obligation. A
contingent liability also arises in the extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because
it cannot be measured reliably its existence in the consolidated financial statements. Group does not recognize the
contingent liability but disclosed its existence in consolidated financial statements.

Government Grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and such grants can reasonably have a value placed upon them.

Government grants are recognised in statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Group recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement are comprise of cash at bank and cash in hand and
short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings
in current liabilities in the balance sheet and forms part of financing activities in the cash flow statement. Book overdraft
are shown within other financial liabilities in the balance sheet and forms part of operating activities in the cash flow
statement.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Expected Credit Loss

The impairment provisions for trade receivables is based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgements in making certain assumptions and selecting inputs to determine impairment of these trade
receivables, based on the Group’s historical experience towards potential billing adjustments, delays and defaults at the
end of each reporting period.
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Note No. 2.2
CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS (in Lacs)
Particulars As At As At
31t March, 2022 31t March, 2021
Opening Balance 8105.79 5569.03
Additions during the year 10969.23 3246.56
Capitalised during the year 12851.77 709.80
Closing Balance 6223.25 8105.79
CWIP aging schedule as at 31 March, 2022 (X in Lacs)
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars |
Less than 1 2-3 More then 3 Tota
1- 2 years
year years years
Projects in progress 5,502.85 587.54 73.02 59.84 6,223.25
Projects temporarily suspended # - - - - -
Total 5,502.85 587.54 73.02 59.84 6,223.25

CWIP aging schedule as at 31 March, 2021 (X in Lacs)
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Less than 1 2-3 More then 3 Total
1- 2 years
year years years

Projects in progress 3,388.58 982.37 138.73 3,596.11 8,105.79

Projects temporarily suspended # - - - - -
Total 3,388.58 982.37 138.73 3,596.11 8,105.79
Note No. 2.3
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

(% in Lacs)
Particulars As At As At
31t March, 2022 31t March, 2021

Opening Balance 1,718.06 1,438.59
Addition during the year - 484.37
Deletion during the year - -
Depreciation 256.70 204.90
Closing Balance * 1,461.36 1,718.06

* (Refer note 32 for disclosure)
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Note No. 2.4
GOODWILL (X in Lacs)
Particulars As At As At
31t March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Opening Balance 4,162.07 4,162.07
Addition during the year - -
Impairment during the year - -
Closing Balance 4,162.07 4,162.07

Impairment testing

For the purpose of annual impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the operating segments expected to benefit from the
synergies of the business combinations in which the goodwill arises as set out below, and is compared to its recoverable value:

Goodwill allocated to operating segments (X in Lacs)
Particulars As At As At
31t March, 2022 31t March, 2021
Health Care Services 4,162.07 4,162.07
4,162.07 4,162.07

Goodwill impairments note

Goodwill is tested annually on 315t March for impairment, or sooner whenever there is an indication that goodwill may be impaired.
Impairment is recognized, when the carrying amount of a CGU including the goodwill, exceeds the estimated recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit (‘CGU’). The estimated value-in-use of this CGU is based on the future cash flow forecasts for FY 2021
to FY 2024 and then on perpetuity based on certain assumptions which include revenue growth, earnings before interest and
taxes, taxes, capital outflow and working capital requirement. The assumptions are taken based on past trends and management
estimates and judgement. Future cash flows are discounted with “Weighted Average Cost of Capital”. The key assumptions are as
follows:

Annual growth rate considered for 5 years (average) 16.03%
Terminal growth rate (i) 4.00%
Post-tax discount rate (ii) 13.70%
Budgeted EBIDTA growth rate considered 19.69%

(i) Terminal value has been arrived at by extrapolating the last forecasted year cash flows to perpetuity. This long-term growth
rate takes into consideration external macroeconomic sources of data. Such long-term growth rate considered does not
exceed that of the relevant business and industry sector.

(i) The after tax discount rates used are based on the Company’s weighted average cost of capital. Weighted Average Cost of
Capital % (WACC) = Risk free return + (Market premium x Beta for the company).

The estimate of recoverable amount is particularly sensitive towards post-tax discount rate and terminal growth rate. There will
be no impairment even if the weighted average cost of capital is increased by .5% and the terminal growth rate is decreased by
.5%. Management is not currently aware of any other reasonably possible changes to key assumptions that would cause a unit’s
carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

185




ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES LIMITED

Note No. 2.5
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (% in Lacs)
Particulars As At As At
31t March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
COST OR DEEMED COST Computer Computer
Software Software
Opening Balance 645.47 642.72
Addition during the year 32.27 2.92
Deletion during the year - (0.17)
Closing Balance 677.75 645.47
AMORTIZATION
Opening Balance 376.77 297.24
Addition during the year 68.23 79.59
Deletion during the year - (0.06)
Closing Balance 444.99 376.77
NET BOOK VALUE 232.75 268.70
Note No. 2.6
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT (% in Lacs)
Particulars As At As At
31t March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
Opening Balance - -
Addition during the year 194.02 -
Capitalised during the year - -
Closing Balance 194.02 -

Other Intangible assets under development ageing schedule as at 31 March, 2022 (% in Lacs)
Amount in CWIP for a period of than
Particulars ot s Total
ess than 1- 2 years | 2-3 years ore than
1vyear years
Other Intangible assets under development 194.02 - - - 194.02
Total 194.02 - - - 194.02
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022

(% in Lacs)
Note particulars As At As At
No. 31t March, 2022 | 31t March, 2021
Financial Assets
3.1 | Loans
Non Current
(Unsecured, Considered good)
Others
Loans & advances to Employees * 27.57 56.87
Total 27.57 56.87
Current
(Unsecured, Considered good)
Others
Loans & advances to Employees * 78.90 54.20
Total 78.90 54.20
*  Loans & advances to Employees includes dues 43.00 61.50
from Executive Director, KMP etc. (Refer Note 31)
(As a part of service condition extended to all its eligible employees)
3.2 | Other Financial Assets
Non Current
Security Deposits 263.10 203.08
Fixed Deposit in banks having original maturity and
remaining maturity of more than 12 months ** 48.00 18.67
(Refer Note 9)
Total 311.10 221.75
Current
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 13.08 17.01
Unbilled Revenue (Accrued operating income) 574.65 446.21
Total 587.73 463.22
** Given as security to secure bank guarantee issued to Government Authorities.
(% in Lacs)
Note particulars As At As At
No. 31t March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
4. Non-Current (Net)
Income Tax Recoverable (Net of provision for taxation) 2,160.85 1,675.42
Total 2,160.85 1,675.42

(Aggregate amount of Tax Provisions as on 31% March, 2022 ¥ 1678.82 Lacs (Previous year ¥ 854.30 Lacs)
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(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31t March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
5. Other Assets
Non-Current (Unsecured, Considered good)
Capital Advances # 482.33 686.05
Prepaid Expenses 8.96 6.72
Total 491.29 692.77
Current (Unsecured, Considered good)
Advances recoverable 26.85 58.40
Balances with statutory / government authorities 18.15 29.49
Prepaid Expenses 142.24 142.68
Export Incentive receivable 500.00 652.90
Total 687.24 883.47
# includes advances given to the private limited company, in which director of the company is director.
(Refer Note 31)
(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31t March, 2022 | 31t March, 2021
6. Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Stock of Pharmacy Drugs & Medical Consumables 1,141.55 878.40
Stock in Trade (Pharmacy and Other Items) 0.18 13.56
Stores & Spares 97.94 70.46
Total 1,239.67 962.42
(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31t March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
7. Trade Receivables
Current - at amortised cost
Considered good 7,953.32 6,163.97
Significant increase Credit in Risk 94.98 113.04
Credit Impaired - -
Less: Allowance for credit losses (706.84) (805.32)
Total 7,341.45 5,471.70
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7.1 Trade Receivables ageing schedule
Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule as at 31 March, 2022

(% in Lacs)

Outstanding for following Periods from due date of payments

Less 6 1-2 2.3 More
Not due | than 6 | months Years ears than 3 Total
Month | -1 year y years
Undisputed Trade Receivables— considered good | 2,617.37(3,410.45| 797.65|511.23| 352.08 264.54| 7,953.32
Undisputed Trade Receivables— which have - - - - - 94.98 94.98
significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade Receivables— credit impaired - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables — which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade Receivables— credit impaired - - - - - - -
Total 2,617.37|3,410.45| 797.65|511.23| 352.08 359.52| 8,048.30
Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule as at 31 March, 2021 (X in Lacs)

Outstanding for following Periods from due date of payments

Less 6 1-2 2.3 More
Not due | than 6 | months Years ears than 3 Total
Month | -1year v years
Undisputed Trade Receivables— considered good | 2,076.44(2,050.06| 432.16|653.51| 264.14 687.66| 6,163.97
Undisputed Trade Receivables— which have - - - - - 113.04 113.04
significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade Receivables— credit impaired - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables — which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade Receivables— credit impaired - - - - - - -
Total 2,076.4412,050.06| 432.16|653.51| 264.14 800.70| 6,277.01
(% in Lacs)
7.2 | Trade Receivables Includes :
Particulars As At As At
31t March, 2022 31 March, 2021
- Dues from KMP’s and Enterprises owned or significantly influenced. 108.92 85.42

7.3 Asperind AS 109, the Group is required to apply expected credit loss model for recognizing the allowance for doubtful debts.
The Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss on portfolio of its trade receivable. The provision matrix is
based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-
looking estimates. At regular intervals, the historically observed default rates are updated and changes in forward-looking

estimates are analysed.

The Group uses judgements in making certain assumptions and selecting inputs to determine impairment of these trade
receivables, based on the Company’s historical experience towards potential billing adjustments, delays and defaults at the

end of each reporting period.

The Group has recorded an allowance of ¥ 706.84 Lacs (Previous Year ¥ 805.32 Lacs) towards trade receivables. The
Management believes that there is no further provision required in excess of the allowance for credit loss.
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The movement in allowance for expected credit loss in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

(% in Lacs)
. As At As At
Allowance for expected credit loss 31% March, 2022 31% March, 2021
Opening balance 805.32 497.69
Credit loss created /(reversed) (98.47) 307.63
Closing balance 706.84 805.32

7.4 The Group’s exposure to currency risks related to trade receivables are disclosed in note ( Refer Note 36 ).
7.5 Refer Note 12 for information on trade receivable hypothecated as security by the Company.
7.6 No single customer accounted for more than 10% of the revenue as of 315 March, 2022 & 31t March, 2021. There is no
significant concentration of credit risk.
(% in Lacs)
Note particulars As At As At
No. 31 March, 2022 31t March, 2021
8. Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balance with Banks:
- In Current Accounts 1,484.57 1,180.60
- Bank deposit with original maturity of three
months or less. - 600.00
Cash on hand 85.30 135.60
Total 1,569.88 1,916.20
(% in Lacs)
Note particulars As At As At
No. 31t March, 2022 31 March, 2021
9. Other Bank Balances
Fixed Deposit in banks having original maturity of more than
3 months and remaining maturity of less than 12 months* 1,199.91 1,195.78
Fixed Deposit in banks having original maturity of more than
12 months and remaining maturity of more than 12 months* 48.00 18.67
Amount disclosed under Other Non-Current Financial Assets (48.00) (18.67)
Total 1,199.91 1,195.78

*Given as security of ¥ 148.37 Lacs (Previous Year ¥ 128.52 Lacs ) to secure bank guarantee issued to Government Authorities.

(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
10. | Share Capital:
Authorised Shares (in nos.)
69,55,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 1/- each # 6,955.00 6,955.00
(6,95,50,000 as at 31 March, 2021 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each)
11% Non-Cumulative 50,000 Preference Shares of ¥ 100/- each 50.00 50.00
(50,000 as at 31 March, 2021 Preference Shares of ¥ 100/- each)
Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Shares (in nos.)
13,23,77,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 1/- Each #
(1,32,37,700 as at 31t March, 2021 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid up) 1,323.77 1,323.77
Total Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Capital 1,323.77 1,323.77
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a.

Reconciliation of the equity shares at the beginning and at the end of the year

As At As At
Reconciliation 31* March, 2022 31* March, 2021
Nos. (T in Lacs) Nos. (% in Lacs)
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,32,37,700 1,323.77 | 1,32,37,700 1,323.77
Share Split from face value of ¥ 10/- to T 1/- each equity 11,91,39,300 -
shares (refer # below).
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 13,23,77,000 1,323.77 | 1,32,37,700 1,323.77

Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares

The Holding company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 1 per share (315 March, 2021 % 10 per
share). Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share, where voting is held by show of hands. In case of Poll
each holder of equity share is entitled to Number of votes against Number of shares held.

In the event of liquidation of the holding company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets
of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity
shares held by the equity share holders.

Shares held by holding / ultimate holding company and / or their subsidiaries / associates:

As At 31t March, 2022 As At 31 March, 2021

Name of the Shareholder
No. of Shares # | (Zin Lacs) | No. of Shares | (3 in Lacs)

Constructive Finance Private Limited - holding company 9,24,25,790 924.26 92,42,579 924.26

Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Equity Shares in the Company:

As At 31° March, 2022 As At 31°t March, 2021
Name of the Shareholder o o
No. of Shares # % qf No. of Shares % qf
Holding Holding
Constructive Finance Private Limited - holding company 9,24,25,790 69.82% 92,42,579 69.82%
Governor of Kerala 67,49,500 5.10% 6,74,950 5.10%

Shares reserved for issue under options

Pursuant to approved employee stock option scheme 2020, the Group has granted 69,67,000 nos of employees stock options
of which none of the options have been exercised. Also refer Note 45.

Shares held by promotors :

As At 31t March, 2022 As At 31 March, 2021
Name of the Shareholder No. of Shares # H:f;doi:ng No. of Shares H:f;doi];g
Onkar Kanwar 5,000 0.00% 500 0.00%
Constructive Finance Private Limited 9,24,25,790 69.82% 92,42,579 6.98%
Total 9,24,30,790 69.82% 92,43,079 6.98%

As per the records of the Group, including its register of shareholders/members and other declaration received from the
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.
There has been no change in promoter Shareholding at the end of current year as compared to previous year end.

# The Board of Directors of Artemis Medicare Services Limited (‘Group’) in its meeting held on 5™ August, 2021, approved
a proposal for sub-division of the face value of the equity shares of the Company from ¥ 10 per equity share to ¥ 1 per
equity share i.e. 1 equity share to be split into 10 equity shares. Subsequent to the approval of the above proposal by
the shareholders of the Group, the record date was fixed as 24" September, 2021 and thereafter the sub-division became
effective.
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(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
11. | Other Equity:

Capital Reserve
Balance as per last financial statements 14,457.89 14,457.89
Closing Balance (A) 14,457.89 14,457.89
Revaluation Reserve
Balance as per last financial statements 6,638.97 6,598.31
Add : Deferred tax adjustment on revaluation 54.22 40.66
Closing Balance (B) 6,693.18 6,638.97
Retained earnings
Balance as per last financial statements 9,687.54 9,038.96
Add : Profit / (Loss) for the year 3,181.44 648.58
Closing Balance (C) 12,868.97 9,687.54
Items of OCI re-measurement
Balance as per last financial statements (88.78) (94.87)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) (refer note 35) (87.81) 6.09
Balance at end of year (D) (176.59) (88.78)
Share option outstanding account
Balance as per last financial statements - -
Additions during the years 775.26 -
Closing Balance (E) 775.26 -
Total Other Equity ('ﬁ ‘I; E E)c 34,618.71 30,695.62

Capital Reserve

Capital reserve represents excess of assets over liabilities and share issued consequent to scheme of arrangement
of transferor companies in earlier years.

Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation Reserve represents freehold land revalued as on 31 March, 2016 as per independent valuer report.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings represents the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfer of general
reserve, dividends or other distributions to shareholders etc.

Share option outstanding account

The share options outstanding account is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees
under the Company’s Employee stock option plan. Refer note 45.
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(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31t March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
12. | Borrowings
Non Current Borrowings
Term Loans
From Banks
—alnadniqaonr::epdeiolsota)ns from Banks (secured 16,129.07 10,773.34
Total 16,129.07 10,773.34
Current Maturity
Term Loans
From Banks
- Indian Rupee loans from Banks (secured) 2,227.25 1,964.60
(at amortised cost)
Transferred to Other Financial Liability (Note 15) (2,227.25) (1,964.60)

Total

1.

Indian Rupee Loans from Banks include :

a) Term loans* of ¥ 17270.15 Lacs (As at 31 March, 2021 % 11721.73 Lacs) from Scheduled Bank carries
interest as linked with Base Rate of banks.The loans are secured by first pari passu charge over Land & Building
located at Sector 51, Gurgaon, Haryana and charge over all movable fixed assets, both present & future and

second pari passu charge on current assets.

* Term Loans As At As At

31t March, 2022 | 31t March, 2021
HDFC Bank Ltd 7,308.63 6,001.71
IDFC Bank Ltd 4,067.33 3,294.39
Axis Bank Ltd. 5,894.19 2,425.63
Total 17,270.15 11,721.73

b) Term loans of ¥ 1080.92 Lacs (As at 31%* March, 2021 ¥ 966.87 Lacs ) from Scheduled Bank carries interest as
linked with one year MCLR. The loans are secured by the charge on entire movable fixed assets and second charge on

current assets.

c) Vehicle Loans of ¥ 5.24 Lacs (As at 315t March, 2021 ¥ 49.34 Lacs) from Scheduled Bank carries interest as linked with
Bank’s Prime Lending Rate (PLR). The Loan is secured on exclusive charge on the vehicles financed out of the said term

loan.
Repayment Schedule FY 2022-23 | FY2023-24 | FY2024-25 | FY2025-26 after
FY 2025-26
Secured Loan
Term Loan - HDFC Bank Limited 1,789.25 1,362.48 802.62 953.78 3,574.19
Term Loan - Axis Bank Limited 179.80 359.59 539.39 719.19 4,195.27
Term Loan - IDFC First Bank Limited 252.96 500.26 602.58 670.79 2,054.92
Vehicle Loan - HDFC Bank Limited 5.24 - - - -
Processing Cost IND-AS adjustments (34.55) (34.98) (34.42) (31.45) (70.60)
Total 2,192.70 2,187.37 1,910.17 2,312.31 9,753.78
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(% in Lacs)
As At As At
NN°‘e Particulars 31% March, 2022 31% March, 2021
o.
Non-Current Current Non-Current Current

13. [ Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits
Leave Benefits 222.43 111.11 193.28 99.02
Gratuity 605.82 272.32 471.68 200.74
(Refer Note 35)
Other Provisions
Provision for Contingencies - 670.77 - 719.52
(Refer Note 39)
Total 828.25 1,054.20 664.96 1,019.28

(Zin Lacs)
. Credit / Credit / (Charge)
14 Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) As at (Charge) to to Other As at
) in relation to: 1% April, 2020 . & Comprehensive | 31 March, 2021
Profit or loss
Income

Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) (Net)
The following is the analysis of deferred
tax assets / liabilities Recognised in profit
and loss account and other comprehensive
income
Property, plant and equipment (5,148.26) 173.30 40.66 (4,934.30)
(including intangible assets)
Other provisions 238.36 13.10 - 251.46
Allowance for I?oubtful Debts 173.92 107.49 i 28141
(Expected credit loss)
Employee Benefits 303.36 36.52 (3.30) 336.58
Lease Liabilities 535.31 139.59 - 674.90
MAT Credit Entitlement 778.80 (658.09) - 120.71
Fair Value Adjustments (0.61) 6.70 - 6.09
Unabsorbed Losses 46.41 52.37 - 98.78
Others 164.34 98.57 - 262.91
Total (2,908.37) (30.45) 37.36 (2,901.46)
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(% in Lacs)
Credit / Credit / (Charge)
14 Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) i As at (Charge) to to Other As at
’ n relation to: 1% April, 2021 X Comprehensive | 31 March, 2022
Profit or loss
Income

Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) (Net)
The following is the analysis of deferred
tax assets / liabilities Recognised in profit
and loss account and other comprehensive
income
Property, plant and equipment
. I . (4,934.30) 898.11 54.22 (3,981.98)
(including intangible assets)
Other provisions 251.46 (82.62) - 168.84
Allowance for Doubtful Debts
(Expected credit loss) 281.41 (104.83) - 176.58
Employee Benefits 336.58 (60.84) 29.47 305.21
Lease Liabilities 674.90 (230.97) - 443.93
MAT Credit Entitlement 120.71 (120.71) - 0.00
Fair Value Adjustments 6.09 2.71 - 8.80
Unabsorbed Losses 98.78 69.23 - 168.01
Others 262.91 (123.92) - 138.99
Total (2,901.48) 246.18 83.69 (2,571.61)

Note : Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset as they are governed by the same taxation laws.

* Including MAT credit write off of ¥ 175.83 Lacs as per section 115 JB (5A) (ii) of Income Tax Act 1961.(Previous year I 435.55 Lacs
forming part of MAT Credit Utilisation)

(% in Lacs)
Note particulars As At As At
No. 31t March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
15. | Borrowings
Term Loan (current maturity) (Refer Note 12) 2,227.25 1,964.60
Total 2,227.25 1,964.60
Note 15.1

(The Group has been sanctioned overdraft credit limit of ¥ 40 Cr including ¥ 10 Cr non-fund based limit. It carries interest rate
linked with 3 Month MCLR and are repayable on demand. The Overdraft limit is secured by 1st Pari passu charge on current assets
and 2nd pari passu charge on movable & Immovable fixed assets, both present & future).

Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31 March, 2022 | 31* March, 2021
16. | Trade payables

Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 33) 1,293.18 1,099.10
Total Ogtstandmg dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small 4,703.90 4,627.84
Enterprises
Total 5,997.08 5,726.94
Note .16.1: Trade Payables ageing schedule (% in Lacs)

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule as at 31 March, 2022

Outstanding for following Periods from

due date of payments

Lef?;g?n 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years M;;Z;T:n Total
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 1,293.18 - - - 1,293.18
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 4,011.69 236.86 163.56 291.80 4,703.91
Disputed Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises - - - - -
Disputed Dues to Others - - - - -
Total 5,304.86 236.86 163.56 291.80 5,997.08
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Trade Payables Ageing Schedule as at 31 March, 2021

(% in Lacs)

Outstanding for following Periods from
due date of payments

Less than 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years More than Total
1 Year 3 years
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 1,099.10 - - - 1,099.10
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 3,487.63 641.64 196.30 302.27 4,627.84
Disputed Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises - - - - -
Disputed Dues to Others - - - - -
Total 4,586.73 641.64 196.30 302.27 5,726.94
(% in Lacs)
Note particulars As At As At
No. 31% March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
17. | Other Financial Liabilities (secured)
Current
Other Payable # 1,832.82 933.22
Interest Accrued but not due on borrowings 54.77 48.85
Total 1,887.59 982.07
# Other payable includes payments due on account of capital items, due to employees.
Note particulars As At As At
No. 31 March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
18. | Other Liabilities
Current
Advance from Patients / Others * 1,080.48 939.66
Taxes and Other Statutory Dues * * 524.84 422.18
Security Deposits 311.75 317.71
Deferred Government Grant * * * 464.18 190.98
Total 2,381.25 1,870.53

*

* ¥

Advance from Patients/ Others for which the Group is obliged to transfer services to the patients/ Others.

Taxes and other statutory dues includes Withholding Tax,Goods & Services Tax and contribution of P F, ESI etc.

* * * During the year, the group has obtained EPCG License against import of fixed assets. The company has recognised this grant
as deferred income at fair value, which is being amortised in proportion to fulfillment of Export Obligation (Refer note 38B).

(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31t March, 2022 | 31t March, 2021
19. | Revenue from Operations
Sale of Services
Revenue from Healthcare & Other Services 53,888.93 39,670.09
Sale of Goods
Sale of Pharmacy Drugs & Medical Consumables 1,319.35 890.66
Sale of Stock in Trade (Pharmacy) 26.54 84.13
Other Operating Income
Income from Nursing Hostel 26.52 30.73
Income from Education & Training 96.21 71.37
Unclaimed credit balances / provisions no longer
required written back 82.87 85.48
Sale of Scrap 39.69 7.88
Total 55,480.12 40,840.34
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(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
20. Other Income
Interest Income 148.89 182.37
- From Bank deposits 139.09 134.54
- From Financial Assets carried at amortised cost 9.80 6.89
- From Others (including interest on tax refunds) (0.00) 40.94
Income from outsource activities (Cafeteria, Parking etc.) 72.72 36.63
Other Non-Operating Income (net of reimbursements) 119.19 105.81
Foreign Exchange Gain (Net) 49.14 29.02
Total 389.94 353.83
(% in Lacs)
Note particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31t March, 2022 31t March, 2021
21. Operative Expenses
Material and Consumables 15,480.94 11,570.25
Outsource Lab Test Charges 340.88 365.61
Fees to Doctors and Consultation 12,549.09 9,216.82
Professional Medical Consultancy 3,028.36 2,254.10
Power, Fuel and Water Expenses 1,303.13 934.95
Housekeeping and Catering 996.19 766.57
Securities Expenses 247.53 213.92
Linen and Uniform 208.29 159.87
Total 34,154.40 25,482.08
(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
22. | (Increase) / Decrease in Inventories of
Stock in Trade
Inventories at the beginning of the year 13.56 59.20
Inventories at the end of the year 0.18 13.38 13.56 45.64
Total 13.38 45.64
(% in Lacs)
Note particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31t March, 2022 31t March, 2021
23. Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages and Bonus* 9,530.12 7,644.26
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 490.34 410.14
Gratuity Expenses (Refer note 35) 155.88 132.89
Employee Welfare Expenses 253.66 211.72
Total 10,430.00 8,399.01

* includes expense related to shared based payment of ¥ 775.26 lacs ( Previous year :Nil)
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(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31 March, 2022 315t March, 2021
24. Finance Costs
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost
- On term Loans 764.73 915.18
- On lease liability 170.41 167.93
Other Interest Expense 0.70 1.44
Bank Charges (Including Other Borrowing Costs) 261.67 207.98
Total 1,197.51 1,292.53
(X in Lacs)
Note Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
25. Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,894.35 1,866.89
Amortization of intangible assets 68.23 79.59
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets 256.70 204.90
Total 2,219.28 2,151.38
(% in Lacs)
Note Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31t March, 2022 31 March, 2021
26. | Other expenses
Consumption of stores & spares 150.07 103.50
Rent - Lease Rent 54.56 30.55
Equipment Hire Charges 197.70 147.43
Repairs and Maintenance - Machinery 1,306.77 985.92
Repairs and Maintenance - Buildings 177.22 19.78
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 202.69 167.05
Rates & Taxes 98.89 87.03
Legal & Professional Consultation Fees 407.38 332.44
AGM & Annual Listing Expenses 26.44 21.28
Printing & Stationery 132.02 111.16
Provision for Contingencies - 37.49
Travelling & Conveyance 258.94 168.89
Advertisement & Business Promotion 236.82 96.80
Patients Amenities 24.83 35.00
Communication Expenses 57.42 61.01
Charity & Donation 27.06 21.49
Insurance 79.21 74.31
Clinical Research Expenses 320.73 331.02

198




ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES LIMITED

Note Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

No. 31 March, 2022 31t March, 2021
Auditors Remuneration
- Audit Fee 9.17 12.69
- Limited Review 9.35 3.89
- Tax Audit Fee 2.36 3.48
- Others Services & Certification 2.77 2.60
Directors Sitting Fees 28.17 33.21
CSR Expenses 53.71 78.19
Balance written off Export Incentive 152.90 -
Newspaper & Periodicals 29.95 19.13
Bad Debts Written Off 113.04 22.42
Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (98.47) 307.63
;z;s;qnu?srlse/nic(ﬁgt;)f Property, Plant 52.11 23.81
Miscellaneous Expenses 13.52 24.87
Total 4,127.36 3,364.09

TAX EXPENSE (% in Lacs)

Note Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

No. 31 March, 2022 31t March, 2021

27. | Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss account
Current Tax
(a) In respect of the current year 824.52 670.51
(b) Earlier years tax (55.13) 94.14
Total 769.39 764.65
Deferred Tax
(a) In respect of the current year (191.06) (627.63)
';'z:::teme recognised through statement of profit and loss 578.33 137.02
Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year (83.69) (37.36)
Tax credit recognised through Other Comprehensive Income (83.69) (37.36)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
accounting profit as follows:
Profit before tax 3,718.48 753.02
Enacted income tax rate in India 25.17% 34.94%
Income tax calculated 935.87 263.14
Earlier years Tax (55.13) 94.14
Expenses not allowed for tax purposes 142.12 375.53
Additional allowances for tax purposes (500.84) (490.22)
Effect of other adjustments 56.30 (105.57)
Income tax expense recognised in profit and loss 578.33 137.02
Effective Tax Rate 15.55% 18.20%
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Note No.
28. Segmental Reporting
Operating segments

Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” (“Ind AS 108”) establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report
information about operating segments and related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major
customers. Based on the “management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108, Operating segments are to be reported in a
manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).The CODM evaluates
the Group’s performance and allocates resources on overall basis. The Group’s sole operating segment is therefore ‘Medical
and Healthcare Services’. Accordingly, there are no additional disclosure to be provided under Ind AS 108, other than those
already provided in the consolidated financial statements.

Geographical information

Geographical information analyses the Group’s revenue and non current assets by the Group’s country of domicile (i.e. India)
and other countries. In presenting the geographical information, segment revenue has been based on the geographical
location of the customers and segment assets which have been based on the geographical location of the assets.

Secondary Segment - Geographical Location of customers

India Outside India Total
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
(% in Lacs) (T in Lacs) (% in Lacs) (T in Lacs) (T in Lacs) (T in Lacs)
Revenue by geographical 45,953.93 34,685.64 9,526.20 6,154.70 55,480.12 40,840.34
markets
Non current assets 57,923.02 48,783.32 - - 57,923.02 48,783.32
29. Capital and Other Commitments
(X in Lacs)

As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021

a) Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed

on capital account not provided for (Net of Advances) >,228.74

8,206.98

b) Other Commitments

i) For commitments relating to lease arrangement,
please refer Note 32.

ii)  The Group does not have any long term commitments or material non-cancellable contractual commitments/
contracts, including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

30. Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

i) Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year ended 315 March, 2022 ¥ 53.35 lacs
(during the year ended 315 March, 2021 % 71.65 lacs)
ii)  Amount approved by board of directors ¥ 53.35 lacs (Previous year 71.65 lacs)

iii)  Amount spent during the year ended 31 March, 2022

(% in Lacs)

Particulars Paid (A) | Yetto be paid (B) | Total (A+B)

(i) Construction / acquisition of any property, plant and equipment - - -
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 53.71 - 53.71
78.19* - 78.19*

*For the year ended 31 March, 2021
iv)  Details of related party transactions :

a) Contribution during the year ended 31 March, 2022 ¥ 6.55 Lacs (Year ended 315 March, 2021 - ¥ 2.54 Lacs)

b) Payable as at 31 March, 2022 T Nil (Year ended 31 March, 2020 - ¥ Nil)
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(v) Details of ongoing CSR projects under section 135(6) of the Companies Act, 2013

(% in Lacs)

For the year ended

31 March, 2022
Balance as at 1t April, 2021
With the Group -
In separate CSR Unspent account -
Amount required to be spent during the period 47.16
47.16
Amount spent during the period
From the Group’s bank account 47.16
From separate CSR Unspent account -
47.16
Balance as at 31 March, 2022
With the Group -
In separate CSR Unspent account -
(vi) Details of CSR expenditure under section 135(5) of the Act in respect of other than ongoing projects (% in Lacs)
For the year ended
31 March, 2022
Balance as at 1 April, 2021 -
Amount required to be spent during the period 6.55
Amount deposited in a specified fund of Schedule VII of the Act with in 6 months - -
Amount spent during the period/year (6.55)
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 -
(vii) Details of excess CSR expenditure under section 135(5) of the Act (% in Lacs)
For the year ended
31t March, 2022
Balance excess spent as at 1 April, 2021 -
Amount required to be spent during the period 53.35
Amount spent during the year (53.71)
Balance excess spent as at 31 March, 2022 (0.36)

31. Related party disclosure

a) Name of related parties
(i) Holding Company Constructive Finance Private Limited
(ii) Other related parties
Director and Key Management Personnel  Mr. Onkar Kanwar (Chairman)
Dr. Devlina Chakravarty (Managing Director)

Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Kothari (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Rakesh Kaushik (Chief Legal Officer & Company Secretary) (up to

21% Oct, 2020)

Ms. Shilpa Budhia (Company Secretary) (from 5% Nov, 2020)

Mr. Neeraj Kanwar (Non-Executive Director)
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Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel#t#

Non-Executive Directors

Enterprises owned or Jointly Controlled
Entities of Promoter - Promoter Group ##

Mrs. Shalini Kanwar Chand (Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Arpit Jain (CEO) Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited (upto
31 Aug 2021)

Mrs. Taru Kanwar

Mrs. Devarchana Rana

Dr. Nirmal Kumar Ganguly (Non-Executive Director)
Dr. S. Narayan (Independent Director)

Dr. Sanjaya Baru (Independent Director)

Mr. Akshay Kumar Chudasama (Independent Director) (upto 4 Aug,
2020)

Ms. Deepa Gopalan Wadhwa (from 22" May, 2020)

Mr. Sunil Tandon (Independent Director) (upto 9t Oct, 2020)
Mr. Sanjib Sen (Independent Director) (from 3™ Aug, 2020)
Mr. Ugar Sain Anand (Independent Director) (upto 9t Oct, 2020)
Dr. Gautam Chaudhuri (from 3 Aug, 2020 till 8t Mar, 2021)
Apollo Tyres Limited

Apollo International Limited

Artemis Health Sciences Foundation

Artemis Education & Research Foundation

Swaranganga Consultants Private Limited

Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Apollo Tyres Centre of Excellence Limited

## where transactions have taken plance during the year or previous year/ balances outstanding
Notes: Related parties and their relationships are as identified by the management and relied upon by the auditors. All
transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s length.

b) Transactions during the year

(% in Lacs)
Enterprises owned
Key Management or significantly
influenced by
Parent Company Personnel and k
. . ey management
their relatives .
Particulars personnel or their
relatives
315t 315t 315( 315t 315t 315t
March, | March, | March, | March, March, March,
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Reimbursement of Expenses Received
CSR Expenses
Artemis Health Sciences Foundation - - - - 6.55 2.54
Recovery of Loans & Advances
Dr. Devlina Chakravarty - - 12.00 12.00 - -
Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Kothari - - 6.00 6.00 - -
Lease Expenses *
Apollo Tyres Centre of Excellence Limited - - - - 0.53 -
Swaranganga Consultants Private Limited - - - - 1.94 2.64
Charges for support services
Artemis Education Research Foundation - - - - 18.86 17.43
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Parent Company

Key Management
Personnel and
their relatives

Enterprises owned
or significantly
influenced by

key management

Particulars personnel or their
relatives
31 31 31 31 31 31
March, | March, | March, | March, March, March,
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Sale of Services / License
Total Transactions - - 16.13 43.00 957.49 233.79
Transactions in excess of 10%
---- Apollo Tyres Limited - - - - 949.55 225.42
Purchase of services / goods *
Apollo Tyres Limited - - - - 7.08 7.08
Mrs. Devarchana Rana - - 7.35 541 - -
Dr. Nirmal Kumar Ganguly - - 19.80 20.17 -
Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited - - - - 4,170.72 | 4,212.96
Donation Paid
Artemis Education & Research Foundation - - - - 20.00 18.00
Artemis Health Sciences Foundation - - - - 7.06 3.49
Directors’ Sitting Fees paid
Mr. Onkar Kanwar - - 2.20 2.80 - -
Mr. Neeraj Singh Kanwar - - 2.80 2.80 - -
Mrs. Shalini Kanwar Chand - - 2.80 3.80 - -
Dr. S. Narayan - - 2.20 4.60 - -
Dr. Sanjaya Baru - - 2.30 3.00 - -
Dr. Nirmal Kumar Ganguly - - 3.20 2.80 - -
Mr. Sunil Tandon - - 2.60 1.00 - -
Mr. Ugar Sain Anand - - - 1.40 - -
Mr. Akshay Kumar Chudasama - - - 1.80 - -
Ms. Deepa Gopalan Wadhwa - - 3.40 2.60 - -
Mr. Sanjib Sen - - 2.40 1.70 - -
Key management personnel-Compensation
Dr. Devlina Chakravarty - -1 475.29| 493.99 - -
Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Kothari - - 75.96 69.27 - -
Mr. Rakesh Kaushik - - - 48.55 - -
Ms. Shilpa Budhia - - 24.41 11.27 - -

203




ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES LIMITED

Enterprises owned
Key Management qr significantly
influenced by
Parent Company Personnel and k
. . ey management
their relatives -
Particulars personnel or their
relatives
31 31 31 31 31 31
March, | March, | March, | March, March, March,
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Mr. Arpit Jain - - 26.36 33.72 - -
Defined benefit obligation as at year end
Post-employment benefits - - 87.99 78.77 - -
Short-term benefits - - 26.66 28.58 - -
Total - -| 114.65( 107.35 - -
Dr. Devlina Chakravarty - - 93.26 89.16 - -
Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Kothari - - 20.10 14.21 - -
Ms. Shilpa Budhia - - 1.29 0.35 - -
Mr. Arpit Jain - - - 3.63 - -
Total - -| 114.65| 107.35 - -
* Transactions are reported including taxes.
(% in Lacs)
Balance Payable Name of Entity 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Key Management Personnel and Relatives of Director & KMP - -
their relatives
Dr. Nirmal Kumar Ganguly - 0.76
Mr. Arpit Jain 3.87 3.57
Enterprises owned or significantly Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited 256.27 404.39
influenced by key management
personnel or their relatives
(Zin Lacs)
Balance Recoverable Name of Entity 31t March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Key Management Personnel Relatives of Director & KMP 7.39 7.97
and their relatives .
Dr. Devlina Chakravarty 27.01 32.56
Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Kothari 12.87 18.87
Enterprises owned or Apollo Tyres Limited 59.63 16.85
significantly influenced by key . .
Apollo International Limited 2.02 9.17
management personnel or
their relatives Artemis Education & Research Foundation 11.11 11.11
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C.

32. Leases
Movement of Lease Liabilities during the year (% in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31t March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,931.37 1,531.90
Addition during the year (3.24) 474.07
Finance cost accrued during the year 170.41 167.93
Payment of Lease Liability (164.26) (242.53)
Balance at the end of the year 1,934.28 1,931.37
Impact on the statement of profit or loss ( increase / (decrease) ) (% in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31t March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
Depreciation expense 256.70 204.90
Rent expense (included in Other expenses) (164.26) (242.53)
Finance Cost 170.41 167.93
Loss (profit) for the year 262.85 130.30
The following is the cash outflow on lease during year (% in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31t March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Payment of lease liabilities 334.66 242.53
Short term lease expense 54.56 30.55
Total Cash outflow on leases 389.23 273.08
The table below provides detail regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on undiscounted cases
(% in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
Less than 1 year 398.48 389.22
1to 5years 932.79 1,091.78
Over 5 years 1,929.32 2,116.68
Total Cash outflow on leases 3,260.59 3,597.68

a. The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regards to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to

meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when fall due.

b. Lease payments during the period have been disclosed under financing activities in the Consolidated Statement of Cash

flows.

33. The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been identified by the Group from the available information, which has been

relied upon by the auditors. According to such identification, the disclosures as per Section 22 of “The Micro, Small and

Medium Enterprise Development (MSMED) Act, 2006” are as follows:

(% in Lacs)
Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006 Year Ended Year Ended
315t March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier
at the end of each accounting year.
- Principal Amount 1,293.18 1,099.10

- Interest thereon

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro Small
and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting
year.

205




ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES LIMITED

Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006 Year Ended Year Ended

315t March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment - -
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but
without adding the interest specified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006.
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting - -
year.
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding - -
years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

34. Earning Per Share (EPS)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2022 31t March, 2021

Net profit after Tax
Profit / (Loss) attributable to the Equity Shareholders (% in Lacs) 3,181.44 648.58
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating (Numbers) 13,23,77,000 13,23,77,000
basic earning per share
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating (Numbers) 13,90,17,982 13,23,77,000
diluted earning per share
Earning Per Share (in Rupees)
- Basic (in%) 2.40 0.49
- Diluted (in%) 2.29 0.49
Nominal value of Equity Shares (in%) 1.00 1.00

* The shares pending for allotment for the previous year have been considered for the purpose of calculation of EPS
appropriately.

The Board of Directors of Artemis Medicare Services Limited (‘Group’) in its meeting held on 5" August, 2021, approved
a proposal for sub-division of the face value of the equity shares of the Company from ¥ 10 per equity share to ¥ 1 per
equity share i.e. 1 equity share to be split into 10 equity shares. Subsequent to the approval of the above proposal by the
shareholders of the Company, the record date was fixed as 24" September, 2021 and thereafter the sub-division became
effective. Accordingly, the basic and diluted earnings per equity share (EPS) have been computed for all the periods presented
in the Consolidated Financial Results of the Group on the basis of new number of equity shares in accordance with Ind AS

33 - Earnings per shares.

35. Employee Benefits
A)
i)

Defined Contribution Plan

The Group has recognized, in statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2022 an amount of ¥ 439.38
Lacs (Previous year ¥ 361.610 Lacs) under defined contribution plans.

Expense under defined contribution plans include: Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2022 31t March, 2021
(% in Lacs) (% in Lacs)
a)  Employer's contribution to provident fund 439.38 361.61
b)  Employer's contribution to Employee State Insurance Corporation - -
c) Employer's contribution to Labour Welfare Fund - -
439.38 361.61

The expense is disclosed in the line item - contribution to provident fund and other funds in Note 23.

206




ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES LIMITED

B) Defined Benefit Plan

i) The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of the
service gets a gratuity on retirement / termination at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year
of service. The Group has also provided for long-term compensated absences.

(% in Lacs)

Gratuity (unfunded) Leaves (unfunded)

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended  Year Ended
31 March, 31% March, 31t March, 31t March,
2022 2021 2022 2021
(i) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of obligations:
a) Obligation at the beginning 672.42 582.66 292.30 286.84
b)  Current Service Cost 119.55 100.25 72.21 60.10
c) Interest Cost 36.32 32.64 15.88 16.10
d) Past Service Cost - - - -
e) Actuarial (Gain) / Loss 117.16 (9.62) 8.93 (23.54)
f)  Benefits paid (67.33) (33.51) (55.78) (47.20)
g) Obligation at the year end 878.13 672.42 333.53 292.30
(ii)  Change in Plan Assets (Reconciliation of opening and closing balances):
a) Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning - - - -
b)  Prior Period Adjustment - - - -
c) Expected return on Plan Asset - - - -
d) Contributions - - - -
e) Benefits paid - - - -
f)  Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Plan Assets - - - -
g) Fair Value of Plan Assets at year end - - - -
(iii)  Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations:
a) Present value of obligation at year end 878.13 672.42 333.53 292.30
b)  Fair Value of Plan Assets at year end - - - -
c) Asset/ Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet 878.13 672.42 333.53 292.30
(iv) Amount recognized in the income statement
a) Current Service Cost 119.55 100.25 72.21 60.10
b) Past Service Cost - - - -
c) Interest Cost 36.32 32.64 15.88 16.10
d) Curtailment Cost (Credit) - - - -
e) Expected return on Plan Assets - - - -
f)  Actuarial (Gain) / Loss - - 8.93 (23.54)
g) Expenses recognized during the year 155.87 132.90 97.01 52.66
(v)  Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)
a) Unrealised actuarial Gain / (Loss) (117.16) 9.62 - -
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(vi)

b)

c)

d)

e)

Assumptions: Year Ended 31t March, 2022 Year Ended 31* March, 2021
Discounting Rate (per annum) 6.10% - 7.26% 5.40% - 6.76%
Future Salary Increase 5.00% 5.50%

Withdrawal / Employee Turnover Rate

Age upto 30 years 36.00% 36.00%

Age from 31 to 44 years 32.00% 32.00%

Age above 44 years 15.00% 15.00%
Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives

Mortality table used Mortality (2012-14 ult) Mortality (2012-14 ult)

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market.

Significant actuarial assumption for the determination of the defined obligation are discounted rate, expected salary
escalation rate and withdrawal rate. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably
possible changes of the respective assumption occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other
assumptions constant.

The above information is certified by the actuarial valuer.
Group best estimate of contribution during next year is¥ 148.74 Lacs for Gratuity & ¥ 77.24 Lacs for Leave Encashment.

The discount rate is based on prevailing market yield of Government Bonds as at the date of valuation.

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Increase  Decrease Increase  Decrease
Change in discount rate by 1.00% 37.00 40.86 28.13 30.14
Change in Salary escalation rate by 1.00% 40.91 37.71 29.82 28.36

Sensitivity due to mortality and withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change not calculated.

Sensitivity as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before
retirement and life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement

36. Financial Instruments

i)

Capital Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be able to continue as going concerns while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in Notes 12, 15 & 17 offset by cash and
bank balances) and total equity of the Group.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements other than for covenants under various loan
arrangements of the Group.

The Group’s Board reviews the capital structure of the Group on need basis. As part of this review, the Board considers the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The gearing ratio at 31 March, 2022 of 57.58% (previous
year 42.83%) (See below).

208




ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES LIMITED

Gearing Ratio :

The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows : (% in Lacs)
Particulars As at 31 March, 2022 | As at 31* March, 2021
Debt * 18,411.09 12,786.79
Less : Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 8) 1,569.88 1,916.20
Net Debt 16,841.21 10,870.59
Total Equity (Net of Revaluation Reserve) 29,249.30 25,380.42
Net Debt to Equity Ratio 57.58% 42.83%

* Debt is defined as long-term and short-term borrowings.

ii) Categories of Financial Instruments (% in Lacs)
Financial Assets Fair value hierarchy As at 31* March, 2022 | As at 31t March, 2021
(Level 1, 2, 3)

Measured at amortised cost

Loans- Non Current 3 27.57 56.87
Other Financial assets - Non Current 3 311.10 221.75
Trade receivables - Current 3 7,341.45 5,471.70
Cash and cash equivalents 3 1,569.88 1,916.20
Other Bank balances - Current 3 1,199.91 1,195.78
Loans - Current 3 78.90 54.20
Other financial assets - Current 3 587.73 463.22
Total 11,116.54 9,379.72

At the end of the reporting period, there are no significant concentrations of financial assets designated at FVTPL. The
carrying amount reflected above represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for such financial assets.

(% in Lacs)
Financial Liabilities Fair value hierarchy As at 31t March, 2022 | As at 31 March, 2021
(Level 1, 2, 3)

Measured at amortised cost

Borrowings - Non Current 3 16,129.07 10,773.34
Borrowings - Current 3 2,227.25 1,964.60
Trade payables - Current 3 5,997.08 5,726.94
Lease Liabilities - Non Current 3 1,495.57 1,612.99
Lease Liabilities - Current 3 268.31 318.38
Other financial liabilities - Current 3 1,887.59 982.07
Total 28,004.86 21,378.32

The management considers that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at
amortised cost in the balance sheet approximates their fair value.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of Company’s asset and liabilities, grouped
into Level 1 to Level 3 as described below :-
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i)

i. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
company can access at measurement date;

ii. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

iii. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets/liabilities

Financial Risk Management Objectives

The Group’s Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and
international financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks including market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Board of Directors manages the financial risk of the Group through internal risk reports which analyse exposure by
magnitude of risk. The Group has limited exposure from the international market as the Group’s operations are in India.
The Group has limited exposure towards foreign currency risk it earns approx. 11% of its revenue from in foreign currency
from international patients. Also capital expenditure includes capital goods purchased in foreign currency through the
overseas vendors. The Group has not taken any derivative contracts to hedge the exposure. However the exposure
towards foreign currency foreign currency fluctuation is party hedged naturally on account of receivable from customers
and payable to vendors in foreign currency.

Market Risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates.

a)

Foreign Currency risk management

The Group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:

(% in Lacs)
As at 31t March, 2022 As at 31t March, 2021
l. Assets cF:::gIg:y ECin lacs Equivalent ECin lacs Equivalent
3 In Lacs 3 In Lacs
Receivables (trade & others) (A) usD 1.66 124.56 6.80 493.08
Hedges by derivative contracts (B) usD - - - -
Unhedged Receivables (C = A - B) usD 1.66 124.56 6.80 493.08
(% in Lacs)
' As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31t March, 2021
I Liabilities CF;:Zf:y FCin lacs Equivalent FCin lacs Equivalent
3 In Lacs 3 In Lacs
Payables (trade & others) USD i i i i
(including Deferred payment liability) (D)
Hedges by derivative contracts (E) usD - - - -
Unhedged Payables (F=D-E) usD - - - -
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(% in Lacs)
As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31t March, 2021
. e . Foreign
lll. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments ; ;
Currency EC in lacs Equivalent ECin lacs Equivalent
< In Lacs T In Lacs

usD - - - -
Contingent Liabilities (G)

EURO - - - -

usD 11.59 886.21 3.33 246.35
Commitments (H)

EURO - - 1.00 87.03

usD - - - -
Hedges by derivative contracts (I)

EURO - - - -

usD 11.59 886.21 3.33 246.35
Unhedged Payables (J=G+H-1)

EURO - - 1.00 87.03

usD (9.93) (761.66) 3.47 246.73
Total unhedged FC Exposures (K=C + F +)

EURO - - (1.00) (87.03)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the USD & EURO currency

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 1% increase and decrease in the Rupees against the USD. 1% is
the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 1%
change in foreign currency rates. In case of net foreign currency outflow, a positive number below indicates an increase
in profit or equity where the I strengthens 1% against the relevant currency. For a 1% weakening of the Rupees against
the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact on the profit or equity, and the balances below would be
negative. In case of net foreign currency inflow, a positive number below indicates an increase in profit or equity where
the ¥ weakens 1% against the relevant currency. For a 1% strengthening of the Rupees against the relevant currency, there
would be a comparable impact on the profit or equity, and the balances below would be negative.

(% in Lacs)
If decrease by 1% Currency Impact (net USD Inflow)
Particulars As at 31t March, 2022 | As at 31% March, 2021
Increase / (decrease) in profit or loss for the year 1.25 493
Incr'ease / (decrease) in total equity as at the end of the reporting 195 493
period

(% in Lacs)
If increase by 1% Currency Impact (net USD Inflow)
Particulars As at 31 March, 2022 | As at 31* March, 2021
Increase / (decrease) in profit or loss for the year (1.25) (4.93)
Incr'ease / (decrease) in total equity as at the end of the reporting (1.25) (4.93)
period

(% in Lacs)
If increase by 1% Currency Impact (net EURO outflow)
Particulars As at 31 March, 2022 | As at 31* March, 2021
Increase / (decrease) in profit or loss for the year - (0.87)
Increase / (decrease) in total equity as at the end of the reporting i (0.87)
period )
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b)

<)

(% in Lacs)

If decrease by 1% Currency Impact (net EURO outflow)

Particulars As at 31t March, 2022 | As at 31% March, 2021
Increase / (decrease) in profit or loss for the year - 0.87
Increase / (decrease) in total equity as at the end of the reporting i 0.87
period ’

Interest Rate risk management

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk because Group borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The
risk is managed by the Group by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings. The Group’s
exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section
of this note.

Interest Rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting
period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of
the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

(X in Lacs)
If increase by 1% in interest rates Interest Impact
Particulars As at 31t March, 2022 As at 31t March, 2021
Increase / (decrease) in profit or loss for the year (183.56) (127.38)
Increa§e / (dgcrease) in total equity as at the end of the (183.56) (127.38)
reporting period

(% in Lacs)
If decrease by 1% in interest rates Interest Impact
Particulars As at 31t March, 2022 As at 31t March, 2021
Increase / (decrease) in profit or loss for the year 183.56 127.38
Increase / (de.crease) in total equity as at the end of the 183.56 127.38
reporting period

Credit Risk Management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers and loans given. Credit risk
arises from cash held with banks, as well as credit exposure to trade receivables and other financial assets. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managing counter party credit
risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The Group assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account
their financial position, past experience and other factors.

Trade and other Receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. Trade receivables
and unbilled revenue are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. The Group has a
process in place to monitor outstanding receivables on a monthly basis. In monitoring customer credit risk, customers
are grouped according to their credit characteristics, including government entities, insurance companies, corporates,
individual and others. The default in collection as a percentage to total receivable is low. Management believes that the
unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than one year are still collectible in full, based on historical payment
behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk.

Cash and bank balances, loans and other financial assets

Cash and bank balances comprises of deposits with bank, interest accrued on deposits, and security deposits. These
deposits are held with credit worthy banks. The credit worthiness of such banks are evaluated by the Management on
an ongoing basis and is considered to be good with low credit risk. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at
315 March, 2022 and 31t March, 2021 is the carrying value of each class of financial assets.

The security deposit pertains to rent deposit given to lessors. The Group does not expect any losses from non-performance
by these counter-parties.
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d)

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group’s short-term, medium-term and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. Note given below sets out details of additional undrawn
facilities that the Group has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to

ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities:

(% in Lacs)
_ Carrying Amount
Within 1 M han 2
Particulars ithin 1-2years ore than Total (net of transaction
year years
cost)
As at 31t March, 2022
Term Loan 2,192.70 2,187.37 13,976.25| 18,356.32 18,356.32
Trade Payables 5,997.08 - - 5,997.08 5,997.08
Interest' accrued but not due on 54.77 i i 54.77 5477
borrowings
Lease Liability 268.31 155.44 1,340.13 1,763.88 1,763.88
Other Financial Liability 1,832.82 - - 1,832.82 1,832.82
Total 10,345.69 2,342.80 15,316.38 | 28,004.86 28,004.86
(% in Lacs)
__ Carrying Amount
Within 1 M han 2
Particulars ithin 1-2years ore than Total (net of transaction
year years
cost)
As at 31t March, 2021
Term Loan 1,964.60 2,328.14 8,682.35| 12,975.09 12,737.94
Trade Payables 5,726.94 - - 5,726.94 5,726.94
Interest' accrued but not due on 48.85 i i 48.85 48.85
borrowings
Lease Liability 318.38 329.43 1,283.56 1,931.37 1,931.37
Other Financial Liability 933.22 - - 933.22 933.22
Total 8,991.99 2,657.57 9,965.91| 21,615.47 21,378.32
37. Disclosure under Ind AS - 115 (Revenue from contracts with customers)
(% in Lacs)
Year Ended Year Ended

a.

Disaggregated revenue information 31% March, 2022 31% March, 2021

Type of Services or goods

Revenue from Healthcare & Other Services 54,134.22 39,865.55
Revenue from Sale of Pharmacy Drugs & Medical Consumables 1,345.90 974.79
Total 55,480.12 40,840.34
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Year Ended

Year Ended

a. Disaggregated revenue information 31% March, 2022 31% March, 2021
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Revenue from Customers based in India 45,953.93 34,685.64
Revenue from Customers based outside India 9,526.20 6,154.70
Total 55,480.12 40,840.34
Timing of Revenue Recognition
Services transferred over time (Healthcare Services & Others) 54,094.53 39,857.67
Goods (Pharmacy & Scrap) transferred at a point in time 1,385.59 982.67
Total 55,480.12 40,840.34

(% in Lacs)

b. Trade receivables and Contract Customers 31+ M::c:t, 2022 31+ M::c:t, 2021
Trade Receivables 7,341.45 5,471.70
Unbilled revenue 574.65 446.21
Contract Liabilities (advance from patients) 1,080.48 939.66

38. Contingent Liabilities

The Group classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as unbilled revenue.
A receivables is right to consideration that is unconditional upon passage of time. Revenue for ongoing services at the
reporting date yet to be invoiced is recorded as unbilled revenue. Trade receivables and unbilled revenue are presented
net of impairment in the Balance sheet.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0- 90 days. ¥ 98.47 Lacs (% 307.63 Lacs as at
315t March, 2021) was recognised as provision during the year for expected credit losses on trade receivables.

Performance obligation and remaining performance obligation

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be
recognized as at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Group expects to recognize these
amounts in revenue. As on 31 March, 2022, there were no remaining performance obligation as the same is satisfied
upon delivery of goods/services.

(% in Lacs)

As at As at

Particulars

31t March, 2022 31t March, 2021

A
(i)

(iii) Outstanding Bank Guarantee’s issued out of non fund based overdraft limit

Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts

In respect of compensation demanded by the patient / their relatives, for 1,654.12 1,562.90
negligence in treatment and are pending with various consumers disputes
redressal forums. The Group has been advised by its legal counsel that it is
possible, the action may succeed after considering that insurance cover has
also been taken by the Group and the doctors, the Group is of the view that is

adequately insured to mitigate the possibility of any loss to that extent.

Basis on the Apex court judgement dated 28™ February, 2019 in the matter 392.16 392.16
of “M/s Surya Roshini Limited Vs RPFC”, the RPFC (Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner — 1) Gurugram, has passed an impugned order (dated 12"
January 2021) against the holding company to deposit a sum of ¥ 392.16
Lacs plus interest & penalty for the period November 2015 till January 2019.
“The Holding Company has filed an appeal to stay the impugned order before

“The Central Govt. Industrial Tribunal -1”. The matter is under adjudication.

509.00 453.40
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B The status of completion of obligation as at the end on licensing years for the EPCG licenses obtained by the Group is as

under:
(% in Lacs)
Obligation value . . Export Obligation to be Export Ob.llgatlo.n
. Licensing Year . completed in foreign
( in lacs) completed till
currency
470.75 2018-2019 2024-2025 470.75*
205.02 2019-2020 2025-2026 205.02*
434.82 2020-2021 2026-2027 NIL
1674.49 2021-2022 2027-2028 NIL

* In respect of Licensing year of FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20, Export obligations are completed but yet not approved by

regulatory authorities

C FortheIncome Tax assessment proceedings for AY 2017-18, Assessing officer has made addition of ¥ 937.84 Lacs. Addition
made by the Assessing Officer has not resulted any demand, as the additions has been setoff against unabsorbed losses of
the Group. However, the Group has filed an appeal before CIT (Appeals) against the order passed by the Assessing Officer

and matter is sub-judice.

39. The Group carries a general provision for contingencies towards various claims against the Group including claims raised by
patients / vendors / government authorities, not acknowledged as debts as mentioned in note no. 38A

(% in Lacs)

Opening Balance as
at 01.04.2021

Additional provision made

during the year

Incurred / (reversed) against
provision during the year

Closing Balance as at
31.03.2022

719.52

0.00

-48.75

670.77

40. India’s Code on Social Security, 2020, which aims to consolidate, codify and revise certain existing social security laws, received
Presidential assent in September 2020 and has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the related final rules have
not yet been issued and the date on which this Code will come into effect has not been announced. The Code may impact
the contributions by the Group towards provident fund, gratuity and ESIC. The Group will assess the impact of this Code and
the rules thereunder when they come into effect and will record any related impact, if any, in the period the Code becomes

effective.

41. Capitalisation of Expenditure :

During the year, the Group has capitalised the following expenses to the cost of property, plant and equipment / capital work
in progress (CWIP). Consequently, expenses disclosed under the respective notes are net of amount capitalised by the Group.

(% in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31t March, 2022 31t March, 2021
Borrowing Cost 469.85 142.37
Professional consultancy Fees 22.48 33.57
Other expenses directly attributable 82.21 22.62
Total 574.54 198.56
42. a) Interest in other entities
Detail of subsidiaries which have been consolidated are as follows:
Ownership Interest Ownership Interest
held by the non- .
held by the group . Reporting
S. Name of Comban Country of controlling interests date used for
No. pany Incorporation 31 31 31 31t .
consolidation
March, March, March, March,
2022 2021 2022 2021
st
1 | Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited India 65% 65% 35% 35% 31 2(';’;32“"’
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b) Additional information as required by Paragraph 2 of the General Instructions for Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements to Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013

Current Year 2021-22

(% in Lacs)

Net Assets, i.e. total
assets minus total

Share in Profit or Loss

Share in Other

Share in Total Comprehensive

liabilities Comprehensive Income Income
Name of the
S. Entity in the As % of As % of As % of
No. Group As % of consolidated consolidated consolidated
consolidated [ Amount Profit or Amount Other Amount Total Amount
net assets Loss Comprehensive Comprehensive
Income Income
Artemis
Medicare
Services Limited 100.10% | 36,161.20 103.74%| 3,257.74 101.00% (33.81) 103.77% 3,223.93
(Parent)
Subsidiary
Artemis Cardiac
1 Care Pyt Ltd -0.60%| (217.62) -2.44% (76.67) -0.67% 0.23 -2.46% (76.44)
Non-controlling
Interests in 0.51% -1.31%|  (41.28) -0.36% 0.12 -1.32% (41.16)
Subsidiary
/::i‘l.’;;me”ts 0.00% 0.00%| 036 0.00% - 0.01% 0.36
TOTAL 100% |36,126.30 100.00%| 3,140.15 100% (33.47) 100.00% 3,106.68
Previous Year 2020-21 (% in Lacs)

Net Assets, i.e. total
assets minus total

Share in Profit or Loss

Share in Other
Comprehensive Income

Share in Total Comprehensive
Income

liabilities
s Name of the . .
) Entity in the As % of As A’ of As A’ of
No. As % of . consolidated consolidated
Group . consolidated
consolidated | Amount Profit or Amount Other Amount Total Amount
net assets Loss Comprehensive Comprehensive
Income Income

Artemis
Medicare 99.96%[32,162.01|  115.05%| 708.71 98.59%|  46.32 113.88% 755.03
Services Limited
(Parent)
Subsidiary

y  |Artemis Cardiac -0.44%| (141.18) 9.82%| (60.51) 0.92% 0.43 -9.06% (60.08)
Care Pvt Ltd. R ' oem ' e ' R '
Non-controlling
Interests in 0.48% -5.29%| (32.58) 0.50% 0.23 -4.88% (32.35)
Subsidiary
Adjustments 0.00% 0.06% 0.38 0.00% - 0.06% 0.38
arising
TOTAL 100%|32,174.38 100% 616.00 100% 46.98 100% 662.98
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43.

44.

45.

The Group continues to closely monitor the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on all aspects of its business, including how
it has impacted and will impact its customers, employees, vendors and business partners. The management has exercised
due care, in concluding on significant accounting judgements and estimates, inter-alia, carrying amounts & recoverability
of receivables and other current assets, assessment of liquidity and going concern assumption, based on the information
available to date, both internal and external, while preparing the Group’s financial results for the quarter and year ended
31 March, 2022.

Exceptional item,in previous year, consist of reversal of old disputed liability of ¥ 323.29 lacs carried forward from Artemis
Global Life Sciences Limited (AGLSL) (the erstwhile ultimate parent Group of Artemis Medicare Services Limited) prior to
the merger which was under Arbitration. The Management has been advised by an independent legal expert that since the
Arbitration proceedings are not being carried out for last many years, this amount is now no longer payable. Accordingly, the
same has been written back by the Group.

Note 45: Share-based payments
(a) The share-based payment plan is an employee option plan. The options are equity settled options.

The Board and shareholders have approved the Artemis Medicare Management Stock Option Plan — 2021 (the Plan). In
accordance with the Plan, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, had, on 1 April, 2021, granted 6,96,700 Stock
Options to the Managing Director. These stock options are to be vested after a minimum of one year from the grant date
and it may extend up to a maximum of four years from the grant date. The exercise period is one year from the date of
respective vesting.

Further, according to the sub-division of the Equity Shares of the Group from the face value of ¥10/- each per share into
% 1/- each per share, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee revised the no. of Stock Options to bring the same
in line with the Sub-divided Equity Shares of the Group. Accordingly, the revised no. of Stock Options stands at 69,67,000
Stock Options with the face value of ¥ 1/- each.

(b) Set out below is the summary of options

As at 31t March, 2022 As at 31t March, 2021

. Average Average

Particulars exercise No. of exercise No. of

price/ share  options price/ share  options
in¥ in¥

Opening Balance - - - -

Granted during the period/ year 21.37 6967000 - -

Exercised during the period/ year - - - -

Expired during the period/ year - - - -

Closing Balance 6967000 -

Vested and exercisable 6967000 -

(c) Share options outstanding at the end of the period/ year have the following exercise period and exercise prices:

Grant Grant Date Exercise Period Ex::‘c;.:: ::‘n%:e/ S:i;ewtl);télﬁ'nza()szgn Sgi;elv?;:zrzaoszin
Grant - | 01.04.2021 | 2 years from the date of grant 21.37 1741750 -
Grant - I 01.04.2021 | 3 years from the date of grant 21.37 1741750 -
Grant-Ill | 01.04.2021 | 4 years from the date of grant 21.37 1741750 -
Grant- IV | 01.04.2021 | 5 years from the date of grant 21.37 1741750 -

(d) Fair value of options granted

The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes Model which takes into account the exercise price, term
of option, the share price at grant date, and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield
and the risk free interest rate for the term of option. The Fair Value of the Stock option as of grant date was ¥ 21.37. During
the year ended 31 March, 2022, the Group issued Nil equity shares (315 March, 2021: Nil).
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(e) Expense arising from share-based payment transactions

The Group has recorded an expense of ¥ 775.26 lacs for the year ended 31 March, 2022 (315 March, 2021: Nil) as a part
of employee benefit expense.

(f) The existing Employee Stock Option Scheme, no options have been exercised till date.

Note 46: Ratio Analysis and its Elements

Note 46.1: Ratio (% in Lacs)
% change from
Particulars Units 31 March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021 31 March, 2021

to 31 March, 2022
Current Ratio Times 0.92 0.92 -0.48
Debt-Equity Ratio Times 0.62 0.50 25.02
Debt Service Coverage ratio Times 2.04 1.54 32.59
Inventory Turnover ratio Times 14.08 11.43 23.20
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio Times 3.56 2.60 37.11
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio Times 6.53 4.39 48.98
Net Capital Turnover Ratio Times (55.16) (16.57) 232.93
Net Profit ratio Percentage 5.66% 1.51% 275.25
Return on Equity ratio Percentage 11.43% 2.45% 366.20
Return on Capital Employed Percentage 9.76% 4.97% 96.49
Return on Investment Percentage 6.93% 3.41% 103.22

Note 46.2: Elements of Ratio (% in Lacs)
31t March, 2022 31t March, 2021
Ratios
Numerator Denominator Numerator Denominator

Current ratio 12,704.78 13,815.68 10,946.99 11,847.55
Debt- Equity Ratio 18,356.32 29,433.12 12,737.94 25,535.41
Debt Service Coverage ratio 7,135.27 3,492.73 4,196.94 2,723.95
Inventory Turnover ratio 15,503.96 1,101.05 11,645.59 1,018.88
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio 22,832.00 6,406.58 17,066.00 6,565.72
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio 38,304.78 5,862.01 28,921.52 6,594.10
Net Capital Turnover Ratio 55,480.12 (1,005.73) 40,840.34 (2,464.83)
Net Profit Ratio 3,140.15 55,480.12 616.00 40,840.34
Return on Equity ratio 3,140.15 27,484.26 616.00 25,135.83
Return on Capital Employed 4,916.00 50,361.04 2,045.55 41,174.82
Return on Investment 4,916.00 70,966.47 2,045.55 60,008.93

Note 46.3: Consideration of Element of Ratio

Numerator= Current Assets

i. Current Ratio: .  Lreas
I. Current Ratio Denominator= Current Liabilities

Numerator= Total Debt

ii. Debt-Equity Ratio: Denominator= Total Equity - Revaluation Reserve

Numerator= Profit After Tax + Interest Cost + Depreciation

iii. Debt Service Coverage ratio: . -
3 Denominator= Principal Repayment + Interest Cost

Numerator= Cost of Goods Sold

iv. Inventory Turnover ratio: .
Denominator= Average Inventory
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Numerator= Total Credit Sales

v. Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio:

vi. Trade Payable Turnover Ratio:

vii. Net Capital Turnover Ratio:

viii. Net Profit ratio:

ix. Return on Equity ratio:

X. Return on Capital Employed:

Xi. Return on Investment:

Denominator=Average Trade Receivables

Numerator= Total Credit Purchases
Denominator= Average Trade Payables

Numerator= Revenue from operations
Denominator= Average Working Capital (i.e. Current Assets -
Current Liabilities)

Numerator= Net Profit after tax
Denominator= Revenue from operations

Numerator= Profit after tax
Denominator= Average Total Equity - Revaluation Reserve

Numerator= Profit Before Tax + Finance cost
Denominator= Equity - Revaluation Reserve + Debt + Deferred
Tax Liability

Numerator= Profit Before Tax+ Finance cost
Denominator= Total Assets

Note 46.4: Reasons for more than 25% increase/ (decrease) in above ratios

Particulars

% change from 31t March, 2021 to 31t March, 2022

Current Ratio

Not Significant

Debt-Equity Ratio

The change in ratio is on account of increase in Debt towards new project expansion made
during the year.

Debt Service Coverage ratio

The change in ratio has been positive due to increase in earnings as compare to previous
year.

Inventory Turnover ratio

Not Significant

Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio

The change in ratio is positive due to more increase in credit sales and better realisation
during the year.

Trade Payable Turnover Ratio

The change in ratio is positive due to more credit purchases and decrease in average
creditors during the year.

Net Capital Turnover Ratio

The change in ratio has been due to increase in business operations during the year.

Net Profit ratio

The change in ratio is positive because of increase in earnings and proportionate decrease in
direct cost as compared to previous year.

Return on Equity ratio

The change in ratio is positive because of increase in overall profitability.

Return on Capital Employed

The change in ratio is positive because of increase in overall profitability.

Return on Investment

The change in ratio is positive because of more earnings as compared to increase in total
assets.

47. Other Statutory Information

(i)  The Group has no transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560
of the Companies Act, 1956.

statutory period.

The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the

The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the period/year.

The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities

(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
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(vi)

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.”

The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b)  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Group does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey
or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

48. Other Notes

(iii)

(iv)

As per our report of even date attached

For TR Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, Trade Receivables, other current financial assets, and other current assets have
avalue on realization in the ordinary course of the Group’s business, which is at least equal to the amount at which they
are stated in the balance sheet.

The balances of some of the accounts classified as Trade Payables, Trade Receivables, etc. are in the process of
reconciliations/ confirmation. In the opinion of Board of directors, the result of such exercise will not have any material
impact on the carrying value.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 11 May, 2022 has approved the Financial Statement for the year ended
31t March, 2022.

The figures for the corresponding previous year have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary, to make them
comparable.

Signature to Note 1 to 48

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Artemis Medicare Services Limited

Firm Registration Number 006711N/N500028

Sd/-

(Neena Goel)

Partner

Membership No. 057986
Place : New Delhi

Dated : 11* May, 2022

Sd/- Sd/-
Onkar Kanwar Devlina Chakravarty
[Chairman] [Managing Director]

[DIN : 00058921]
Place : Gurugram
Dated : 11* May, 2022

Sd/-

Sanjiv Kumar Kothari
[Chief Financial Officer]
Place : Gurugram
Dated : 11* May, 2022
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[DIN : 07107875]
Place : Gurugram
Dated : 11*" May, 2022

Sd/-

Shilpa Budhia
[Company Secretary]
Place : Gurugram
Dated : 11*" May, 2022
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Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiary
(Information in respect of subsidiary to be presented with amounts ¥ in Lacs)

Sl. No. Particulars Details
1 Name of the subsidiary Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited
2 The date since when subsidiary was acquired/incorporated 14t January, 2019
3 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the N.A.
holding company’s reporting period
4 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the N.A.
relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries
5 Share Capital 860
6 Reserves & surplus (334.81)
7 Total assets 1979.02
8 Total Liabilities 1453.83
9 Investments 0
10 Turnover 1001.72
11 Profit before taxation (162.76)
12 Provision for taxation (44.81)
13 Profit after taxation (127.95)
14 Proposed Dividend 0
15 % of shareholding 65

Sd/-

Onkar Kanwar
Chairman & Director
DIN:00058921

Place: Gurugram
Date : 11" May, 2022

Sd/-
Sanjiv Kumar Kothari
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date : 11* May, 2022

Sd/-

Devlina Chakravarty
Managing Director
DIN:07107875

Place: Gurugram
Date : 11" May, 2022

Sd/-
Shilpa Budhia
Company Secretary

Place: Gurugram
Date : 11 May, 2022
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